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Revenue
Gross profit

st
D

I Highlights

Profit for the year

Earnings per Ordinary Share

— Basic
— Diluted

Gross profit margin (Note)
Profit margin for the year

(Note)

WA

EM

FRMNE

Profit for the year attributable FRARXFHEE A
to owners of the Company

e
SREBR Y
- 2
— W

EME(H1i2)
LRERIERS
(Hiz)

3,653,866
603,415
360,859
354,904

HK cents

B

29.0
29.0

Percentage

Bt

17%

10%

3,657,529
524,619
119,624

81,111
HK cents

BN

6.9
6.9

Percentage

Bt

15%

3%

3%
15%
202%

338%
Percentage
B
320%
320%
Percentage

point
B2
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MERE

ncial Highlights

Current assets TEEE 1,354,100 1,417,948 -5%
Total assets WMEE 7,094,864 6,103,222 16%
Total equity B 1,999,775 1,360,026 47%
Current liabilities mBaE 3,833,553 4,638,251 -17%
Total liabilities BafE 5,095,089 4,743,196 7%
Percentage
Percentage Percentage point
BA K =F2:4 B8
Average finance costs (Note) FHRERA(H7E) 4.6% 4.6% -
Return on average equity FHRARE R
(Note) (Hiz) 22% 6% 16
Note: =
Definitions Ex
e Gross profit margin ¢ Average finance costs o ERZE o FHFERMA
Gross profit/Revenue Weighted average interest ERUA MELHFNESZH,
expenses/Weighted average DNREFE 1 2 E
borrowings
¢ Profit margin for the year ¢ Return on average equity o FEEFIH=E o TR AER
Profit for the year/Revenue Profit attributable to owners of EREME/ WA FERARATHEE AE
the Company during the year/ eralh P /NG Y=
Average equity attributable to ALk

owners of the Company
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Binhai
Investment Company Limited (the “Company”), | am
delighted to present the annual report of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2020. The Group recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$3.65 billion for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$3.56 billion), which
represented an approximately 3% increase compared
with previous year. Profit of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$361 million for the year (2019: HK$120
million), representing an increase of approximately 202%
from previous year.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

During 2020, due to the sudden outbreak and aggravation
of the COVID-19 pandemic, the global economic condition
has become increasingly severe and complicated. In the
PRC, economic activities have gradually resumed to normal
since early April as a result of continuous control of pandemic
prevention and economic and social development. In 2020,
the apparent consumption of natural gas reached 329.7
billion cubic metres, up by 7.1% year-on-year. Although
the growth rate temporarily slowed down under the impact
of the pandemic, the growth fundamentals of natural gas
consumption remained unchanged. With the continuous
promotion of national policies for clean energy and various
measures for natural gas market reform, the Group recorded
an upward trend in operating results by leveraging on the
advantages of mixed-ownership reform, and achieved
outstanding performance in gas supply stability, daily
operation, strategic cooperation and other aspects.

For the stability of gas supply, in the first half of 2020,
by introducing Great Wall Energy Investment (Hong Kong)
Limited (“Great Wall Energy HK”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary
of China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation (“Sinopec”))
as the second largest shareholder of the Company, the
Group achieved the synergy of resources with Sinopec
(an upstream supplier), enhanced the Group’s competitive
position in the industry and continued to optimize the
natural gas source supply or dual gas sources supply of
non-local subsidiaries, further reducing gas procurement
costs and increasing gas profitability while ensuring
sufficient gas supply during the peak shaving in winter.

Binhai Investment Company Limited & &% & GR A7
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

For enterprise operation, during 2020, the Group had
184,000 regular customers from the construction and
installation of gas engineering, down by 8% year-on-
year, and recorded sales volume of piped natural gas of
1.763 billion cubic metres, down by 7.9% year-on-year,
among which the sales volume of pipeline gas accounted
for 1.02 billion cubic metres, up by 2% year-on-year,
achieving 0.743 billion cubic metres of natural gas
pipeline delivery for the year, down by 18.8% year-on-
year. The Group has also been committed to increasing
its market share and expanding its operation regions. In
the second half of the year, the Group successfully won
a bidding for the “concession for operation of piped gas
in Yangxu District” in Gaoan City, Jiangxi Province, which
expanded the Group’s scope of business development
in Southern China. The local government planned to
carry out the optimization and upgrading of the energy
structure of “coal-to-gas” conversion, which also brought
potential room for volume growth of the Group. In
addition, following the successful implementation of the
mixed-ownership reform, the Group has also appointed
a new chairman of the Board and an executive Director,
and the Company has been short-listed in the “Double-
Hundred Action” campaign led by the Leading Group for
State-owned Enterprises Reform of the State Council.
With the support of relevant policies, the Group has
smoothly implemented a number of group management
strategies such as internal reform and the share option
scheme to further enhance corporate vitality and promote
sustainable and benign corporate development.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHE

PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2021, the global economy will
continue to face a high degree of uncertainty due to the
risks brought by the new wave of COVID-19 infections
and virus mutations, which will also put pressure on
the domestic economic environment. However, the
upgrade of PRC’s energy consumption will continue to
drive the growth of natural gas demand, and the policy
promotion and infrastructure improvement will accelerate
consumption. At the same time, the domestic market-
oriented reform of natural gas is also speeding up. With
city gate prices being determined by the market, the
liberation of LNG market price, the gradual improvement
of gas transmission and peak shaving mechanism and
the official establishment and operation of the National
Oil and Gas Pipeline Network Group Corporation,
these will bring opportunities and increases in demand
for construction, storage and transportation. In 2021,
the upstream, midstream and downstream segments
of natural gas procurement, storage, transportation
and sales will usher in more rapid and sustainable
development opportunities.

In 2021, the Group will continue to follow the PRC’s
“14th Five Year Plan” in terms of energy planning and
the guidance of the “2060 carbon neutral target”, firmly
grasp the transformation direction and pace of the energy
industry, and continue to improve the construction of
natural gas pipeline network and business development
based on the existing geographical advantages of
operation. The Group optimize the layout and structure
of energy production, improve the efficiency of oil and
gas resources allocation, and fully carry out value-added
businesses while maintaining the revenue growth of
the existing businesses. In the future, with the support
from the ultimate parent companies of the two largest
shareholders of the Company, Tianjin TEDA Investment
Holding Co., Ltd. (“TEDA”) and Sinopec, the Group will
further integrate its own resources and advantages,
reinforce the foundation of its core businesses and
actively expand comprehensive energy businesses.

Binhai Investment Company Limited & &% & GR A7
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Chairman’s Statement

ERERE

The Group will continue to explore potential market
opportunities, and improve the strategic layout of the
regional development throughout the country. The Group
will also promote the leapfrog development of the scale
of operation as well as reward investors, the government
and users with the increasing operating returns for their
care and support over the years.

On behalf of the Board, | hereby extend my sincere
gratitude to the shareholders, customers, staff, business
partners and other stakeholders for their strong support
towards the Group.

On behalf of the Board
Binhai Investment Company Limited

Wang Zhiyong
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 18 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEHEE mE DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the sales of piped
natural gas, construction and gas pipeline installation
service, gas passing through service and sales of bottled
natural gas.

Sales of Piped Natural Gas

For the year ended 31 December 2020, consumption
of piped natural gas by domestic and industrial users
amounted to approximately 9,866 x 10° and 25,950 x
10° mega-joules respectively, as compared to 8,689 x
10° and 26,408 x 10° mega-joules respectively for the
year ended 31 December 2019. During the year, income
of the Group from sales of piped natural gas amounted
to HK$2,935,616,000, representing an increase of
HK$42,384,000 or approximately 1% compared to the
amount of HK$2,893,232,000 recorded for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Construction and Gas Pipeline Installation Service

The Group constructs gas pipelines for its clients and
connects such pipelines to the Group’s main gas pipeline
networks. The Group then charges construction and
gas pipeline installation service fees from industrial and
commercial customers, property developers and property
management companies. As at 31 December 2020, the
aggregate length of all gas pipeline networks owned
by the Group was approximately 3,355 kilometres,
representing an increase of 307 kilometres from the
length of 3,048 kilometres as at 31 December 2019.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, construction
and gas pipeline installation service fees received by the
Group amounted to approximately HK$626,300,000,
representing an increase of HK$65,480,000 or
approximately 12% compared to the HK$560,820,000
service fees recorded for the year ended 31 December
2019.

Binhai Investment Company Limited & &% & GR A7
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEN mED M

Gas Passing Through Service

The Group transports gases for clients through gas
pipeline networks and charges passing through fees.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the volume
of gases transported by the Group for its clients
amounted to 743,247,108 cubic metres and gas passing
through service income amounted to HK$70,991,000,
representing a decrease of HK$10,432,000 or
approximately 13% compared to the amount of
HK$81,423,000 recorded for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Property Development

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held a piece of land
under development of approximately 15,899.6 square
metres located to the east of Central West Road, west
of Central Road, north of Xi San Road and south of
Xi Er Road in the Tianjin Airport Economic Area in the
Binhai New Area of the PRC, under land use rights for
commercial use for a term of 40 years from 31 December
2009.

In view of the Group’s current strategic direction which
focuses on the development of the gas business,
the Group plans to dispose of the above property
under construction. The management of the Company
emphasises the decision of the disposal of the property
under construction, and has appointed professional staff
to actively contact agents and potential buyers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWED T

Significant Event During the Year

In order to broaden the shareholder base of the
Company, on 23 April 2020, the Company (as issuer)
entered into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”) with Sinopec Great Wall Energy Investment
Co., Ltd. (“Great Wall Energy”) (as subscriber).
Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, the Company
conditionally agreed to allot and issue, and Great
Wall Energy conditionally agreed to subscribe for, an
aggregate of 177,676,183 new ordinary shares of the
Company (the “Subscription Shares”) at HK$1.33 per
share (the “Subscription Price”) (which is equivalent
to the closing price of the shares of the Company on
the date of signing of the Subscription Agreement)
under a specific mandate subsequently approved at
the special general meeting of the Company held on
3 July 2020 (the “Subscription”). The gross proceeds
from the Subscription amounted to approximately
HK$236,309,000 (based on the Subscription Price of
HK$1.33 per Subscription Share). The net proceeds of
the Subscription (after deducting related professional
fees and related expenses) amounted to approximately
HK$234,721,000. As disclosed in the circular of the
Company dated 12 June 2020, the Company used
70% of the net proceeds from the Subscription as
general working capital of the Group and the balance as
repayment of the Group’s loan for the gas procurement
costs.

On 23 April 2020, TEDA Hong Kong Property Company
Limited (“TEDA HK”) (as vendor), being the controlling
shareholder of the Company, and Great Wall Energy (as
purchaser) entered into a share purchase agreement
(the “Share Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which
TEDA HK conditionally agreed to sell, and Great Wall
Energy conditionally agreed to purchase, an aggregate of
227,796,154 ordinary shares of the Company at HK$1.33
per share, which is the same as the Subscription Price
(the “Disposal”).

Details of the nature and terms of the Subscription
Agreement and the Share Purchase Agreement are set
out in the circular of the Company dated 12 June 2020.

Binhai Investment Company Limited & &% & GR A7
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEN mED M

Completion of the Subscription and the Disposal took
place on 24 September 2020. Following the completion of
the Subscription and the Disposal, Great Wall Energy HK
(a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Great Wall Energy)
became a substantial shareholder of the Company.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 was HK$603 million (2019: HK$525
million) and the gross profit margin for the Group was
17% (2019: 15%). The increase in gross profit margin
was mainly due to the decrease in purchase cost of the
piped natural gas.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 was HK$280 million, representing an
increase of HK$18 million or 7% compared to HK$262
million for the year ended 31 December 2019, which was
mainly attributable to an increase in employee benefits
expenses.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

Profit attributable to equity owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately
HK$355 million, as compared to HK$81 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019. Profit attributable to
equity owners of the Company excluding the unrealised
exchange income amounted to HK$219 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020, representing an increase
of 89% as compared to HK$116 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019. The Group recorded an
unrealised exchange income of HK$136 million caused by
fluctuations in RMB exchange rate in 2020.

Basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2020 was HK$29 cents, as compared to HK$6.9 cents
for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2020, the total borrowings of the
Group amounted to HK$2,364,006,000 (31 December
2019: HK$2,540,226,000) and the cash and bank
deposits of the Group amounted to HK$425,137,000
(31 December 2019: HK$706,881,000), which included
cash and cash equivalents of HK$407,743,000 and
pledged bank deposits of HK$17,394,000. As at 31
December 2020, the Group had consolidated current
assets of HK$1,354,100,000 and its current ratio was
approximately 0.35. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group had a gearing ratio of approximately 118%,
measured by the ratio of total consolidated borrowings
of HK$2,364,006,000 to consolidated total equity of
HK$1,999,775,000.

Borrowings Structure

As at 31 December 2020, the total borrowings of the
Group amounted to HK$2,364,006,000 (31 December
2019: HK$2,540,226,000). Secured borrowings from PRC
banks were denominated in RMB, carrying the interest
at the rate from 4.35% to 5.6% per annum. Unsecured
borrowings from PRC banks were denominated in RMB,
carrying the interest at the rate of 4% per annum. Other
secured borrowings were carrying the interest at the rate
of 4.45% per annum. Other unsecured borrowings were
carrying the interest at the rate of 6% per annum. Other
borrowing with collateral was borrowing with principal
amount of RMB230,000,000 with the annual interest rate
being 12% less than the RMB benchmark lending rate
published by the People’s Bank of China for the same
period, where the outstanding balance of the aforesaid
borrowing with collateral amounted to RMB25,306,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$30,073,000)
(2019: RMB96,910,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$107,978,000)). As at 31 December 2020, short-
term borrowings and the current portion of long-term
borrowings amounted to HK$1,308,508,000, while the
remainder were long-term borrowings falling due after
one year or above.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Directors’ Opinion on Sufficiency of Working Capital

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately HK$2,479
million. The Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern largely depends on the sufficiency of financial
resources available to the Group. The Directors are of the
view that the Group will have sufficient working capital to
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due in
the next twelve months from 1 January 2021, based on
the following considerations:

° The Group is expected to remain profitable and
continue to generate stable operating cash inflows
from its future business operations;

° The Group has extended the repayment date of a
borrowing of approximately HK$943 million which
was originally repayable on demand (at the request
of the lender by serving a seven-day prior notice)
to become repayable on 1 May 2022 (or prior to
that maturity date at the discretion of the Group)
pursuant to a borrowing renewal agreement entered
into between the Group and the lender on 10
February 2021; and

° On 26 February 2021 and 10 March 2021, the
Group entered into banking facility agreements with
a reputable commercial bank (a PRC incorporated
bank which is listed on both the Main Board of the
Shanghai Stock Exchange and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited) pursuant to which the Group
can draw down 1-year term bank borrowings
of RMB200 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$238 million) and RMB1,000 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,188 million) respectively
from the aforesaid listed commercial bank. As of the
date of these consolidated financial statements, the
Group has already drawn down a bank borrowing
of RMB200 million under the aforesaid banking
facilities.

In view of the above, the Directors are confident that
there will be sufficient financial resources available to
the Group to enable it to continue as a going concern
and hence have prepared the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Exposure to Exchange Rate Fluctuations

The majority of the Group’s transactions are denominated
in the functional currency of the respective group entities.
Part of the deposits and bank borrowings of the Group
are denominated in HK Dollars and US Dollars which
expose the Group to certain foreign currency risks. For
the year ended 31 December 2020, net foreign exchange
income for the financing activities was HK$136 million.
The Group does not currently have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management of the
Company has been monitoring foreign exchange risks
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Charge on the Group’s Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had pledged
bank deposits of HK$17,394,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$6,883,000).

Pipeline networks with net carrying amount as at 31
December 2020 of HK$231 million (approximately
RMB195 million) were pledged as security for the related
borrowings.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 1,718
employees (31 December 2019: 1,809 employees). For
the year ended 31 December 2020, the salaries and
wages of the employees amounted to HK$208 million
(year ended 31 December 2019: HK$174 million) and
among these, HK$28 million were recorded in research
and development expenses (year ended 31 December
2019: HK$23 million).

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is
determined by reference to the market rates, and the
performance, qualification and experience of the relevant
staff. Also, a discretionary bonus based on individual
performance during the year is distributed to reward the
contributions of employees to the Group. The Group also
provides training opportunity and other benefits to its
employees, including pension insurance, unemployment
insurance, injury insurance, medical insurance, maternity
insurance and housing fund, etc. In addition, since
the share option scheme adopted by the Company in
2010 had expired, the Company proposed the adoption
of a new share option scheme at the end of 2020 as
an incentive and award plan for senior management
and personnel of the Group. The new share option
scheme was adopted after obtaining the approval of
the shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on 13 January 2021.
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Corporate Governance Report

ERERRE

The Board is pleased to present the corporate
governance report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board is in charge of the management of the entire
business of the Group and assumes overall responsibility
for the leadership and control of the Group, collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Group
through giving instructions and supervising its business.
The Board believes that good corporate governance
practices would strengthen investors’ confidence,
facilitate the development of the Group, and increase
transparency in the operation of the Group, all of which
are in the long term interest of the Group and the
Shareholders. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Company had fully complied with the code provisions
set out in Appendix 14 (Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report) of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings as set
out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) under
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Trading of securities by
Directors shall be approved by the chairman of the Board
and shall be conducted in accordance with the time
frame and the number of securities approved.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiries
by the Company, that they complied with the required
standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code and
the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions throughout the year ended 31
December 2020.
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Corporate Governance Report
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THE BOARD

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine
Directors including three executive Directors, namely
Mr. WANG Zhiyong (Chairman), Mr. ZUO Zhi Min (Vice
Chairman) and Mr. GAO Liang (General Manager), three
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. WANG Gang, Mr.
SHEN Hong Liang and Mr. YU Ke Xiang, and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. IP
Shing Hing, J.P., Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin and Professor
Japhet Sebastian LAW. Detailed information of the
Directors is set out in the section titled “BIOGRAPHICAL
INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT” herein.

It is a principle under the Corporate Governance
Code that the Board should have a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the Company’s business. It should
ensure that changes to its composition can be managed
without undue disruption. It should include a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) so that
there is a strong independent element on the board
which can effectively exercise independent judgment.
Non-executive directors should be of sufficient caliber
and number for their views to carry weight.

There are no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships among the Board members
(including between the Chairman and the General
Manager).

The Board is responsible for the overall management
of the Company, undertaking the responsibility to lead
and administer and to promote the success of the
Company through providing direction and supervision.
All the Directors are bound by their duties to act in the
interests of the Company to make an objective decision.
The Board is responsible for the major affairs of the
Company, including the approval and supervision of
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all major policies, overall strategies, risk management
and internal control systems, material transactions (in
particular transactions which may involve a conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other material financial and operational matters. The
management is responsible for the Group’s day-to-day
management, administration and operations. Material
transactions to be entered into by the Group are subject
to approval of the Board.

A total of seven Board meetings were held during the
year ended 31 December 2020 to discuss and decide
on the Company’s major strategies, important business
matters, financial issues and other matters set forth in
the Company’s bye-laws. A summary of the Directors’
attendance at such meetings is as follows:

'_._Cofp'orate Governance Report

®) MBEH BEFEz2EGREME
RIHBLREEFHE EREAEAEH
REEE - TTEAZ)SZ SET(F - NEMEE]
VEBEBAXRZH - BAEBSEZTSHE -

EXg8E_T_TF+_A=1—H

HFEERXBRLtRETESH  Imil
3&7&$ BAIMEANBR BEAKLES

B EELARERTRENHA
$I§ ExggsbFERERAT

Mr. ZHANG Bing Jun (Chairman)
(resigned on 16 October 2020)
RREAE(FE)
(RZF_FF+HA+NHEE)
Mr. WANG Zhiyong (Chairman)
(appointed on 17 October 2020)
TEBEEFE)
(RZFE_ZFFL+H++HEZE)
Mr. ZUO Zhi Min (Vice Chairman)
(appointed on 16 October 2020)
TEREE(BEE)
(RZF_ZFFA+H+NAEZT)
Mr. GAO Liang (General Manager)
1= ou St (A4S FE )

4/4 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
7/7 100%
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Mr. WANG Gang

EMIEA

Ms. CAO Hong Mei (resigned on 16 October 2020)
BUABL LT (R=ZF_FF A+ NHET)

Ms. PENG Bo (resigned on 16 October 2020)
CHRT(R-ZFE-FFA+H A/ NABFE)

Mr. SHEN Hong Liang (appointed on 16 October 2020)
RS (RZFE-FF+ A+ NHEZE)

Mr. YU Ke Xiang

TrRERE

ate Governance Report
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4/4

4/4

2/2

77

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P. 7/7 100%
BB REXFHL
Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin 6/7 85%
BIBELE
Professor Japhet Sebastian LAW 6/7 85%
X HIX
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Corporate Governance Code A.6.5 requires that all
directors should participate in continuing professional
development, develop and update their knowledge
and skills in order to ensure that they contribute to the
Board with comprehensive information and as and when
required. The issuer shall be responsible for arranging
and funding appropriate training, placing appropriate
emphasis on the roles, functions and responsibilities of
directors of the listed company.

Record of training received by each Director during the
year ended 31 December 2020 is summarized below:
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Mr. ZHANG Bing Jun (resigned on 16 October 2020)

RREEER-_F-FFELH S NHAFT)

Mr. WANG Zhiyong (appointed on 17 October 2020)
ITEBEER-FE-FFL+ A1+ +HEZHE)

Mr. ZUO Zhi Min (appointed on 16 October 2020)
FEREE(R-E-FF+ A+ NHEZ(T)

Mr. GAO Liang
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Mr. WANG Gang

EM LA

Ms. CAO Hong Mei (resigned on 16 October 2020)

BUEL T (R=ZF=FF+ A+ HEHT)

Ms. PENG Bo (resigned on 16 October 2020)

AR T (R=ZF=FF+ A1 NHEHE)

Mr. SHEN Hong Liang (appointed on 16 October 2020)

RtEEE(R_E_FEF+ AT NAEZE)

Mr. YU Ke Xiang

TRELE

Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P.

ERBERELTFHL

Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin

BIRExE

Professor Japhet Sebastian LAW

7B EHIR
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Attended 2020 First Half Forum on Analysis of
Economy

Attended 2020 Third Quarter Forum on Analysis of
Economy

Attended “Analysis of Production and Operation of
Natural Gas Branch Company 2020” organized by a
branch of natural gas company of Sinopec

Attended Forum on “Double-hundred Action”

Attended a talk about “How to Implement Corporate
Integrity System” provided by Tianjin Development
Holdings Limited

Attended “Directors’ Symposium 2020” organized by
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors

Attended a seminar about “Security Risks Emerge
in Digital Transformation” organized by BDO Hong
Kong

Attended Independent Non-executive Director Forum
organized by KPMG

Attended a webinar about “COVID-19 Impact to
Company’s Credit Management” provided by ROMA

Attended a training in relation to New Guidelines
of ESG Report provided by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange

Attended a training in relation to Connected
Transaction Rules provided by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange
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CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD AND
GENERAL MANAGER

Mr. WANG Zhiyong is the chairman of the Board
(“Chairman”) and Mr. ZUO Zhi Min is the vice chairman
(“Vice Chairman”). Mr. GAO Liang is the General
Manager (“General Manager”). The Chairman and the
Vice Chairman are primarily responsible for leading the
Board and ensuring the effective operation of the Board,
while the General Manager is primarily responsible for the
day-to-day operations of the Company. Such distinction
between the respective roles and responsibilities of the
Chairman and the General Manager is set out in the
Company’s bye-laws and the “Regulation on Operation of
the Board and its Committees” of the Company.

TERM OF OFFICE AND RE-ELECTION

Independent non-executive Directors have a term of office
of two years and non-executive Directors have a term of
office of three years, both subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

GENERAL MEETINGS

The Company held an annual general meeting and two
special general meetings in 2020.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
15 May 2020 (“2020 AGM”), a separate resolution was
proposed by the Chairman in respect of each separate
issue, including the re-election of each of Mr. ZHANG
Bing Jun, Mr. WANG Gang and Professor Japhet
Sebastian LAW as a Director. The representative of the
external auditor of the Company attended the 2020 AGM.

At the two special general meetings of the Company
(the “SGM”) held in 2020, independent non-executive
Directors were available to answer questions at two SGMs
for approval of the Subscription Agreement, the grant of
a specific mandate to allot and issue the Subscription
Shares, and continuing connected transactions.

The chairman of the 2020 AGM and SGMs had explained
the procedures of conducting a poll during the aforesaid
meetings. All resolutions proposed at the 2020 AGM and
SGMs were voted by way of polls. All the votes cast at
the 2020 AGM and SGMs were properly counted and
recorded.
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The following table sets out details of the Directors’ T XRINHETHE-_ZT_ZTE+ - A
attendance of the general meetings of the Company for =T HUHEFEESEHEARAREK
the year ended 31 December 2020: S

Mr. ZHANG Bing Jun (resigned on 16 October 2020) 3/3 100%
RREEER-ZFE-FFL AL NAEFT)
Mr. WANG Zhiyong (appointed on 17 October 2020) N/A N/A
ITEBRER-_F_FFLH+HEZHE) 3 A TiEH
Mr ZUQO Zhi Min (appointed on 16 October 2020) N/A N/A

ERAE(R-ZFE_FFL AT NHEZE) i A T iE A
Mr. GAO Liang 3/3 100%
SERp e
Mr. WANG Gang 1/3 33%
THlxEE
Ms. CAO Hong Mei (resigned on 16 October 2020) 3/3 100%
BABMTET(R-ZFE-—FF+H+NHEHE)
Ms. PENG Bo (reSIQned on 16 October 2020) 3/3 100%

AR T (R=ZFZFF A1 NHEFE)
Mr. SHEN Hong Liang (appointed on 16 October 2020) N/A N/A
RS E (R E_FF+ AT NHEZF) T iE A TiE A
Mr. YU Ke Xiang 3/3 100%
TRELRE
Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P. 3/3 100%
Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin 3/3 100%
BIAESLE
Professor Japhet Sebastian LAW 3/3 100%
T’ SR HUIR
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. IP
Shing Hing, J.P. (Chairman), Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin
and Professor Japhet Sebastian LAW and an executive
Director, Mr. GAO Liang.

The Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee
approved by the Board are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include, but not limited to, the following:

1. reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, diversity, knowledge
and experience) of the Board and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the corporate strategy;

2. assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors and proposed independent non-
executive Directors; and

3. identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships for approval
by the Board.

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, the Company
adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
on 31 December 2018 which sets out the criteria and
procedures to be adopted when considering candidates to
be appointed or re-elected as directors of the Company.
The nomination procedures of the Nomination Committee
include identification and acknowledgement of qualified
individuals by the Nomination Committee, and review and
approval of such nominations by the Board. The Nomination
Committee will evaluate potential candidates considering
factors such as professional expertise, relevant experience,
personal ethics and integrity, as well as the board diversity
policy of the Company (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and
any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity
on the Board.
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Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, the
Company adopted the Board Diversity Policy on 29
August 2013 which sets out the approach to achieve and
maintain diversity in the Board in order for the Board to
maintain a competitive advantage. The Company seeks
to achieve board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to
the talents, skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race, age, gender and other qualities. The
Nomination Committee will consider and, if appropriate,
set measurable objectives to implement the Board
Diversity Policy and review such objectives to ensure
their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives. The Nomination
Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy from
time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

During the year, the composition of the Board
had the following changes. Mr. ZHANG Bing Jun,
Ms. CAO Hong Mei and Ms. PENG Bo resigned
on 16 October 2020. Mr. ZUO Zhi Min and Mr.
SHEN Hong Liang were appointed on 16 October
2020 and Mr. WANG Zhiyong was appointed on
17 October 2020. The Nomination Committee
assessed the candidates (i.e. Mr. WANG Zhiyong,
Mr. ZUO Zhi Min and Mr. SHEN Hong Liang) and
the retiring Directors (i.e. Mr. ZHANG Bing Jun, Mr.
WANG Gang and Professor Japhet Sebastian LAW) re-
elected at the 2020 AGM on criteria such as integrity,
independence, experience, skill and ability to commit time
and effort to carry out their duties and responsibilities
effectively etc. and made recommendations to the Board
for approval of the appointment and re-appointment
respectively.

BIBECEERTF  ARRIBZE—=
FNAZTNLBEBEAZ TLEE -
FHEIARRMAMERRRBFESTEN
ZHM WRFEFENHEFEDR - K
NAEEFRZIERREREETENS
Bl BIEETRRAEE - e i
HITHKER - 55 - Bk F& - £5
MEM=E - REZESHEZEELD |i
RV EEMNBENETZTIEBUR
Wit BEBBE  UEEREDAEE
&ﬁ*“?&aﬁL%HHEEHHm
cREBEZEGBIRRNZ TR
Mﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ

MRAFE - i%AZ@WﬁMT“
RREBAEE - BABLLIRY @ﬁi
F_%_%$+H+/\Eﬁ$€t T
E%$&$mh%iﬂﬂ_7_?¢+
A+ARBEZE TEBLEER T
TE+RATLEEZE-RERZEER
BARBAITEERAE TEREER
RS RS _ZEFRRBF
ARE T BEEENREEF(ARRESL
B TRIEEREXEHK) 2 mE
BYM &8 BEH - RERARERK
BHERETEREMNEEFEAE
EEgRftERs  HESRBAEFTBAZ
ERGEE -
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, two
meetings were held by the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee mainly discussed matters relating
to committee responsibility and operating mechanism as
well as areas to further utilize its functions. Attendance of
each member of the Nomination Committee are set out
as follows:

'_._Cofp'orate Governance Report

HE-_ZT-_ZTF+_A=+—HLHF
B IREZEQEMAMAgE®E T2
WEECHEMEEKS - W EIEDY
EENTERET TR REZESEK
BHFEERBEAET :

£ K

I

Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P. (Chairman)
BEXRBRELTFHL(FE)

Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin

BIBERE

Professor Japhet Sebastian LAW
G AT €

Mr. GAO Liang

St

2/2 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Professor
Japhet Sebastian LAW (Chairman), Mr. IP Shing Hing,
J.P. and Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin. Mr. GAO Liang, an
executive Director, was a member of the remuneration
committee during the year, but ceased to serve as a
member of the remuneration committee with effect from
1 December 2020.
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The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee
approved by the Board are available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The main
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include,
but not limited to, the following:

1.  making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Director’s
and senior management’s remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy;

2. reviewing and approving the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and

3. making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, two meetings
were held by the Remuneration Committee. The
Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration of
senior management, as well as the director’s fees, and
made recommendations to the Board on the director’s
fees and remuneration of the newly appointed Directors
and senior management respectively during the year.
Attendance of each member of the Remuneration
Committee are set out as follows:

REZSHAENTFTMHZESRAKE]
EEAH?“FE& AL T - HrE
TNETEREEEENRR

1. ?ﬁ%%&%i& NIRRT

EERBRERMABAE

E’U’r‘zﬁ%ﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁ@ﬂﬁ% AEZERE
e

N

REEESMI LR EARE
g & K HE A B BRI B S B R
&

3. MEFEE: fl%'JiﬂfTi%&m,&
BEIEABENHNEFS

W E_T_TF+T_A=t+—BLF
B -¥MEESARMAEE  T2Y
BREBABZHMGIE  ARESW
% iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ?i"%lﬁfﬁ/\@ﬁ%ﬁéfﬂﬁ
EZLEMEEAENESHS KM
MEESRHER FHEZEEEKE
hEgHBERNT -

Professor Japhet Sebastian LAW (Chairman)

BXEHIR(FE)

Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P.

ERBEREAFHL

Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin

BlaRE s

Mr. GAO Liang (ceased to serve as a member with
effect from 1 December 2020)

BRAE(R - E_EF —_H—AETHELTEZEE

5 )

2/2 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
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The remuneration of members of the senior management
by band for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out
below:

Nil to HK$1,000,000
0-1,000,000 % 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
1,000,001-1,500,000 % 7T

BE-_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HILEE
HR  REAWEESAETERENEHIE
I

11

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration
and the five highest paid employees as required to be
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules are set out in
Note 12 and Note 42 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”) in accordance with Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules. The Terms of Reference of the Audit
Committee approved by the Board are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
main responsibilities of the Audit Committee include, but
not limited to, the following:

1. primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor;

2. monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, the annual report and accounts, half-
year report and quarterly report (if any); and

3. reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. LAU
Siu Ki, Kevin (Chairman), Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P. and
Professor Japhet Sebastian LAW, where Mr. LAU Siu Ki,
Kevin is a qualified accountant.
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Four meetings were held by the Audit Committee during
the year ended 31 December 2020. At the meetings, the
Audit Committee reviewed and discussed the following
matters:

1. the audited annual results and financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019;

2. the unaudited interim results of the Group for the 6
months ended 30 June 2020;

3. financial reporting system and internal control
procedures;

4. relationship with the external auditor including
introducing and discussing the scope of services
it offers and the arrangements of work of external
auditory;

5.  review of the risk management and internal control
systems; and

6. function of corporate governance, and disclosure
policy of the Company.

The following table sets out the details of attendance of
each member of the Audit Committee at the meetings
held during the year ended 31 December 2020:

BE-T-EF+-AS+-HILF
- %@?E@E%ﬁT@ﬁ?%°@
#L BRREE@FLEYARTINUTSE
17

1. BE_Z-NF+ZA=+—HLt
EEZE%&W%&&EE%%%
&

2. RARBBRZBE_T_ZTHEAXA
=tHIEREAZAREE S HMB

it

3. MBMmMERGMAREZERZR -

4. HBEINEREZEEMEE - BREIBEE
BB 71 48 R0 R 5 1R 4 B AR 745 6 [ I
BIRTERHE

5. ERREBREBRLAMEEHNE: X

EEERBE M AT ERANE

o

v el

N
127

AT FEER AR AR E=F =
TEL-A=+-AILFE
BB -

Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin (Chairman)
BIBERE(F/E)

Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P.

BB REL FHL

Professor Japhet Sebastian LAW
G AT €

4/4 100%
4/4 100%
4/4 100%
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The Audit Committee has also reviewed the audited
annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed internal controls
and financial reporting matters. The Audit Committee
considered that:

1.  The Group’s accounting and management system
and controls procedures have been maintained at a
generally satisfactory and acceptable standard; and

2.  The interim and annual financial statements of
the Group for the relevant reporting periods are
complete and accurate in all respects.

RISK COMMITTEE

The Company established the Risk Committee (the
“Risk Committee”) in March 2016. The Risk Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P. (Chairman), Mr.
LAU Siu Ki, Kevin and Professor Japhet Sebastian LAW
and an executive Director, Mr. GAO Liang.

The main responsibilities of the Risk Committee include,
but not limited to, the following:

1. oversee the development, implementation and
maintenance of the Company’s overall risk
management framework and its risk appetite,
strategy, principles and policies, to ensure that they
are in line with relevant requirements under the
Listing Rules;

2. review the scope and quality of the Company’s
ongoing monitoring of risk management systems;

and

3. consider or advise the Board on any other risk-
related matters of the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, one meeting
was held by the Risk Committee. The Risk Committee
mainly discussed matters relating to the overview and
assessment of the Group’s principal risks. Attendance
of each member of the Risk Committee are set out as
follows:

HE-_ZT-_TF+_A=+—HLHF
B -REREEZEEER—AgH
ZHWMARANEZRRME KT -
EREBEZEEENENEERIB AN
-

Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P. (Chairman) 1/1 100%
EXRBREATFHL(FE)
Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin 1/1 100%
BIBERE
Professor Japhet Sebastian LAW 1/1 100%
G AT €
Mr. GAO Liang 11 100%
St

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE £ s s oy

FUNCTIONS

The Company has not established a corporate
governance committee and the corporate governance
functions are performed by the Audit Committee as
set out in its terms of reference. The Audit Committee
had considered the policies and practices for corporate
governance as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code, and reviewed the compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and the disclosures in this report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopted a dividend policy for the Company
with effect from 1 January 2019 (the “Dividend Policy”).
According to the Dividend Policy, the Company may
from time to time declare dividend to be paid to the
Shareholders up to the amount recommended by the
Board. When the Company determines whether to
declare any dividend and the amount of dividend to be
declared, the Board will take into account a number of
factors, including but not limited to:

1. the actual and expected financial performance of the
Group;

2. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

3. the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return
on equity and the relevant financial covenants;

4. any restrictions on payment of dividends that may
be imposed by the Group’s lenders;

5.  the Group’s expected working capital requirements
and future expansion plans;

6. general economic conditions, business cycle of
the Group’s business and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Group;
and

7. any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Company does not have any pre-determined
dividend payout ratio. The declaration, recommendation
and/or payment of dividends of the Company shall be
at the discretion of the Board. The Board endeavors to
maintain a balance between meeting the Shareholders’
expectations and prudent capital management with a
sustainable dividend policy.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY AND
REMUNERATION

The statement of responsibility to the financial statements
by PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor of
the Group, is set out in the section of “INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S REPORT” on pages 162 to 173 of this
Annual Report. The remuneration for the audit services
provided by the external auditor of the Group in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
RMB2.85 million. For the year ended 31 December 2020,
there was no non-audit services provided by the external
auditor of the Group to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable standards.

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group adopts appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently applied, and that all
applicable accounting standards are followed. The
Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group
had kept the accounting records, which disclose with
reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Group,
and facilitate the preparation of the financial statements
in accordance with the applicable accounting standards.
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The Directors have made reasonable enquiries as to EECOMASERSHE THERML
whether the Group has adequate resources. The Directors EEEH - ENUTEE  EFERAAN
are of the view that the Group will have sufficient working ERBEREERBEEN T - —F—

capital to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall H—

HRERRK+—EAAZNHRETH

due in the next twelve months from 1 January 2021, based BB

on the following considerations:

° The Group is expected to remain profitable and °
continue to generate stable operating cash inflows
from its future business operations;

o The Group has extended the repayment date of a .
borrowing of approximately HK$943 million which was
originally repayable on demand (at the request of the
lender by serving a seven-day prior notice) to become
repayable on 1 May 2022 (or prior to that maturity
date at the discretion of the Group) pursuant to a
borrowing renewal agreement entered into between
the Group and the lender on 10 February 2021; and

o On 26 February 2021 and 10 March 2021, the o
Group entered into banking facility agreements with
a reputable commercial bank (a PRC incorporated
bank which is listed on both the Main Board of the
Shanghai Stock Exchange and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited) pursuant to which the Group can
draw down 1-year term bank borrowings of RMB200
million (equivalent to approximately HK$238 million)
and RMB1,000 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,188 million) respectively from the aforesaid listed
commercial bank. As of the date of these consolidated
financial statements, the Group has already drawn
down a bank borrowing of RMB200 million under the
aforesaid banking facilities.

TEHREBRRNER L EFES
EERBNEERBENKLER SR
A

BREAEBEERARZZT=—F
ZATHITUMERERHE - &
& B #/4 943,000,000 78 7T K & X
ZHHHBEERE-ZE-_ R A
—B(ZBEANEERZE AR
BEE) BEGBRRLAKREXK
(EBEFARBEEESABINNE
KTR)EE : &

RZZBZ—FZAZ+"HEZZ
——®=ZA+H AEEE—FER
FEEFMAK IR EEESFR S
ITREBEBBMEZHMERRAE
REMHMBEERITEZRT
MEWHZE B AXEEAH 5
Bt FTERTIRR —FH
8 17 18 X A R % 200,000,000 7T
(HB& 7 #9238,000,000 % 7T) & A
R #1,000,000,000 7t (8 & K 4
1,188,000,000/8 L) - RZE A&
HUBHRERBEE  AEBEEIRNE
MIRTTREE THIRITERARE
200,000,000 7T °

In view of the above, the Directors are confident that there &ML LRt - EEBELAEEE A
will be sufficient financial resources available to the Group TRVBERNFELLEER  WEK
to enable it to continue as a going concern and hence have BRFELERELERRUEHMBRE -

prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining
and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. The risk
management and internal control systems are to
safeguard the assets of the Group and the Shareholders’
investment and to ensure the reliability of financial
reporting as well as compliance with the relevant
requirements of the applicable rules of the Stock
Exchange.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
management of the Company provided training to the
internal audit team, accounting team and operation
team, so as to ensure effective implementation of the
risk management and internal control systems and
procedures. The Audit Committee paid great attention to
risk management and internal controls and made efforts
to improve the risk management and internal control
systems during the year ended 31 December 2020.

During 2020, the Internal Control and Legal Department
continued to adhere to the principle of “supervision,
service and guidance”, and was committed to promoting
the establishment of the Company’s internal control and
compliance framework, building a modernized enterprise
supervision system, improving the Company’s operational
efficiency and reducing systematic risks.
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In respect of the establishment and improvement of
the internal control and compliance framework, through
theoretical learning, internal research, the external
communication and benchmarking, the Group took the
first step in the exploration of the management and control
model and departmental transformation of the Group;
the preparation of a list of departmental authorities and
clarification of the authority limits and responsibilities
of each department; and the preliminary establishment
of internal control and legal management framework
for regional companies. The Group strengthened the
management and control of subsidiaries and expanded
authorization; prepared the compliance assessment
proposal of subsidiaries; implemented the internal
authorization plan of subsidiaries on a pilot basis; and
explored the classification authorization of subsidiaries,
so as to improve the operation efficiency of the Company
while controlling risks. The Group carried out the
“Risk Management and Control Quality Project”; and
continuously promoted the Company to establish and
improve the internal control system of risk analysis,
assessment and response under strategic guidance, risk
orientation and supervision.

In terms of risk prevention and control and governance,
on one hand, the Company strengthened audit supervision
by completing 12 internal audit projects throughout the
year, which covered 20 subsidiaries, and promoting the
standardization of the audited entities in terms of capital,
assets, expenses, contracts, seals, procurement and
operation. On the other hand, the Company consolidated
the foundation by issuing the revised audit opinions on
the Company’s rules and regulations from the perspective
of internal control, compliance and legality; revising and
improving five internal control, audit and legal management
systems including the Measures for Authorization
Management and the Measures for System Management;
and compiling and issuing the List of Integrity Risk
Prevention and Control based on the Negative List
of Jobbery and Malpractice, so as to strengthen the
supervision on key areas and key positions involving rights,
money, personnel and objects management during the
Company’s daily routine. At the same time, the Company
put more efforts in carrying out the multi-level and multi-
angle internal control and compliance training, and actively
created a good corporate environment of “integrity and
entrepreneurship”.
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In terms of handling major litigation cases, the Company
provided legal consultation services on relevant projects,
labor employment and other major legal issues caused
by the COVID-19 outbreak. The Company was not
involved in any legal disputes or litigations arising from
the COVID-19 outbreak. During the year, the Company
obtained a favourable judgment in respect of the litigation
cases related to trade receivables and continued to follow
up the execution.

The Directors conducted annual review on the risk
management and internal control systems to ensure
the effectiveness and adequacy of the systems. The
Company convened meetings regularly to review the
finance, operation and compliance controls and to
consider the adequacy of resources, staff qualification
and experience, training programs and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting function. The Directors are of the view that the
existing risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate for the Group.

(@)  The process used by the Group to identify, evaluate
and manage significant risks is summarised as
follows:

(1) Risk identification: identify risks that may pose
a potential impact on the Group’s business
and operations through the Risk Committee,
the management and the internal control
department;

(2) Risk evaluation: evaluate the identified risks
based on the likelihood of the occurrence and
impact level of the risk;

(3) Response to risk: according to the evaluation
results on the magnitude of the risk, risk
management strategies are determined by
the internal control department, and through
appropriate mechanisms of the Company to
ensure the effective implementation of internal
control procedures to prevent and reduce the
risks.
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The main features of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems are the focus
on establishment of a sound internal control
environment, continuous improvement in risks
evaluation, activities control, information and
communication, and internal supervision so as
to enhance the Company’s operating efficiency
and ensure the reliability of financial reporting and
effective compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, in order to avoid the Company’s assets
suffering from any losses as a result of fraud.

The Board is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. However, the risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

In relation to the handling and dissemination of
inside information in accordance with the Listing
Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Group
has adopted measures including raising awareness
of confidentiality of inside information of the Group,
issuing notices regarding “black-out” period and
restrictions on dealings to directors and employees
on a regular basis, and ensuring compliance when
handling and disclosing inside information.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged and appointed Mr. YIP Wai Yin
(“Mr. YIP”), a Hong Kong practicing solicitor, as the
company secretary of the Company. During the year,
the primary contact person at the Company with Mr. YIP
was Mr. WANG Long (“Mr. WANG”), the Deputy General
Manager of the Company and the secretary to the Board.
Mr. WANG had day-to-day involvement in the affairs
of the Company and handled the corporate secretarial
matters of the Company together with the company
secretary.

The company secretary of the Company had duly
complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking no
less than 15 hours of the relevant professional training
during the year.

Mr. WANG resigned as a Deputy General Manager of
the Company and the secretary to the Board with effect
from 13 January 2021, Mr. YIN Fu Gang (“Mr. YIN”) was
appointed as a Deputy General Manager of the Company
and the secretary to the Board with effect from 13
January 2021. After Mr. Wang’s resignation, the primary
contact person at the Company with Mr. YIP is Mr. YIN.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

(a) Procedures for requisitioning a special general
meeting

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at
general meetings of the Company may, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company signed and deposited in accordance
with the bye-laws of the Company, Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, require the Directors to call
a special general meeting for the transaction of
business specified in the requisition.
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(c)
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meetings

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth
of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right to vote at general meetings of the Company
or not less than 100 Shareholders may, at their
expense, provide a written request to the attention
of the company secretary of the Company signed
and deposited in accordance with the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

Communication with Shareholders and
investors

General meetings of the Company provide a direct
forum of communication between Shareholders
and the Board. Shareholders are welcome to put
forward enquiries to the Board or the personnel at
management level, chairman of the Board (or in his
absence, an executive Director), the chairmen of the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Audit Committee and Risk Committee (or in
their absence, other members of the respective
committees) and where applicable, the independent
board committee, will commonly be present and
available to answer questions. Shareholders may
also contact the company secretary of the Company
to direct their written enquires.

The Company is committed to enhancing
communications and relationships with its investors.
Designated senior management maintains an open
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to
keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.

The Company also maintains a website at
www.binhaiinv.com, where updates on the
Company’s business development, operations,
financial information and news can always be found.
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As regards shareholders’ communication policy,
please refer to the procedures made available under
the Corporate Governance section of the Company’s
website at www.binhaiinv.com.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries
and concerns to the Board in writing through the
company secretary of the Company whose contact
details are as follows:

Hong Kong
Address: Suites 3205-07, 32/F, Tower Two,
Times Square, 1 Matheson Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2572 9228

Fax: (852) 2572 9283

Email: prd@binhaiinv.com

Tianjin

Address:  Suites 501-502, Block 6, East Area,

Airport Business Park, 80 Huanhe Road
North, Airport Industrial Park, Tianjin,

China
Tel: 86-22-5880 1800
Fax: 86-22-5880 1801
P.C.: 300308
E-mail: wsg@binhaiinv.com

The Memorandum of Association and New Bye-
laws of the Company have been posted on the
website of the Company at www.binhaiinv.com and
the designated website of the Stock Exchange at
www.hkexnews.hk. There was no change to the
Memorandum of Association and New Bye-laws of
the Company during the year ended 31 December
2020.

For identification purposes only
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (this “Report”) provides an up-to-date
overview of Binhai Investment Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries’ (hereinafter
collectively the “Group” or “Binhai Investment”)
sustainable development in 2020, mainly addressing
material issues relating to the Group’s sustainability
development that stakeholders concern themselves
with. This Report aims to provide key stakeholders
with a better understanding of the Group’s
sustainability development concepts, measures, and
performance. This Report is intended to be read in
conjunction with this Annual Report (in particular the
“Corporate Governance Report” contained within),
providing a comprehensive overview of the Group’s
environmental, social, and governance performance.

1.1. Scope of this Report

The Group’s core businesses include the
construction of gas pipeline networks, gas
pipeline installation service, sales of piped
natural gas, gas passing through service
and sales of bottled natural gas, and these
are primarily based in Tianjin, Beijing, Hebei
Province, Shandong Province, Jiangsu
Province, Hunan Province, Hainan Province,
and Zhejiang Province. Unless remarked
otherwise, this Report contains information
pertaining to the Group’s direct operations in
mainland of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), which includes the head office in Tianjin
and subsidiaries in various provinces and cities.
Unless otherwise stated, the information and
data disclosed in this Report covers the period
from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (the
“Reporting Period”).
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1.2.

1.3.

&

Reporting Framework

The Group has prepared this Report in
accordance with the latest Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide
under Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing
Rules (the “Listing Rules”) of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX”).
This Report adheres to the reporting principles
of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide, and complies with the
mandatory disclosure requirements and
“Comply or Explain” provisions therein.

Reporting Principles

The following reporting principles have been
applied in the preparation of this Report:

— Materiality: The process for disclosing
material issues in this Report and how
they were assessed are described in
Chapter 2.2

— Quantitative: Details of the methodologies
of emissions and energy consumption
used in this Report can be found in
Chapter 7

— Consistency: The methodologies used
in this Report are generally consistent
with those used in previous years. Where
there are changes in relevant factors such
as methodologies or key performance
indicators, they are indicated in Chapter 7

1.2
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1.4.

1.5.

Reporting Statement

This Report introduces the Group’s concepts,
actions taken, and results achieved within the
Reporting Period. The information disclosed
within the Report is sourced from the Group’s
documents and statistics. The Board is
responsible for the reliability, accuracy,
objectiveness and completeness of the
information. This Report has been prepared
in Traditional Chinese and English. Should
there be any discrepancies between the two
versions, the Traditional Chinese version shall
prevail.

Feedback

Thanks to various stakeholders’ participation
and support in the preparation of this Report,
the Group is able to better understand its
progress toward sustainable development.
For any further information on environmental,
social and governance aspects, please refer to
the Company’s website (www.binhaiinv.com).
The Company looks forward to receiving your
valuable comments and feedback, and this may
be directed to: prd@binhaiinv.com.
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ABOUT THE GROUP

The Group is principally engaged in investments and
operations of city gas pipeline networks, gas pipeline
installation service, sales of piped natural gas, gas
passing through service and sales of bottled natural
gas in mainland of the PRC. Binhai Investment has
always strived to expand the gas market in the PRC,
and was one of the first foreign-funded enterprises
in the public utilities industry in the PRC. Over the
last decade or so, the Group has been committed
to aligning with the national policy of the PRC as
a priority, providing clean energy for industrial and
commercial users, as well as urban citizens.

2.1. Sustainable Development Management

The Group deeply recognises the importance of
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
internal control and risk management, and that
a good internal control and risk management
system is closely linked to the sustainable
development of an enterprise. The Board
assumes full responsibility for the Group’s ESG
strategy and reporting content. The Group
established an ESG Reporting Leading Group
and ESG Reporting Working Group to manage
and implement sustainability related matters,
both of which regularly report to the Board.

The ESG Reporting Leading Group is led by
the general manager and comprises senior
management, whose responsibilities include
determining the ESG reporting work plan, and
reviewing the reporting framework and content.
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The ESG Reporting Working Group is led by
the Board of Directors office and comprises
key staff from relevant departments, whose
responsibilities include: formulating the ESG
reporting work plan, preparing the reporting
framework, organising team members to
compile and collate information, and preparing
the first draft of the report.

The Group has established a risk management
and governance system and regularly evaluates
and continuously monitors its effectiveness
in protecting the interests of the Group and
its shareholders and prompting the Group’s
sustainable development. The Group’s
risk management and governance system
incorporates the identification, assessment
and management of ESG risks, and focuses
on nine categories of risks, namely financial
risks, safety risks, compliance risks, market
risks, gas source risks, cost risks, engineering
risks, asset risks and human resources risks.
The management conducts active and effective
communications with various departments
to ensure a comprehensive identification of
material risks, and to assess the probability
of occurrence and degree of impact, and
to formulate corresponding risk response
strategies. The Group’s Internal Control and
Legal Department issues risk management
reports annually to the Risk Committee under
the Board to analyse the major risks and
summarise the risk response solutions. The
ESG Reporting Leading Group and the ESG
Reporting Working Group regularly collect and
consolidate ESG-related information, identify
and assess the ESG risks involved and make
recommendations on risk responses, and report
to the Board in the form of issue reports.
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The Board participates in the oversight of ESG
issues by reviewing and identifying material
ESG issues for the Group, regularly reviewing
ESG-related issues and reviewing annual ESG
reports etc. Based on the Group’s overall
safety management program and the progress
of its implementation, the Board reviews the
results of safety management work periodically
(including the actual safety investment, results
of management and areas for improvement)
and determines safety management principles,
safety investment and other issues for the
next period in the Board meetings. The
Group will continue to improve its sustainable
development management, set relevant ESG
targets and review the progress regularly.

Stakeholder Participation

Ongoing communication with stakeholders is
an integral part of the Group’s daily operations,
and an important way to examine potential risks
and business opportunities. The Group’s key
stakeholders include shareholders, government
and regulators, customers, employees,
business partners, suppliers, media, and the
surrounding communities.

2.2,
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In 2020, the Group reviewed and adjusted from the
existing list of ESG issues in accordance with the
latest ESG Reporting Guide of the HKEX, mainly
updating and supplementing the existing list to
enable a more complete and inclusive coverage of
relevant issues in the list of ESG material issues.
Subsequently, the Group collected opinions from the
management of the head office and subsidiaries on
the importance of each ESG issue, and the Board
conducted the final determination and prioritization
of the materiality of ESG issues. The updated list of
material ESG issues is as follows:
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ATy & FCESG #E 155 )M1E 1R S
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TEHHER EEESGHEEER
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Clean Energy Use

Talent Development and

Safe and Stable Gas Supply

RERABREL

BRREIR{E Management ZEEBTHE

AT B b ey EE IR
Energy Efficiency Career Development of High Quality Products and
BEJR B A R R Employees Services

BIBEER = o B B E m B RES
Environmental Protection at Employee Health and Safety Improvement of Customer
Construction Sites Management Satisfaction
M LIRIBRE BTRFERZ2ERE RagFPmEE
Establishing a Green Office Protection of Employee Rights | Supply Chain Environmental
System and Benefits and Social Risk Management

B TR

HEHEIRE Lt & R E S

Management of Exhaust

Diversity of Welfare Policies

Screening and Managing

Emission ZIERE MR Suppliers
RERBERE 1B fhE e IR R
Addressing Climate Change Anti-corruption

JE SRR b S ¥=Vi]

Annual Report 2020 — = — TG,

55



56

Through the process of materiality assessment,
Binhai Investment has strengthened its
understanding and management of material ESG
issues, allowing it to be well poised to seize
ESG related opportunities and reduce ESG-
related risks. Following the careful consideration
and corresponding actions taken by the Group’s
management against these material issues, the
contents of this Report will revolve around these
material issues and actions taken by the Group.
We look forward to maintaining our communication
with all stakeholders to continuously understand the
issues material to them, whilst enabling the Group to
better review its own progress towards sustainable
development.

GREEN DEVELOPMENT

Leveraging on its long experience in the industry, its
safe and trustworthy service quality, its professional
expertise as well as the close relationship with
the local government, Binhai Investment has a
coverage of gas businesses that encompasses
seven provinces and two municipalities across
the PRC, and strives to become a top integrated
energy service provider nationwide. Following the
energy plan under the 14th Five-Year Plan and
the confirmation of “Carbon-neutrality” goals by
2060, the domestic demand for clean energy grows
rapidly. In line with national policy guidelines and
the multi-pronged market reform of natural gas,
the Group has leveraged the advantages of mixed
ownership reforms to further actively promote
the supply, utilisation and promotion of gas, and
is committed to playing a role in environmental
protection through inputting sustainable
development efforts more effectively. At the same
time, with the overall objective of energy saving
and emission reduction, the Group ensures that
energy consumption matches the Group’s growth
scientifically, while taking effective measures to
achieve efficient resource utilisation.

Binhai Investment Company Limited & &% & GR A7

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIZ - HERERRE

BEIRE RIUTEEESGH B A 1#
eRFEEEESGHE BN ER -
BEBERMREN HBREERTY
ESGHEEZZENRANERE -
ABENARKERERENEER
MRS ERAREHNEREY
ERMZENEE MAKERIH
HEARITE - WITHRET EEF
mIAR T BEE - ARE T R
FEMZMEE T WEEH - RFER
SEEFRAE S ARERRN
HER -

RERE

REBERERANITELSR 2
ASERRBMEMEZEME - UKk
i F BN R BE - MRES
ERESMEECEMT © NFK
Z%W_/MLE}UIZ?/E}@E/J?%@% ° [%
EFEXR[+MHEA ]8R 8 & 2060
Flixpf]BENEE  BRNE
BEERFRIRFER - RKRERK
KEEMES - BEHZFHELENK
RRATISEHE  RNEBKIETRE
FIBERIRENRE - E—FBEERE
HERREHE - NAMEE - Bh
FREAYMARABEZERT
16 HIRBRELINEHRIER - [
RAEBEAREEH RN ERER
5 BREREREREENER
RIZTE - RINKIRARIEBIAE
Raye&ERMA -



In its daily operations, the Group strictly complies
with laws and regulations of the PRC and the place
of operation relating to the emission of exhaust
gases and greenhouse gases, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste. During the Reporting Period, the
Group did not have any non-compliance incidents
relating to the abovementioned aspects (Please
refer to Chapter 8 for a detailed list of laws and
regulations).

3.1. Promoting Clean Energy Use

The Group attaches great importance to
environmental protection and takes the
establishment of China Oil & Gas Pipeline
Network Corp (“PipeChina”) as an opportunity
to actively promote the popularisation of
clean energy, to increase the utilisation rate of
pipeline networks in the service locations, to
undertake projects such as “gas-fired boilers”,
“smart energy”, “Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei coal
to gas”, and to provide compressed natural
gas (CNG) and liquefied natural gas (LNG),
vehicle gas refuelling, LNG ship refuelling. In
the future, the Group will shoulder its mission,
and continue to promote the popularisation and
development of clean energy.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had
around 173,400 coal-to-gas customers and
recorded sales volume of piped natural gas
of 1.763 billion cubic metres, equivalent to
replacing 2.345 million tonnes of coal, so as to
reduce pollutant emissions and promote clean
energy use.
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3.2. Environmental Protection in Operation

The Group fully advocates for sustainable
operations. In order to implement actions for
environmental protection, the Group has been
closely monitoring and doing its utmost to
reduce the nuisance and pollutant emissions
caused during its operations. At the same time,
the Group also carries out gas passing through
service through PipeChina, so that multiple gas
sources can be accessible from a single source
point, thereby reducing the environmental
impact caused by the installation of pipelines
and the earthworks through avoiding the
construction of transmission pipelines.

The Group’s impacts on the ecological
environment are mainly reflected in the
mechanical noise pollution, small amount
of residual soil waste and atmospheric
emissions generated during the installation of
pipelines and in earthworks. To reduce these
impacts during construction, the Group has
formulated Safety Management Regulations
for Construction and Safety Management
Regulations for Engineering Construction,
which specify the environmental protection
requirements during construction and are
implemented by the engineers of the Group’s
subsidiaries and personnel from construction
units. Relevant specific measures include:
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In order to reduce residual earthwork
generated during construction works of
gas pipeline connections, backfill methods
are used. For the earthwork generated
from other processes, it is handed over to
third parties authorised by local municipal
and environmental departments for further
processing. Vehicles transporting sand or
soil are required to seal loads to prevent
leakage and spillage, and dispose of
them at designated points in accordance
with the requirements of local authorities.
Soil on site which cannot be dumped
or disposed in a timely manner must be
stockpiled and covered,;

Construction sites that are located on
major roads or places that local authorities
require to have enclosed construction
must be provided with a continuous
barrier of at least 1.8 metres in height,
leaving no gaps;

Effective directional drills are adopted in
drilling works, improving drilling accuracy
and minimising unnecessary destruction to
the land;

No burning of toxic and hazardous
construction chemicals at construction
sites;

To address atmospheric emissions
generated from mechanical operations,
the Group strictly requires the use
of machinery with tail gas emissions
that meet environmental monitoring
requirements. To reduce the use of
power generators, the Group encourages
the temporary use of electricity during
construction processes, and machinery
that make use of clean energy;
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— When constructions occur at night, the
equipment that generate noise pollution
is required to be placed to the side away
from residential areas. Noise levels are
prohibited to exceed 55 decibels between
10 pm and 6 am the following day. Under
special circumstances and progress
requirements, noise reduction and sound
insulation measures are taken, or work is
prohibited altogether. Where construction
sites are located near residential areas,
vehicles entering and exiting sites in
the evening are strictly prohibited from
honking their horns, and required to lightly
onload and offload cargo;

— Construction work that may generate
noise and environmental pollution should
be suspended during university entrance
examinations, high school entrance
examinations, major holidays and special
requests from local authorities.

Due to the nature of the Group’s business,
some natural gas will be released during the
construction of pipelines and operation stages.
In order to reduce the environmental impacts
and increase operational safety level, the Group
has adopted new technologies to reduce the
release of natural gas in pipeline network:
during the construction stage of pipelines, new
technologies such as in-service pipeline welding
and opening and PE pipe clamping are adopted
to reduce the release of natural gas. During the
operation stage, each subsidiary is equipped
with intelligent infrared detectors and anti-
corrosion layer detection technology to reduce
the occurrence of natural gas leaks in both
the precautionary and control aspects. At the
same time, the Group has reserved openings
at the preliminary planning stage based on the
forecast of potential markets to reduce natural
gas discharges arising from the construction of
the main pipeline network at a later stage.
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During the Group’s operations, different types
of waste are generated, mainly including used
waste metres, used pipes, used odourant
waste drums and used batteries. Used waste
metres and steel pipes are major wastes
generated in pipe-connection works and
operation. The relevant handling procedures
are as follows: used metres are classified and
treated according to the types of metre. The
batteries in the integrated circuit cards of
metres are dismantled and treated by waste
type, to prohibit the re-entry of declared used
waste metres to the market. Used waste
metres must be compressed or drilled and
photographed for documentation. Under the
supervision of the Operating Centre, used
metres are subject to strict approval and
declaration before being discarded and sold
for recycling. The remaining gas in the waste
steel pipes must be fully discharged with
the use of nitrogen or water, and treated
properly alongside with valve chambers and
other objects. Where necessary, this should
be performed by sealing and disassembling
of wastes to ensure safety. All information
concerning the replacement of steel pipes and
location of old steel pipes must be reported to
the relevant government department for filing.
Used batteries and used odourant waste drums
will be handled by third-party companies. The
revenue from recycled waste must be credited
in a ledger in accordance with the Group’s
rules.
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In order to reduce the waste generated
during operations, the Group has adopted
various measures, including: adopting new
technologies to extend the lifetime of pipelines,
such as strengthening the level of anti-
corrosion, advancing inspection, replacing with
PE pipes and other measures to reduce waste
generation. The number of odourant waste
drums will mainly increase with the increase
of the Group’s gas supply volume. In order to
reduce the generation of the odourant waste
drums, the Group has tested the odourant
content of natural gas through intelligence
equipment in real time, so as to add in an
appropriate amount of odourant liquid.

The Group’s total consumption of natural gas
for domestic and operational use in 2020 is
approximately 1.045 million cubic metres.
The main source of carbon dioxide emissions
is natural gas for operational use. It is used
to heat up the natural gas being delivered
through the pipelines, to prevent the creation
of ice blocks due to low temperature after
regulating the pressure, thereby ensuring safe
operation of gas supply equipment. In order
to reduce the carbon dioxide emissions, while
the temperature of natural gas at the outlet
of the pressure regulator remains above the
dew point, the Group strictly controls the
temperature of boilers and reasonably adjusts
the start-up and shutdown of boilers to reduce
the amount of gas used for operation.
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3.3. Establishing a Green Office System 3.3 BEWRABREY

On the basis of the Group’s strict compliance
with national and local governments’
management requirements related to the
emission of exhaust gases and greenhouse
gases, discharges into water and land,
and the generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste, the Group has established
a green office system, and has further refined
and implemented policies in all the above
areas. The Group issued the Guidance on
the Standardisation of Office Premises and
updates it from time to time, which includes
various recommendations on energy saving
and emission reduction and promotes the use
of green raw materials in the construction and
renovation of office premises. At the same
time, the Group monitors the costs of water,
electricity and fuel through annual and monthly
expense budgeting, formulates annual and
monthly expense plans and strictly controls
them, formulates assessment measures and
creates reward and punishment system for
relevant units based on the achievement of the
expenses.

The Group pays attention to the resources it
consumes, regularly monitors the consumption
of electricity, water, natural gas, and other
resources used during the daily operations of
its offices, strengthens management methods
to reduce water and electricity consumption,
and strengthens the control of the budgeting
management centre on resources consumption.
It follows Guidance on the Standardisation of
Office Premises, actively renovates the water
facilities in old offices, and gradually replaces
existing old and inefficient electrical equipment,
so as to achieve the goal of reducing energy
consumption while meeting the needs in
offices.
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In terms of electricity consumption, the Group
prioritise the use of energy-efficient LED
lightings and electrical equipment with efficient
energy use, and requires staff to switch off
electronic equipment and office air-conditioning
that are not in use during non-working
hours. Through adopting a Central Control
and Monitoring System (CCMS) and Building
Management System (BMS), the Group divided
the office lighting into several zones, installed
automatic lighting control in different zones
and used energy-efficient lighting devices, to
enhance the lighting efficiency. In terms of
heating, ventilation and air conditioning control,
the Group installed variable speed drives and
pumps and fans that are adjustable to actual
needs, avoided installing air-conditioners in
areas with direct sunlight, and regularly cleaned
the filters of air-conditioners and draught fan
to further increase energy efficiency. In 2019,
in response to the Group’s growth demand,
the head office increased the office and
canteen areas etc., and consulted professional
designers to optimise the overall electrical
system. In 2020, the Group also enhanced
its property management model by requiring
administrators to pay attention to the usage
status of electrical appliances in the office and
to switch off electrical equipment when not
needed.
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The Group pays undivided attention to
conserving water usage and promotes the use
of water saving devices such as water saving
valves and taps, and strictly controls daily
water expenses. To achieve the Group’s goal of
efficiently using water resources, the following
measures are implemented: (1) arranging
a maintenance officer to conduct regular
checks on water metre readings and to carry
out leakage tests of concealed water pipes;
(2) installing dual flush toilets; (3) installing
urinals and water tabs with water-saving labels
and infra-red sensors; (4) installing water-
saving taps in sinks; (5) advocating water-
saving through emails, posters, intranet and
memos placed in toilets; (6) regularly providing
employees with environmental protection-
related training courses; and (7) strongly
advocating for the use of water saving
equipment by promoting water optimising
facilities during construction, renovation and
repair works. In the Reporting Period, the
Group does not face any issues in water
sourcing.
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To reduce the environmental impacts of
office waste, the Group has strengthened the
cooperation with office equipment suppliers
to implement full lifecycle management of
office equipment. The Group has also required
administrators to check office equipment
regularly so as to conduct preventive
management and immediate repair to ensure
the facilities are safe and long lasting. The
Group promotes the repairing and reuse of
old electronic appliances, recycles obsolete
equipment collectively and bans the random
disposal of office equipment, to reduce the
generation and environmental impacts of
electronic wastes. Office wastes are sorted
and processed by type. Used ink cartridges
are recycled by suppliers. Used plastic
bottles are sent to recycling company for
further processing. Hazardous wastes such
as batteries, electronic wastes and mercury-
containing light tubes are collected by the
Group’s property management company, and
sent to a third-party for sorting and processing.

In the process of gradually promoting the
standardisation of office premises, the Group
strengthens the use and replacement of
environmental-friendly materials and facilities,
advocates the principles of selecting low-
carbon and low-energy consumption materials.
The Group has put the optimisation of various
types of office premises in batches on the
agenda of the Group’s 14th Five-Year Plan.
Currently, the Group’s head office has taken
the lead in replacing LED energy-saving
lightings, water-saving taps and water-saving
toilets and so on, which will be gradually
promoted to its subsidiaries.
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In terms of vehicle management, the Group
intensifies its vehicle reform and actively
phases out and replaces the Group’s old
vehicles, reducing the number of corporate
vehicles year by year. The Group also issued
the Administrative Measures for Business Travel
and updates it from time to time, to encourage
the Group’s field staff to commute green by
using public transport. At the same time, the
Group formulated the Administrative Measures
for Drivers, requiring drivers to maintain their
vehicles and drive scientifically. The Group also
strengthens drivers’ training, formulates annual
and monthly driver training plans, and improves
the service standards of drivers. The Group
gradually promotes the driving inspection
platform, monitors travel trajectory and fuel
consumption levels of the Group’s vehicles, so
as to avoid non-essential use of vehicles, and
to reduce fossil fuel consumption and related
greenhouse gas emissions.

At the same time, the Group increases its
publicity and leverages its platform of supplying
green energy to advocate energy conservation
and environmental protection principles to the
Group’s employees and customers, including
the reduction of indirect greenhouse gases
emissions caused by energy consumption in
households, offices and industrial operation,
and minimising water wastage.
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3.4. Actively Tackling Climate Change

3.4 REBEHRERE L

The Group understands the physical risks
climate change can bring, such as extreme
weathers, as well as transition risks brought
by relevant policy changes. Therefore, the
Group evaluates the impacts of climate change
continuously and formulates the prevention
and risk response policies and strategies, such
as the Contingency Plan for Natural Disaster
Risks and Safety Management Regulations
for Engineering Construction, devoted to
continuously enhancing the Group’s ability
to respond to related risks and to seize the
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climate-related opportunities, thus better

tackling climate change.

Physical Risks Climate change
B may bring potential
risks to project
construction.
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For major projects, the Group employs
professional institutes to conduct
comprehensive assessments on its
hydrological, geological and climate
conditions of the projects during
preliminary stage and to publish
professional reports, so as to forecast the
potential risks brought by climate change
factors to projects, and conducts targeted
risk prevention measures accordingly.
REESTHEKRER - EATHARGPREE
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Natural Disasters
BAKE

Natural disasters
such as typhoons,
rainstorms, floods
and freezing
weathers can cause
damages to gas
equipment and
facilities and affect
gas supply.

FeE - J|FY - 3K -
KEREFEBARKERER
YRR REREE
REEFHRELX - &
245

Before natural disasters, special safety
checks are conducted on the fragile areas
of gas equipment. Gas equipment will be
rectified, reinforced, protected and repaired
when discovering any safety hazards, to
ensure it can withstand the risks of natural
disasters.
EEAKERE A - STEHMRRBERIE
SHSREETEEL S RET(E - HERH
ZEEBETEN - NE - & - #1E- ®
RRRRERIEEBEEB AXET R ER

The Contingency Plan for Natural Disaster
Risks is formulated and updated. Purchase
of emergency supplies is made annually.
HETEFCEAXFTRBRESTER) 8F
BERSERDE

The Group organises employees to
participate in natural disaster safety
trainings and drills. Their ability to respond
to natural disasters are increased after
continual trainings and rehearsals, to
ensure operational and security work can
be proceeded normally under extremely
cold weathers.

HEE TETEANELEEIINEROR
B ETERIEI BB P ALK - 1BER
BAKENERERE N  BRELSRRATE
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The Group’s fixed assets are insured, so
as to minimise the potential damage by
natural disasters and transfer the potential
risks through insurances.
HAEENBETEEETRRE  HEALE
AR MBREERE - BBRRERE
BEERR
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Extreme Extreme weather 1. The Group formulated and updates the

Weathers can affect Safety Management Regulations for

BHRR construction quality Engineering Construction to enhance the
and safety and quality and safety of construction and
cause threats to improve resilience to adverse weather
employee safety conditions.
BERRAKZEMRT REEFIELEFCIRRZRL2EERT)
EENZE:  HEBESR REEILEENZE  URSHEBLRAKE
I%% frH e BE

2. In Safety Management Regulations for

Engineering Construction, it clearly states
not to carry out open-air work at height in
the event of fog, high temperature, cloudy
rain, thunder and lightning or gale force 6
or above, and to stop work in the event
of heavy rain, typhoon or continuous high
temperature.
(IR ERL 2 EIERTE )T AR EREN
THEPERE =k BN ZFEIH6HK
N ERBRRTNETBRASZEHELIIESR - 8
FW - BR - FESRELEBIESE

Weather Forecast| Weather forecast 1. The Group formulates contingency plans

RRELTaA can be uncertain, for heating seasons, and at the same time
which can cause actively liaise with the upstream gas units
excess or shortage to reasonably deploy the gas volumes
in gas source of subsidiaries, to ensure a maximum
indicators. efficiency in using gas supply indicators.
RRE(CBAFED FIEHEZTHAERSTER - ANBEREE L
HEM - ERCRIR MRIREL  AERFARSHBLARINRE -
EIR BRI SR FR RIS FIRIEE A e B &AL
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Warm Winters

Warm winters can

Different comprehensive measures are

increase in the gas
use by heat-seeking
consumers, which
causes significant
pressure to maintain
contingency gas
supply during
heating seasons.
EXSBURERP
ARERKIEERE
= ERBRKEERE
FRESRHEES

BREZRR lead to a reduction implemented to increase income and
in corporates’ winter cut costs, such as improving the level of
natural gas use, metering control, acquiring new customers,
which reduces the treating hidden problems in pipeline
overall profit of gas. network, thus to compensate for the profit
RLGEFMRDE loss due to the reduction of gas use in
ZEMNARERD - warm winters.
18 17 385 B SR B EE R A BBRSABERKTY  HEHAPF B2
EESLS i EREFGRERREMER  BMAERELHR

ERMDATEK B AEE R
Cold Winters Cold winters can The ability to maintain contingency gas
EERRA lead to a drastic supply is enhanced through connecting

with first-hand gas sources. In 2020, a
total of 4 first-hand gas sources were
connected and in service, effectively
ensuring the gas supply during heating
season.

RBEE -FRR - ERESRMEES
2020 F HA R —FREVERBR4E -
BRIRSREFHRIRRE

The construction of LNG storage and

peak shaving facilities is increased. In
2020, there were a total of 3 LNG storage
and peak shaving stations in operation,
which has greatly enhanced the ability

of emergency gas supply during special
circumstances.

AR LNG 7 # 38 1& R e 6032 2% - 2020 S H 5t
WELNGREABILIE - WARS THK
BR TR EREED
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3. The Natural Gas Storage and Peaking
Shaving Cooperation Agreement was
signed with Sinopec subsidiaries, ensuring
the ability to maintain its supply and a
safe and stable gas usage for downstream
consumers during heating seasons.

B AL E A REERER T(RARKRH
EAERZE) - RETEREZSHREELNKRT
HRFNZZFIEAR

While addressing climate-related risks, the
Group is also aware of the opportunities
brought by climate change. As the Ministry
of Ecology and Environment strengthens its
governance on the environmental pollution
caused by coal, domestic industrial enterprises
gradually switch to use gas. The Group predicts
an increase in natural gas demand. The Group
will shoulder its mission and continue to service
its commercial clients and urban citizens by
providing integrated energy services.

CARING FOR EMPLOYEES

The Group is committed to creating a favourable
working environment for its employees and acts in
accordance with national laws and regulations that
have had a significant impact on the Group which
relate to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare, and standardised
the implementation of the Code of Conduct for
Employees and other human resources related
internal policies. In addition, the Group strictly
complies with national laws and regulations relating
to preventing child and forced labour, resolutely
eliminating the use of either practice. During the
Reporting Period, the Group did not have any non-
compliance incidents relating to the above aspects.
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4.1. Protection of Employee Rights

Following a “fair and just, right person for
the right job” recruitment concept, and the
advocation of a “impartially hiring competent
persons” recruitment and appointment policy,
the Group ensures that all job applicants
are granted equal opportunities and fair
competition. The Group objects to any forms
of discrimination and encourages a diverse
team. The Group’s employees come from
over 20 different provinces and municipalities
in the PRC. Before hiring employees, the
Group will strictly examine the employees’
identity information, education information
and other relevant documents, and conduct
joint verification of employee information with
third-party auditing organizations to ensure
the authenticity of employee information. The
Group has formulated an Employee Reward
and Punishment Management System, which
requires employees to provide accurate
and reliable personal information upon
commencing their employment, and if any
falsified documents or resumes are found,
the Group reserves the right to terminate
employees’ probationary period or to dismiss
the employment contract of the employee
concerned. Both parties enter into a labour
contract on an equal and voluntary basis.
The Group implements three types of working
hour schemes including irregular, consolidated
and standardised working hour schemes
according to the business characteristics,
safety requirements and job requirement of the
Group’s subsidiaries, ensuring that employees
have reasonable working hours and durations.
With regard to leave, employees are entitled
to sick leave, personal leave, marriage leave,
bereavement leave, maternity leave, work injury
leave, annual leave and statutory holiday leave.
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L

4.2,

 HERERRE

The Group has formulated and strictly complied
with the Litigation Management Measures.
Upon conclusion of arbitration or litigation of
labour disputes, the Group will summarise
lessons learnt in a timely manner in respect of
the causes, handling process and results of
the cases, and conduct training for personnel
management staff of subsidiaries in conjunction
with the Internal Control and Legal Affairs
Department based on the cases, so as to
enhance employees’ awareness of legal risks
and strengthen the personnel management
capability of the relevant staff.

Diverse Welfare Policies

The Group has adopted a remuneration policy
for its employees based on their position,
performance, contribution and performance
bonus, and has established an internal salary
scale accordingly. The Group has formulated
the Remuneration Management Measures,
adopting a uniform position and salary
scale whilst considering employees’ specific
conditions such as job responsibilities, personal
work experience, education, qualifications and
other specific indicators relating to employees’
abilities, track record, and work performance to
set salary standards. At the end of each year,
the Group evaluates the performance of its
employees in accordance with market trends,
adjusts the position and/or remuneration of
outstanding employees, and offers discretionary
performance bonuses as appropriate. Besides
offering continuous education opportunities, the
Group provides reasonable and lawful salaries
and welfare with five social insurances (pension,
unemployment insurance, work injury insurance,
medical insurance and maternity insurance) and
housing provident funds, bonuses and other
benefits and welfare.
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4.3. Training and Professional Development of 4.3 BTIEREEZI

Employees

The Group has formulated management
systems such as the Staff Training Management
System, Internal Trainers Management
System and Implementation Rules for Training
Incentives and Constraints, and has adopted
the notion of ‘Building Inter-disciplinary
Teams, Training Inter-disciplinary Talents’ as
the Group’s talent development strategy. To
this end, the Group formulates annual training
plans, provides internal and external trainings
and further studies to enhance the knowledge
and skills of employees, creates room for
career development, so as to strengthen their
sense of belonging to the Group, thus securing
talents supply for the Group. The Group
continuously improves its internal mechanism
to identify internal and external talents, and
provides tailor-made training programmes
(including videos, seminars and presentations)
for employees. Internal trainings are arranged
for different positions in the headquarter
and subsidiaries according to business
characteristics (e.g. marketing, operations,
engineering, safety, legal, finance, personnel
administration and frontline technical skills) to
enhance the professional and management
skills of employees.
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Examples of the Group's Training Sessions
during the Reporting Period

Core Courses for Procurement Department

The Tender Management Office adopts the
format of “purchasing online videos” + “post-
event recording and broadcasting” + “learning
and sharing together” + “one lesson a day” for
the department’s professional training courses.
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Training on Contract Drafting, Gas
Industry Cases Studies and Related Legal
Knowledge

The Internal Control and Legal Department,
in conjunction with the actual situation of
the Company and the needs of training and
research, has broadened the training coverage
on legal and regulatory knowledge in different
areas and at different levels, such as organising
training on contract drafting, gas industry cases
studies and related legal knowledge.

tTaxm
BRETaann
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4.4.

Training on Gas Pipelines Emergency
Response and Maintenance Techniques

The Safety and Technology Department invited
external experts to conduct training on gas
pipelines emergency response and maintenance
techniques, enhancing the capabilities of
the Group’s relevant personnel on handling
emergency and avoiding accidents in the
process.
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Occupational Health and Safety

The Group deeply recognises that safe
operations play an important role in
safeguarding employees’ well-being and as its
first-priority mission, ensuring that employees
work in a safe working environment and are
in good health. To provide a safe working
environment and avoid occupational hazards,
the Group strictly complies with national and
regional laws and regulations that have had a
significant impact on the Group, continuously
improves the relevant management structure
of the Group and further implements relevant
management systems such as the Graded
Production Risk Control Procedures, Safety
Management System for Surveillance and
Measurement Facilities, Management Measures
for the Distribution of Personal Protective

4.4
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Equipment, and Safety Inspection and
Correction of Defects System. In order to
reduce accident rates and ensure employees’
safety, the Group has carried out hazard
detection and correction, safety training, safety
protection, and regular evaluation. Specific
details of the above processes are as follows:
(1) Organise regular safety hazard inspections
and management to eliminate potential safety
hazards in the working environment and
ensure that employees are in a safe working
condition; (2) Regular trainings on safety
systems and emergency management are
provided to existing and new employees, with
drills on contingency procedures and rescue
work for various emergencies. Regular fire
drills are also conducted. At the same time,
provide employees with safety equipment
and establish an alarm system. Specific
contingency measures are devised for
possible emergencies; (3) Distribute personal
protective equipment annually. Organise regular
health check-ups for employees to prevent
occupational diseases and pay occupationa
health allowance to frontline employees. (4)
The Group sets up a clear safety-related
incentive and penalty mechanism, and carries
out annual safety management assessments
for subsidiaries to ensure that every subsidiary
meets the required standards in safety
inspections.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had no
cases of non-compliance in relation to the provision
of a safe working environment and the protection of
employees from occupational hazards, and no major
safety incidents occurred.
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In early 2020, the Group was in a tight supply
of anti-epidemic materials. The Group actively
mobilised resources from various parties and
distributed anti-epidemic materials such as masks to
its employees. The Group also issued the Measures
for the Management of Anti-epidemic Materials
to ensure regular and continuous distribution of
anti-epidemic materials in accordance with the
situation in regular epidemic prevention and control,
safeguarding the personal safety of employees.

M0 LITE ZOOM

} Al GUAD CAMERA

5. QUALITY CONTROL

The Group is committed to providing customers
with high quality products and services, and
communicates with its customers to improve the
standard of services continuously. In addition,
the Group views business ethics and corporate
social responsibility as the Group’s foundation.
The Group acts in strict compliance with the
relevant regulations and standards in the aspects of
supply chain management, products and services,
production promotion and privacy protection, and
anti-corruption. The Group upholds the “Giving back
to the community” principle of business ethics and
dedicates itself to being an ethical and responsible
enterprise.
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5.1. Supplier Management

For sales of LPG and non-piped gas, the
Group’s strict screening and management
of gas suppliers are pre-conditions for
safeguarding the quality of products and
services. To this end, the Group formulated and
from time to time updates the Administrative
Measures of Suppliers of Non-piped Gas and
Administrative Measures of the Procurement of
Non-piped Gas Goods, requiring subsidiaries to
consider suppliers’ credit rating, qualifications,
stability of gas supply, sources of gas, method
of supplying gas, warranty of gas equipment
and quality assurance, etc. The Group has
developed the Management Measures for
Tendering, Management Measures for Non-
tendering Procurement, and other procedures
to standardise subsidiaries’ procurement
procedures. In order to strengthen supplier
management, the Group formulated and from
time to time updates Supplier Management
Measures and other relevant procedures and
standardised documents.
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In respect of procurement procedures
for regular project services, goods and
construction works, the procurement process is
mainly based on shortlisting. After shortlisting,
the suppliers will sign annual framework
agreements with the Group and commence
specific projects based on purchase orders or
special contracts. The shortlisted suppliers are
subject to regular assessment and inspection,
and in the event of serious non-compliance
or breach of contract, such as quality and
safety incidents or malpractice, they will be
blacklisted and permanently suspended from
use. Further legal action will be taken to
recover any relevant losses incurred by the
Group. Non-conventional projects are procured
through tender and non-tender procurements.
Specialised suppliers will be selected and
contracts will be signed. For the suppliers that
is the first time to cooperate with the Group,
the Group will organise factory inspection visits
inspecting aspects including but not limited to
qualification, performance, financial situation,
safety and environmental impact. After the
actual cooperation, the Group will organise
unannounced inspections regularly and conduct
annual supplier evaluations to review the
suppliers’ ability to provide quality services and
goods on a continuous basis.
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With regard to gas pipeline laying and
connection projects, the Group formulated
and from time to time updates Regulations
on Construction Works and Regulations
on Accepting Construction Works upon
Completion. The Group strictly screens for
high-quality design teams and contractors, from
selecting designs and outsourcing engineering
contractors recommended by subsidiaries,
to other processes up until the completion of
connection construction projects. In addition,
subsidiaries are responsible for carrying
out regular inspection works, and project
administrators are appointed to regularly
inspect project quality and materials used,
monitor construction progress, and record
relevant inspection data.

In addition, the Group has been practising
environmentally responsible sourcing by
conducting corporate social responsibility
inspections of various suppliers. Environmental
indicators such as wastewater and exhaust
gas will be focus of the factory inspection
and unannounced inspection for suppliers of
goods. For construction suppliers, the Group
encourages them to use clean energy-powered
construction machinery and equipment. At the
same time, the Group foremostly considers
the environmental, social and governance risks
and management when conducting shortlisting
audits of construction units. The Group also
includes the quality certifications, such as
ISO14001 and ISO9001, in the auditing criteria
and prefers to work with suppliers with quality
and environmental certifications. In 2020, the
Group has 231 long-term suppliers, of which
48 are shortlisted construction suppliers and
39 of them have quality and environmental
management system certifications, accounting
for 81.25% of the total construction suppliers.
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5.2. Safe and Stable Gas Supply 52 Z2BEMHR

As its mission, the Group aims to provide safe,
high quality and healthy products and services.
The Group upholds strict regulations on the
quality of natural gas and LPG purchased by
its subsidiaries: the quality of natural gas is
required to meet the national standards of Gas
| or Gas Il category under Natural Gas, whilst
LPG is required to meet the relevant national
standards of Liquefied Petroleum Gas.

In order to monitor the real-time quality of
natural gas more effectively, each subsidiary
is required to request natural gas and LPG
suppliers to provide reports on gas quality.
For stations that receive a large intake of gas
and LPG, real-time monitoring through online
chromatography is arranged. For stations
that receive a smaller intake, Certifications
of Product Quality must be obtained from
suppliers on a quarterly basis as a minimum,
and these stations are responsible for tracking
the quality of gas from time to time. Should the
quality of gas fail quality controls, the online
chromatography will immediately trigger an
alarm automatically. The Group will immediately
switch gas sources to restrict purchases of
substandard gas simultaneously. In addition,
the Group requires suppliers to provide
polyethylene pipes and fittings, gas metres,
galvanised pipes, pressure regulators, valves
and flow meters that comply with national and
industrial standards, and carry out regular
quality checks based on Gas Material and
Equipment Procurement Regulations. When
conducting quality checks, samples are taken
with the supplier on site and sent to qualified
institutions for examination. Any failed products
will be returned.
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5.3.

 HERERRE

To ensure the safe operation and improve the
level of automation of the stations, the Group
has continuously popularised the application
of SCADA' system, which has effectively
enhanced the capacity of pipeline network
deployment and safety protection. At present,
83 SCADA stations have been completed, 5
SCADA stations are under construction and 41
SCADA stations are planned to be renovated in
2021.

Improvement of Customer Satisfaction

To standardise procedures for servicing and
handling customer complaints, the Group
has formulated the Customer Complaints
Management Measures, which forms an
effective complaint management mechanism to
ensure the timely, effective, fair and reasonable
resolution of customer complaints. In order to
improve the quality of customer services, each
subsidiary is required to comply with, and to
implement, this mechanism. Customers can
report problems and send queries to customer
services through the customer service hotline.
The customer services shall make appropriate
arrangements according to the category of
complaints. In the meantime, the headquarter
monitors the handling of customer complaints
and incidents, and conducts random checkup
on customers. If it is found that customer
complaints are not handled in accordance
with the requirements, or if reports are false
or concealed, causing significant impact to the
Group, penalties will be imposed in accordance
with the relevant regulations of the Group.

Supervisory Control And Data Acquisition
system is a data collection and monitoring
control system
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To further improve the standard and quality
of customer service, efficiency of resolving
customer enquiries, repairs and complaints,
and enhancing customer satisfaction, the
Group completed the construction of a call
centre for its subsidiary, Tianjin TEDA Binhai
Clean Energy Group Company Limited (“Tianjin
Clean Energy”), and put it into operation on
a trial basis. The call centre is equipped with
hardware facilities for office environment,
cloud customer service system application
and professional agents. Upon receipt of a
complaint, Tianjin Clean Energy will immediately
assign work through the system, after which
the customer service supervisor will supervise
the matter and request the relevant unit to
contact the customer immediately after the
complaint is received for urgent handling.
After the relevant unit has finished handling
the matter and the system has fed back, the
call centre agent will make a return call to ask
the customer whether the complaint has been
resolved and conduct a satisfaction survey,
thus forming a closed loop and achieving 100%
return call rate.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group
received a total of 440 complaints relating to
products and services. The subsidiary company
will send its own operators to the customer’s
home in a timely manner to repair and replace
the items for complaints that fall within the
scope of repair and replacement services.
The Group will inform customers to contact
the equipment manufacturers themselves for
complaints not within the scope of business
of gas companies. For complaints relating to
customers who are unable to use the gas due
to their own renovation work, customer service
will explain patiently to the customer and issue
a rectification notice, and liaise with colleagues
to provide relevant publicity materials to the
customer. For complaints about customer
service attitude, the subsidiary company will
investigate internally and after confirming the
complaint, subsequent arrangements will be
made.

To ensure the safe use of gas and enhance
customer satisfaction, the Group makes use of
television, newspapers and magazines, as well
as social media such as the WeChat official
account for publicity. In 2020, the Group
encouraged customers to follow the WeChat
official account to participate in activities
such as gas safety knowledge popularization,
“Welcome the New Year, Send Warmth,
Ensure Safety” and “Five Good Services
Month”. These activities were supported and
recognised by governments and customers,
bringing the Group closer to its customers
and governments. In the meantime, the Group
produced a unified gas safety promotional
video, which was broadcasted in various
areas (customer service centres, sales halls of
subsidiaries and customers’ local communities)
using various visualisation methods (such as
broadcasting on local media and TV stations) to
enhance the promotional effect and customer
experience.
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Replacement of Smart IOT Metres for
Customers

To enhance customer
experience and achieve the
implementation objective
of smart gas, the Group
replaced a total of 201,000
smart IOT (Internet of Things)
metres during the reporting
year, with a coverage rate
of 39.2%, serving 956
communities and enabling
customers to complete enquiries and top-up
services without leaving their homes.

“Five Good Services Month”

The Group launched the “Five Good Services
Month” campaign this year, which means
“Service to the System, Service to the
Government, Service to Customers, Service to
Safety and Service to the Market”.
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The Group commenced the following activities
during campaign: invited relevant personnel
of government agencies to participate in the
activities and raise their comments and work
requirements; promoted safety awareness and
conducted non-residential customers visits and
safety inspections in the community; visited
fire service, public security service, hospitals,
welfare homes and schools and conducted
security checks for these places; invited fire
brigade to conduct training on fire safety and
organise drills; actively promoted service to
retail customers in old districts; and conducted
internal training and learning activities on the
Group’s regulations.

Through the month-long campaign, the Group
received high recognition and support from
governments at all levels, reshaping and
improving government relations, narrowing
the gap with customers, enhancing safety
management capability and promoting
marketing development. During the campaign,
the Group received a total of 53 banners from
customers, communities and governments.

Combating the Epidemic

Securing Stable Gas Supply during the
Epidemic

Since the outbreak of the epidemic, Tianjin
Clean Energy, as a key enterprise in Tianjin
to ensure public wellbeing, with epidemic
prevention and control measures implemented,
did its utmost to provide stable gas supply to
more than 860 industrial and public service
customers, including hospitals, power plants
and heating enterprises. In particular, Tianjin
Clean Energy supplied gas for 5 designated
fever hospitals. To ensure the safety and
stability of the gas supply for hospitals,
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Tianjin Clean Energy developed a special
supply program and contingency plans,
established a responsible working group,
set up arrangements for a clear gas facilities
inspection routine and anti-epidemic materials
preparation, and communicated daily with the

hospital concerning its use of gas.
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On 27 January, Tianjin Clean Energy received
query from Binhai Hospital of Tianjin Medical
University General Hospital, requesting to
connect the canteen to gas as soon as possible
to meet the needs of epidemic prevention
and control. After receiving the query, Tianjin
Clean Energy immediately convened a special
phone meeting and set up a green channel
for this project. The Company overcame
all difficulties, with collaboration of relevant
government departments and the hospital,
safely completed the construction of the gas
project in the canteen of Binhai Hospital of
the General Hospital in the shortest possible
time. The construction was completed on 11
February and ready to use, which was highly
recognised and commended by the Binhai New
Area Administration and the hospital.

Protecting Public Wellbeing during the
Epidemic

As an infrastructure services
company, the Group continued
operation during the epidemic,
prepared and activated
emergency plans, conducted
daily online meetings to co-
ordinate, conducted random
spot checks on epidemic
prevention and control and production safety
at sites. To provide customers with a safe and
stable gas supply, the Group used WeChat
official account feeds, animated promotional
videos and online remote security checks to
provide guidance on safe gas consumption. For
customers who require door-to-door service
to solve their gas supply problems, the Group
provided timely on-site services on top of
securing the employees’ safety.
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5.4. Ensuring Customer Privacy

The Group acts in strict compliance with laws
and regulations relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress. Moreover, the Group acts
in strict compliance with requirements relating
to sales and credibility control, forbidding the
use of false or misleading descriptions under
any circumstances, when promoting products
and conducting transactions. The Group also
emphasises privacy and information security
between itself and its customers. The Group
strictly controls account application and
account authority for information systems
involving consumer data protection and
requires employees privy to confidential
information to sign a confidentiality agreement.
These employees are also required to commit
themselves to strictly protecting customer
information when servicing them. The Group
forbids the disclosure of relevant information
to a third party without the consent of both
parties. During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not have any non-compliance incidents
relating to the aspects above.
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5.5.

5.6.

Respect for intellectual property

The Group has formulated the Regulations
on the Management of Genuine Software,
which stipulates the unit responsible for
the protection of intellectual property. This
regulation clarifies relevant unit’s duties on
budgeting, procurement and using of software
in order to raise the awareness of respecting
and protecting intellectual property among
employees, manifesting the spirit of respect for
knowledge and creativity.

When the Group cooperates with universities
and research institutes, the Group requires
the other parties to use genuine software to
process data and that the results provided to
the Group are original and cannot be copied
or infringed upon. In the contract of the
cooperation project, the Group specifies the
attribution of intellectual property rights, the
authorship right of the first right holder, the first
inventor and others, and the subjects that can
be used to apply for high-tech enterprises.

Anti-corruption

The Group attaches great importance to
anti-corruption, corporate integrity and
honesty. With reference to laws and internal
regulations, the Group has developed Integrity
Risk Prevention and Control Checklist and
Negative List of Malpractices, holding serious
accountability for breaches of the list. Report
Management Regulation has been formulated
to regulate the reporting procedures and
methods, aiming to eliminate any corrupt and
bribery practices. During the Reporting Period,
the Group had no non-compliance incidents
relating to the aspects above.
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In order to eliminate corruption-related
misconduct in construction projects, the
Group has established procedures for the
procurement of materials and equipment,
including provisions such as the Tender
Management Regulations and Non-tender
Procurement Management Regulations, setting
out responsibilities of each procurement
unit. Suppliers of materials and equipment
are shortlisted through tenders and non-
tenders by the Tender Management Office of
the headquarter. Gas metres, flow metres,
polyethylene pipes and galvanised steel pipes
are centrally procured by the headquarter.
All suppliers are prohibited from bribing
subsidiaries in any form, and a self-discipline
agreement has been signed with suppliers. At
the same time, the Internal Control and Legal
Department is responsible for monitoring the
tendering and non-tendering procurement
process to ensure that the evaluation process
is conducted in an open, fair and impartial
manner and any form of extortion, fraud and
money laundering in the procurement process
is prevented. All procurement activities are
conducted with the participation of internal
control supervisors, and the supervisors’
telephone numbers and mailboxes are made
public for each project. The entire evaluation
process is recorded to create an “open, fair
and impartial” procurement environment,
making sure suppliers with “good quality, good
price, good service and no inferiority” are
selected for the Group.
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The Group’s Internal Control and Legal
Department regularly conducts internal audits
to prevent fraud risks and supervise the
rectification of problems. A special mailbox
is set up for reporting, while publishing the
telephone number and mailing address of
reported letters. Information of informants
is kept strictly confidential, and reported
irregularities and violations are seriously
investigated and handled.

The Group advocates the professional conduct
of “law-abiding, loyal, clean and responsible”
and requires employees to attend training on
the Code of Conduct for Employees to enhance
their understanding of professional ethics and
conduct. The Group continues to promote
the culture of integrity and strengthens the
daily “Learn, Think, Cautiousness, Integrity”
campaign, while conducting training on cases
of fraud and abuse, legal compliance and
internal control. During the Reporting Period,
5 training sessions were conducted for 1,207
participants, targeting the Group’s management
and relevant employees, effectively
disseminating and promoting anti-corruption
knowledge and enhancing employees’
awareness of legal compliance.
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CARING ACTION

The Group strives to give back to the community
through practical actions, participates in various
community activities, and establishes harmonious
relationships with local communities. During the
Reporting Period, the Group donated epidemic
prevention and living goods equivalent to
approximately RMB184,000 and provided 547
hours of service. Two large-scale community
services were organised, namely a campaign to
promote the knowledge of gas safety from Binhai
Investment, and a campaign to “Welcome the
New Year, Send Warmth and Ensure Safety”.
The Group strengthened its customer services
with the concept of “Gas for All Households” and
actively undertook the social responsibility of a gas
company by providing household security checks
free replacement of corrugated hoses and free
gifts of rice, noodles, oil and other daily necessities
to veterans, relatives of martyrs, five guarantees
households, elderly person of no family, retired
elderly cadres and anti-epidemic workers in the
service area, so as to enhance the Group’s external
image and to build a safer, greener and more
harmonious community.
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Examples of Binhai Investment’s Community
Services during the Reporting Period

Tangshan Company Donates Coronavirus
Prevention and Control Materials to the Lutai
Economic Development Zone

On 18 May 2020, Tangshan Binhai Gas Company
Limited (“Tangshan Company”) donated about
RMB100,000 worth of coronavirus prevention and
control materials to the Lutai Economic Development
Zone. Established in 2010 in the Lutai Economic
Development Zone, Tangshan Company has laid
a total of 110 kilometres of medium pressure gas
pipelines in the Lutai Economic Development Zone
over the past ten years, providing a stable supply
of gas to nearly 60 industrial and commercial
enterprises and nearly 20,000 residential customers,
which has been recognised by the local government
leaders, enterprises and residents in the Lutai
Economic Development Zone.
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Deging Company participates in the “Water and
Gas Supply Service Help Create a Civilised City
Together”

On 23 May 2020, Deging Binhai Gas Company
Limited (“Deqging Company”) participated in the
“Water and Gas Supply Service Help Create
a Civilised City Together” activity in the local
community. A total of 9 staff participated in the
event. 200 people attended the event, which
focused on safety promotion, customer safety
checks, green promotion and care for the
underprivileged. This activity greatly enhanced
community residents’ awareness of gas safety and
demonstrate corporate responsibility in the local
activities of creating a civilised city.
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Wuging Company launches winter gas safety
campaign for residents

At the beginning of winter 2020, Wuqing Branch of
Tianjin Clean Energy (“Wuqging Company”) launched
a safety promotion campaign with the theme of
“Eliminating accidents and hazards, building a
strong line of security” to promote gas safety in
the communities where it supplies gas. A total of
4,000 copies of safety promotion materials were
distributed to community residents, promoting
knowledge of safe gas consumption in winter,
enhancing awareness of safe gas consumption and
improving safe gas consumption skills.
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Baoshui Company Visits Communities and
Holds Safety Seminars

In 2020, the Baoshui Branch of Tianjin Clean
Energy (“Baoshui Company”) visited the homes of
elderly persons of no family in the communities
and delivered life necessities, as well as invited 40
residents to a residential gas safety seminar and
distributed safety promotional materials. The event
not only raised residents’ awareness of gas safety
and enhanced their ability to prevent and respond
to gas accidents, but also demonstrated the
company’s social responsibility.

REVFMRLCERBRZ2HEE
EE

2020 » RFFRERFRHED R
AR AR ) EEHEMFZE
ARPETEE  RETLHEALBFE
o WHHBEERAOLERERRA
RTERARZEBE  BEHRTXR
EEEMH  c KRTERSTER
RRZZEH - BT HEMEY
MREHEE - MAZBRTEE
MmitgEE -
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7. THE GROUP’S ESG

PERFORMANCE DATA

In order to provide a more comprehensive picture
of the Group’s ESG performance, the Group has
expanded its reporting scope in the Reporting
Period, from the coverage of the head office to
the offices and operation of the head office and
its subsidiaries. As a result, the key performance
indicators’ values for 2020 may differ significantly
from those of previous years. Data measurement
and calculation methods adopted in this Report are
stated where appropriate.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERERS

FEEHESGEREE

BRTETERMRASEMNESGHE
M REBERAHRERANREAIRE
RN REE  KEERMAA
WMAERAD B EWE AR
MAEREBES - Hi2020F
CEBIERBER e REFHNEE
BK - NRREMRAOBIRFTER
AETAOSEREEENBR Nt
B o

Resource Consumption'
BERERE"
KWh 2,534,566 151,660 154,040
Purchased Electricity RS B ’ ’
HNIEE ) kWh/employee
e 1,478.74 1,5616.60 1,750.45
TR/ BET
mS
NN 25,602.13 38.45 30.47
Purchased Freshwater 377K
\,E\ e 7 3
IR B K _m/employee 14.94 0.38 0.35
NFAK/BET
mS
NN 649,800 4,082 0
Purchased Natural Gas S K
N:| 9)& vy 3
PHRRAR _m/employee 379.11 40.82 0
NAK/BET

Binhai Investment Company Limited

During the Reporting Period, the definition of the indicator
for purchased heating was adjusted to include only the
amount of purchased heating for central heating. Under
this definition, as the Group uses self-heating, the amount
of purchased heating is O and the relevant environmental
impact is reflected in the data on electricity consumption
and boiler use.

BBREBRAA

U ARREERIMNE SR IR R
OfGETRE  BRERERSE
STRHERAINEHEE - EIE
ET AaRAKEHRAATH
RTR - SNBEHEEH RO A
BRREFERBREMBEER
MR EER
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wE

Litres
41,280
Diesel H
SemE A Litres/employee
. ﬂ/;‘-\ly 24.08 Not reported | Not reported
Litres on on
286,069 RERE RERE
Petrol H
iR A Litres/e/Trc)lloyee 166.90
F/BET
Hazardous Waste Generation by Type
REREINEEREYHEE
k9 288 10 20
Electronic Waste NS
BTREEY kg/employee
= raremproy 0.17 0.10 0.23
NT/HET
Pieces
4,083 72 200
Batteries &l
E; Pieces/employee
2. 72 2.27
®,/ 88T 38 0
Tubes
Mercury-containing Light % 14 200 70
Tubes Tubes/ |
N o ubes/employee
ZKIRHBE .01 2. .
KR H) BB % ST 0.0 00 0.80
P
, eces 1,286 20 9
Ink Cartridges 72
22 Pieces/employee
0.75 0.20 0.10
i/ BET
Non-hazardous Waste Generation by Type
RERETNEEEZYEE
kg 2,458 1,320 1,800
Paper /NI
ok kg/employee
el 1.43 13.20 20.45
A/ BET
o
eces 197,337 79,082 39,332
Waste Used Metres b5/
BEEFTER Pieces/employee
115.13 44 .21 23.03
" ZET
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m
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: " 48,567 43,683 7,548
Waste Used Pipes R
PRl m/employee 28.34 24.15 4.42
K/ BET
Air Pollutant Emissions’
RRTRYMBHE
%g{ﬁ; E?\chl)i)es (NG ch’gugﬁe S 2.20 4.75 x 10 1.2 x 102
: 2
;E’g?&’;ﬁgg;ﬁ (504 Togugﬁe S 0.05 1.72 x 10° 1.4 x 10"
Greenhouse Gas Emissions
BERBHENRE
Scope 1 — Direct Emissions
HE— — BEEERE
Tonnes COLe*
AWE = &k 2,172.27 23.16 21.5
ath = 4
Fuel Combustion Emissions® ==
HREHR G HERC TO;’;ZS'O(;:;G/
N 1.27 0.23 0.24
EE/8B8T
Tonnes CO.e
N Sk—R 74 9,398.02
ah =
Methane Emission® =—
FR kB O Tonnes CO.e/
employee 548 Not reported | Not reported
N k=R (74 on on
E8 /88T REHE RE KRR
Tonnes CO,e/
Scope 1 Total Emissions employee 6.75
HE—EHHE N Sk—=R 74 '
28/ /BET

BBREBRAA
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Scope 2 - Indirect Emissions®

#HE= — MEHERE®

Purchased Electricity’ Tonnes CO,
" 1,546.34 134.11 136.22
SNEE S NSt R 74
Tonnes CO,/
Scope 2 Total Emissions employee
S~ e — 0.90 1.34 1.55
HE—BHHE NSt R 74
SBET
Scope 3 — Other Indirect Emissions
#HE= — HafEZHERE
Waste Paper Disposed at Tonnes CO,e
Landfill Sites® NE — A L% 11.80 3.94 4.80
T B DA AR BE
Business Travel’ Tonnes COe
N =Rl 7 10.92 7.23 4.39
R e
=S
Tonnes CO.e/
Scope 3 Total Emissions employee
_ e s 0.01 0.11 0.10
HE=-BHHE N Sy 74
g¥82 /88T
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The calculation of air pollutant emissions for the
Reporting Period included the use of vehicles and
the use of natural gas (including gas for operational
and domestic use). Because of the relatively little
fuel use of the electricity generators, it was not
included for calculation. The calculation scope for
vehicles are those owned and operated by the
Group. Calculations and emission factors used for
air pollutants generated from the use of natural
gas were made with reference to the Manual of the
First National Pollution Source Census of Urban Life
Sources and Pollution Emission Factors and Manual
of the First National Pollution Source Census on
Emission Factors from Industrial Pollution Sources
published by the State Council. Calculations and
emission factors used for air pollutants generated
from the use of vehicles were calculated with
reference to the Technical Guide for Air Pollutant
Emission Inventory for Road Vehicles (Trial)
published by the National Development and Reform
Commission of the PRC.

The natural gas used by the Group is desulphurised
and the amount of sulphur oxides generated is
minimal, therefore the sulphur oxides are only
included in the calculation for vehicle use.

The Group’s fossil fuel combustion emissions in the
Reporting Period included the use of vehicles and
the use of natural gas (including gas for operational
and domestic use). Because of the relatively little
fuel use of the electricity generators, it was not
included for calculation. Greenhouse gas calculations
and emission factors for vehicles were made with
reference to the Guidelines for Accounting and
Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Land-
based Transportation Enterprises (Trial) published by
the National Development and Reform Commission
of the PRC. Greenhouse gas calculations and
emission factors for natural gas consumption were
made with reference to the Guidelines for Accounting
and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions from
China’s Petroleum and Natural Gas Companies (Trial)
published by the National Development and Reform
Commission of the PRC. In 2019, the scope of fuel
combustion emissions includes vehicle use and
domestic gas use (cooking in canteen) in the Group’s
head office.

Binhai Investment Company Limited & &% & GR A7
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AEERRSRANFRFERRE
EWmEAMRARER(RELE
ERRMAEERAR)  FA#HE
BREHERER D - FRARBA
AEHSE - WM EEEAAE
EHEEAELHNER - RARK
RS RFRAFE AR AR
PRF B8 70 AR 4 B 7% B 3% 4 9K
—REBEBRREEWHLER
EHFSEBFMINRE X2
BSRREET SRR BE5 A
BF IR - EWMARITED
PEMEET B AR BB R R
AEDRBEPEARKNEER
ERMBEZBESHMOCER
BB A RS R BB B4R
BAfrtara (A7) IFHIET o

AEBEEAORRARIGBBHR
RIE - EENRACHER)
At EREERS
BEEA e

AEBRHE A ORI
BREZRRRE®WER - XA
RER(BFELEERRMEE R
) ABHBEHOMBERER
Lo ARMAGTEEE - B
ERMREEREBHROGED R
AR A B ERE T E
ARKMBEBERERMUERS
SEMACELRBESEER
ERBHMRE T ERRE A
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BRERBHHROFETEZRAH
HRABAETIREARLME
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The greenhouse gas emissions from the use
of natural gas only take carbon dioxide into
consideration due to the method of calculation.

This calculation of greenhouse gas emissions
includes methane emissions resulting from the
Group’s process emissions. Greenhouse gas
calculations and emission factors for natural
gas consumption were made with reference to
the Guidelines for Accounting and Reporting of
Greenhouse Gas Emissions from China’s Petroleum
and Natural Gas Companies (Trial) published by the
National Development and Reform Commission of
the PRC.

During the Reporting Period, the definition of the
indicator for purchased heating was adjusted to
include only the amount of purchased heating
for central heating. Under this definition, as the
Group uses self-heating, the amount of purchased
heating is 0. Thus the scope of Scope 2 emissions
only include indirect emissions from electricity
consumption and the relevant environmental impact
is reflected in the data on electricity consumption
and boiler use.

Greenhouse gas figures and emission factors were
calculated by the factors of average national grid
emissions in 2015 with reference to the Notice on
Doing a Good Job in the 2018 Carbon Emission
Report and Verification and Emission Monitoring Plan
Preparation published by the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the PRC.

Greenhouse gas figures and emission factors
were calculated with reference to the Guidelines
to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas
Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial,
Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong
Kong 2010 version published by the Hong Kong
Electrical and Mechanical Services Department and
Environmental Protection Department.

Greenhouse gas figures were calculated with
reference to the methodology of calculation of
carbon dioxide emissions generated from air
travels published by The International Civil Aviation
Organization (ICAO) under the United Nations
Agency.
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K

HPRXARERNRERE
REET

EARFEITERRA -
“AEHIPERE -

HRAEREBHMMFEBREAS
B TERARERNF R
B - BN A B ERES
FEARKMBERERNAESR
BeumahBEABMRXAR
FECERERBHRZEL X
B3R & 1R (A7) DT HIET o

A ERAZE R OEETT
HE ERERERESTHE
MMNBHIKE - EULERT &
RAKEHRABETHES A
SMEREREN RO AMEEE—
M EEBEAETRAMEE
B HEREERREYERBEAE
ANSAIE 2 A Y BRIR BE 3R o

LR ERE B MM R H A RE
MERABEEIRETEAR
HANE A REIRE AP M (R R
i 47 2018 4F & Bk BF DU 5 L 4X
E R B ER R8I E TR A
HYP 2016 F 2 HEHFHEEM
ES @

B3R = B SR 3 B R R AR
B RBE H R E S RE
TRERBEHREEEHNHE
BRED(EE  ETADAA
)8R B TR BRI 89 1%
% 0 9 4 95 31 20104 1R ) B 1
i

TR EREHMAEE AR
EHMAEE THEERRAME
BBOMEIREEEZ — SR
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Total Number of Employees Persons 1718 1809 1708
BT/ A ’ ' ’
Number of Employees by Employment Type

REREREASINEIAH

Contract Employees Persons 1718 1708 1703
SREET A ' ’ ’
Dispatched Employees Persons 0 11 5
BIFIKEAER A

Number of Employees by Region

RUEBESTHNETHEH

Hebei, Beijing, Tianjin Persons 1013 1111 1 031
e - bR - ROE A ’ ’ ’
Shandong Persons 083 087 595
LR A

Zhejiang, Hunan, Jiangxi Persons 037 531 017
AL - HiEE -~ IE A

Jiangsu, Anhui Persons 174 177 165
LE - T8 A

Other Locations Persons 6 3 0
Hithith @ A

Number of Employees by Gender

REREDHE TS

Male % 67.3 67.2 63.3
%19_: (0] . . .
Female % 32.7 32.8 36.7
ﬁ’|& (o] . . .
Number of Employees by Age Group

RERARNSDHE TS

25 or Under o 94 9.0 116
25 Rk IA T ° ' ' '
2610 35 % 41.0 39.1 38.9
26 B E 35 % ’ ' ' '
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RIZ - HERERRE

o . % 41.4 43.0 43.1
36 5% 50 5% ° ' '
51 or Above o 8.3 8.9 6.4
515k A £ ’ ' ' '
Number of Employees by Academic Qualification
REFESHE TS
Bachelor’s Degree or Above o 8.9 6.8 o4
AR RS b RSB ’ ' '
College Diploma o

y . % 29.7 29.7
AEHFR °
Secondary School Senior or Not reported
Technical Secondary School % 30.4 31.5 on
R CEBE
Junior Secondary School or
Below % 11.7 11.9
R RATR
Percentage of Employee Turnover by Employment Type
REREREASHNEIRAE
Contract Employees o 6.32 6.56 8.76
AR%IET ° ' ' '
Dispatched Employees o
oY N =1 = / O O O
BIsREAR °
Percentage of Employee Turnover by Gender
RUEBESHNBEIREAR
Male
. % 6.54 5.96 8.92
B
Female % 5.87 8.06 8.48
ﬁ’l& (o) . . .
Percentage of Employee Turnover by Age Group
RERETHNEIRKE
25 or Under % 10.56 8.99 13.16
25 BRI T ° ' ' '
2610 35 % 5.26 8.05 8.66
265 E 35 5% ° ' ' '
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RIZ - HERERBRE

o . % 5.70 5.70 6.48
36 %505 ? ' ' '
i ey DOVe % 9.55 0.42 6.78
51 53 L ° ' ' '

Percentage of Employee Turnover by Region
REBESNEIRER

Hebei, Beijing, Tianjin % 4.79 5 99 9.32
Ak~ bR K ° ' ' '
Shandong % 5.57 8.60 8.10
m$ () . . N
Zhejiang, Hunan, Jiangxi o 778 7 60 5 04
HOT - W8 T ’ ' ' '
Jiangsu, Anhui
NN % 13.43 10.61 10.80
AR I
Other Locations o 14 29 0 0
H b o ’ '
Training and Development of Employees
ST
Total Number of Training

. Hours
Hours Received by Employees 7,739 1,917 1,810

8T NG
48 B T 4 3|05 2%

Average Number of Training Hours Received by Gender
&1 BI85 BT 1955 H| R B

Male Hours

4.3 1.6 1.5
Bt s
Female Hours

41 1.3 1.2
4 N

Average Number of Training hours Received by Employment Grade
R85 BT 1955 HI R &

Upper Management Hours
e e 4.1 1.4 1.3
ERERE /B
Middle Management Hours

P 4.1 1.4 1.
PR BT IS °
General Staff Hours
EWET B 4.3 1.6 1.5
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Bk - tERERBE

Percentage of Employees (by Gender) that Received Training'

BRERESWZIET’

Male

B % 67.3 67.2 63.3
Bk

Female % 32.7 32.8 36.7
i ° - - -

REUBSNEINIET®

Percentage of Employees (by Employment Grade) that Received Training'

%?%%%gagemem % 0.4 0.4 0.4
Middle Mnagement % 15 13 11
hREIEE

General Staff % 98 1 98.3 98.6
EBET

In 2020, we adjusted the calculation method of
employee training rate with reference to the relevant
guidelines of HKEX, and re-calculated the figures for
2018 and 2019. The calculation method has been
adjusted as follows: the percentage of employees
trained in the specified category = number of
employees in the specified category who took part
in training/number of employees who took part in
training. The relevant disclosures in this Report shall
prevail.

In 2020, we adjusted the calculation method of
employee training rate with reference to the relevant
guidelines of HKEX, and re-calculated the figures for
2018 and 2019. The calculation method has been
adjusted as follows: the percentage of employees
trained in the specified category = number of
employees in the specified category who took part
in training/number of employees who took part in
training. The relevant disclosures in this Report shall
prevail.

2020  RMEBBHIINE
g3l WEBISZIERMHER
AT TR WE E20184F
M2019OF KRB HETEFHTE -
TER AR HEBERNET
X E=IBBEERNEPHMETLX
IAE ZIETHEE - HEE
BEBUARRE BE -

2020  RMEBBHIINE
g3l WBISZIERMHER
AT TR WE E20184F
M2019OF KRB HETEFHTE -
ATER AR HEBERNET
X E=IBBEAERNEPHMETLX
AE ZIETHEE - HEE
BEBUARRE BE -
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BN HERERBRE

Number of Suppliers by Region
i B W SRR A
Hebei, Beijing, Tianjin Nstmbﬁ;r:f o 50 »
L bR - R PP
B
N f
Shandong umbgr ©
e Suppliers 18 33 24
Eg=!
Zhejiang, Hunan, Jiangxi NSuumbﬁ;rzf 31 o5 20
WOT - % L o
B
N f
Jiangsu, Anhi suurgﬁﬁ;rz 29 14 12
T# - 2R
! #
Other Locations Nslijngﬁﬁgrzf 87 13 10
E bl
B
Number and Ratio of Work-related Fatalities
EIEEREMETHAEBERLER
Number of Persons Persons
0 0 0
A A
Ratio o
% 0 0 0
[ 0
Number of Working Days Lost Due to Work-related Injuries
EITEEATHERE
N
Number of Working Days Days 251 042 ot riiorted
TEBRE RE . —
RERE
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Rk - £ ERERHE

8. LAWS AND REGULATIONS WHICH
HAVE A SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON
THE GROUP

During the Reporting Period, Binhai Investment
abided by the following laws and regulations. The
Group strengthens its compliance management
through the following measures,

— To strengthen legal training to enhance relevant
personnel’s legal knowledge and raise their
awareness on legal compliance;

— To establish internal rules and policies that
comply with laws and regulations and to
consolidate systems and processes through
information system so as to reduce the
possibility of human manipulation;

— Law-related matters in daily business activities
shall be reviewed by legal personnel and the
participation of legal personnel is required in
major business decisions, external investments
and cooperation projects;

— To strengthen the enforcement of supervision
and accountability

8.

HAEAEBMEEATLENE
BEAEER

EHREHE  BEREET T
BEVERER - NEBERBIATE
ML A RE IR -

—  pnsECAEIE - (REEREA
BHEMERME - RBIAAZE

ABEH

— REHREFENREINAE
RERBRE  LBBEER
FEMHERRE B AR
IREER R BENE

— BAEEBINPSELAFEAFTE
RAEBABBER ERR
®HIMREMEGIEZEIRR
FEEBABLE

— NBHMITEEMEEER -
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Relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste

Mainland
China

Environmental Protection Law of the PRC

Environmental Impact Assessment Law of
the PRC

Environmental Noise Emission Standards
for Construction Sites (GB 12523-2011)

Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Waste

Standards for Pollution Control of
Hazardous Waste Storage National
Hazardous Waste List

Clean Production Promotion Law of the
PRC

Energy Conservation Law of the PRC

Soil Pollution Control Law of the PRC

BRRERLORE RN - mKkRE
HWEPES - ARBENREEREYH
E4

RER

(P EA R LTI IRIFIREZ)
(PN R R 5 25T 184 )
(B2 T 15 IR IEIRBE N IEE)

(GB 12523-2011)
(FENRLFEE B EY)5RIRERE)
(BIREDIT 7 SR IEHIIRE)

(BIXK By E iR )

(B 2N R FNE )R AL E AN #Z)
(FRZE A R AEFIEETATBE R Z D
(BN REFE 1 5520508 % )

Relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity,

Mainland
China

Labour Law of the PRC
Labour Contract Law of the PRC

Hong Kong

Employment Ordinance

antidiscrimination, and other China

benefits and welfare

BRAF M e BEREA - T E A (P EARHLFE L E)Z)
e RE - FEKE Sk K (FEANRLFE X E) S FZL)
IS AR A Re ELAth 457 368 Se 4@ A REEE ((EREEA)
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IRE - dEREREHE

T%

Mainland |Regulation Prohibiting the Use of Child
: : China Labour
Preventing child and forced labour
Hong Kong Regulations of Child Employment
China
Fizy == ==
B 1L T o A T ¢EW@ «ﬁiﬁngﬁm)
hEEFE |(EFZERI)
Regulations on the Safety Management of
Relating to providing a safe Mainland Construction Projects
working environment and protecting China Administrative Measures for Emergency
employees from occupational Plans for Production Safety Accidents
hazards Fire Protection Law of the PRC
Safe Production Law of the PRC
(BRIEZSEEEEZIFA)
FAREL2THERERIRE RS ¢ﬁmm‘(ééf§$ﬂﬁﬁﬁ$§ﬁ%%)
eREERE (P EA ELFEE %)
(FPENRREFE L2 EEZL)
Relating to health and safety, Advertising Law of the PRC
advertising, labelling and privacy Mainland | Trademark Law of the PRC
matters relating to products and China Protection of Consumer Rights and
services provided and methods of Interests Law of the PRC
redress Electronic Commerce Law of the PRC
— o ]
BRI IR S AR TS 0 B 22 P
2 S RERLBEEUARER | FEND e

(FEANRHATIEEEZ # o (R %)
(FENRHKNE]EF BFE)
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RE -HESRE

ABWE

Relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering

Mainland
China

Criminal Law of the PRC

Supervision Law of the PRC

Anti Unfair-competition Law of the PRC

Anti Money-laundering Law of the PRC

Interim Provisions on Prohibition of
Commercial Bribery

Tendering and Bidding Law of the PRC

Law of the People s Republic of China
on Administrative Discipline for Public
Officials

Hong Kong
China

Prevention of Bribery Ordinance

BB - R - BEFRERE

REA

(FEAELFIE T ZED
(FEARHFE D)
(HEARHKFE R IE Z 75 FZE)
(P EA AT REEE)
(BRI BRI TTRAETTHE)
(FEN R IZRIEE)

(FEANEIKFIBLNBN BB TR 5% )

PEEL

(7 LE RS 1 D))

Binhai Investment Company Limited

BBREBRAA




| ental, Social and Governance Report
R ERERRE

A

9. HKEX’S ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL 9. FHBEXAZ(BIE -« #
AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING RERMEESI )RS
GUIDE CONTENT INDEX

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEA1: kY
General Information on: 3,3.2,338
Disclosure (a)  the policies; and
—REE (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BHRAEROAERBHN  MKETHEES  AERESEEVNEELS
Hy -
(@ BE: K
(b) HBEFEHBTABEATENHEBEZZRRIINER
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 7
HER ) IE R R AR R B R B
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions 7

(in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

BE(HE1) REE(BE2)REREBHNE (AAE) R(ER)BE
(MABEEBN - BERBTE)

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, 7
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
FELAAEEEDASE A8 R(WER)EE(NMUSEEE N - BER
Mt E)

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, 7
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

EEEEEEYES AEAE) (WER)BE (NASESEN - §AR
MaEtHE)
KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. 3,3.2,3.3
HAFTET L BE N 2 B IR R R EDIE L B IE TR £ 5]
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, 3.2,3.3
and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.
TR E R EEERZYN G E - R AREERRBERELE
TR P ERER &Y 47 5%
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Fiﬂ ?‘ié& n*ﬁ%

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
EBEA2: EREA

General
Disclosure
—REE

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and
other raw materials.

BRERER(BEER - KREMRERME) BB

3.2, 3.3

KPI A2.1

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas

or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production

volume, per facility).

?ﬁ%ﬁ’*”zﬂ YR ERE R REERER(NE - Keoh) BEE (AT ETRRE
BIREE(WABESEMN - BEREFE

KPI A2.2

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
BREKERZE(NMAGESSEN - FHEEBAHE)

KPI A2.3

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.
AP ET SZ BV AL IR0 A R as B IR N R E B 3B L B R AT ERER B P BB

3,3.2,33

KPI A2.4

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
At SREGE AR E R A A - DARFTET LA K s B IR R RET|E L
B R PTERER B 22 B

3.3, 7

KPI A2.5

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if

Not applicable’

applicable, with reference to per unit produced. T
U mATASEMHNES CAMAE) X(WER)BEEEUILEE
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BEA3: RERKXARER
General Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment 3.2, 3.3
Disclosure and natural resources.
—RIEE AR EIT ABIRIER R A B REK EARZBHBR
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and 3.2, 3.3
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.
B EEFDHIBRERAAERNEAZERERNEREEXENTY
Aspect A4: Climate Change
EEA4 : RIEEL
General Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues 3.4
Disclosure which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
—REE BRIREHEERAEEHETAEETENEARKHASENEE
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, 3.4
and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage
them.
B AR EHBETAEEZENERRIFEREE - REHTH
! As the Group does not use packaging materials, this 1 mRAEER A E B AR
KPI is not applicable. I AR A s i N
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fironmental, Social and Governance
Bt ERERRE

Employment and Labour Practices

Report

EBEREIER
Aspect B1: Employment
EBEB1 : EE
General Information on: 4,41.4.2
Disclosure (@)  The policies; and
—REE (b)  Compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
Relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
EEFM R  BERET  TERE  BRY  FES#He 2t RER
A Ko oA 1538 R AB A &Y
(8 BX: Kk
(o) ETHEITABEAZENBE@EE RN ER
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full-or part- 7
time), age group and geographical region.
RIS - ERAE (N2 REHRE) - FRAR MRS o eiE B A
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. 7
RIER - FhER R RE S HREBRKALE
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
BEB2: @RREEZE
General Information on: 4.4
Disclosure (@) The policies; and
—RIEE (b)  Compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
Relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
FHRRHZ2THERERRERESZBENLEEN
(@) EHE: R
(o) EFEBEITABEARPZENBBEE R DIEE R
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past 7
three years including the Reporting Period.
BE=ZF(BEERFE) AT THOHABRKLE
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 7
HIGHEETHEEH
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how 4.4
they are implemented and monitored.
A AT ERAN VBB R R B e 2 1R B - DA RO TT R B TR
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- BE - -dEg8RkEREE

Aspect B3: Development and Training
BEBS3: #EKEII

General Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging 4.3
Disclosure duties at work. Description of training activities.

— R E EREREE BT TIEBRE A MB R REENEER - HiFINES

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category 7

(e.g. senior management, middle management).
RUEPIREERN(NSRERE  TREBES)ESNXIEERD L
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and 7
employee category.

BRI RESERIES  BREBRTKITINTFHEH
Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[EEB4 : BT %8|

General Information on: 4, 41
Disclosure (a)  The policies; and
—RIEE (b)  Compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer
Relating to preventing child and forced labour.
BRI LET SRS TH

(@ BE: R
(b) BEBIFHBETABEATENHEBEZLRIINER
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child 4.1

and forced labour.

R T RIS AR EEAR R ET RaH4 T
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. 4.1
LT B IR 2 SRAB U BB A BRSSP ERER Y 22 B

Operating Practices

EEES
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS5 : ftEEEE
General Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. 5.1
Disclosure EEEEENIRE R g RRBER
—RIEE
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 7
i@ & o 6 L FE P 20 A
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of 5.1
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
MG EEAMERNED - MEARITERENNHREREE - UARARED
ETT REER A
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Report

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks 5.1
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
A SR MRS ERANERE R SRARNES - L RAEERTRER
FE
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable 5.1
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
HMEREHRERNRRES ARREDRREOED - LRBEERITRERS
=
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6 : EMEE
General Information on: 5.3, 5.4
Disclosure (a) The policies; and
—RIFE (b) Compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
Relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods and redress.
FHMRHEMNBRENERERS - BS  SHERLBEEARBRT
By -
(a) B+ &
(o) BFEHEITABEAZENHEBEEZRROINER
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety No relevant
and health reasons. incident
EENERERERAHTRALT 2 BEREHAMEALDKNE S RS
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they 5.3
are dealt with.
BEREANEDRREHIRFEE AREE T
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual 5.5
property rights.
i B A SRR FE A E R A AR 18 1
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 5.2
HlEERTEREREREKIEF
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how 5.4
they are implemented and monitored.
UK B B ERHRIE RFLBECR - ARMEBRITRERTE
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BB HEREARS

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EBEB7 : RES

General Information on: 5.6
Disclosure (@)  The policies; and
—REE (o)  Compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer
Relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRI - BR  REFROLRER

(@ BX: Rk
(o) ETHETABEATENHBERZLAMNER

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought No relevant
against the issuer or its employees during the Reporting Period and the incident
outcomes of the cases. EAEERME
RERBAHETASHESRETEEEANESHARGTNEE RFAER

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and 5.6

how they are implemented and monitored.

FE L 0 1E i S BB IRAR - LA AR BIT R EE R A

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. 5.6

HMEFRE ITRENRESE
Community

#HE
Aspect B8: Community Investment
BEBS : HtBERE
General Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the 6
Disclosure communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take
—RIFE into consideration the communities’ interests.
FRANME2ERTREEMCHRFENBRREELZDHEZELRFEN
R
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, 6

labour needs, health, culture, sport).
EIERMEB(NHE  BEEHE  BIFFR @K it 8g5)
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. 6

EETHBAPAER(MSERFRH)
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Biographical Information of Directors and

Senior Management
ESRERAEEAER[/N

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. WANG Zhiyong, aged 49, has been the
Chairman and an executive Director of the Company
since 17 October 2020. Mr. WANG graduated from
Nankai University in 1994 with a bachelor’'s degree
in economics. He also obtained a master’s degree
in economics from Nankai University in 2009 and a
doctorate degree in economics from Nankai University
in 2020. Mr. WANG was the head of transactions of the
International Department of Northern International Trust
and Investment Company Limited* (it 75 B B = 3£ 18 &
B% 17 & R A & ) prior to joining Tsinlien Group (Tianjin)
Asset Management Company Limited* (25 & B (X 2)
EEZEEARAR)(“Tsinlien Group (Tianjin) Asset”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Tsinlien Group Company
Limited G2EtE=E AR A T)) (“Tsinlien”) in 1998. He was
formerly the manager of the Finance Department, deputy
general manager and general manager of Tsinlien Group
(Tianjin) Asset. Mr. WANG was formerly the Chairman
of the board of directors of Tsinlien and Tianjin Tsinlien
Investment Holdings Co., Ltd.* (R Z 2 HMIZT ELER B
R~ 7)) (“Tsinlien Investment Holdings”), both being
controlling shareholders of Tianjin Development Holdings
Limited (KEZERIER AR A7) (“Tianjin Development”)
(Stock Code: 882). He also served as the Chairman
of the board of directors and an executive director
of Tianjin Development. Mr. WANG currently serves
as the Chairman of the board of directors of TEDA, a
state-owned company established in the PRC and the
controlling shareholder of the Company.

IFERBEE 495 BE-_T_FTF1H
TEHREEARREZELRITES -
FTRAR-NANOFEXRERAE
THRESEESELEMN - RN _FE
NFERBSERASEESRLTSEMN I
R-ZE_ZFRRERAZLESE L
B TERER—ANNFMAZE S
BMRR2)EEEEARAR(NEHEH
(RR)VEEDEBEBRERQA(NE
B2 EMBAR)A - B HEEK
ERERERNDERAANBERIERSE
B mBERBEE(KE)EESRE
I8 BB RAERIE e TREEHE
R RRFRZBREEBRARRB(Z
BEEZERD(BRREERZERAR
~Rl([REZER]) (BMD AR : 882) K
ERBRR)EFTEER - W ERZE
BREFTGIFRATES - TRAER
EFRE(—HRFERINEERE M
ARBEBRBRR)EFEER -
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Biographical Information of Directors and

Senior Management

EEREREEBEASEHN

Mr. ZUO Zhi Min, aged 58, has been the Vice Chairman
and an executive Director of the Company since 16
October 2020. Mr. ZUO is a PRC senior economist
graduated from Heilongjiang Institute of Commerce in
1987 with a bachelor’s degree in economics. He also
obtained a professional master’s degree in management
science and engineering from China University of
Petroleum (Huadong) in 2006. Mr. ZUO has served
various positions in Sinopec Marketing Co., Ltd.* (/4
A1t $HE AR A A ), Sinopec Assets Management
Corporation* (P A E B EELEE R A7 )and the
Yunan and Shandong crude oil branches of Sinopec
(Stock Code: 386) since August 1987. From August
2018 to date, he serves as the deputy general manager
of China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation Natural Gas
Branch Company* (Bl A h{t TIRH BR QA RARD
A a)) (“Sinopec Gas”), the deputy general manager of
Sinopec Natural Gas Limited Company* (/B /A1t KA R
AR E{E/AR])and an executive director and the general
manager of Great Wall Energy, a substantial shareholder
of the Company.
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Biographical Information of Directors and

Senior Management
ESRERAEEAER[/N

Mr. GAO Liang, aged 53, has been the General
Manager and an executive Director of the Company since
4 August 2009. He has been the Compliance Officer
of the Company since February 2010. He is also the
general manager of Binhai Investment (Tianjin) Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
incorporated in the PRC since April 2009. Mr. GAO s
a senior engineer. He graduated from Wuhan Urban
Construction Institute (2 # M2 R 2267 ) with a major in
environment hygiene engineering in 1988, and obtained
a master’'s degree in business administration from
Nankai University (FAFAE)in 2005. He was the deputy
director of the Science Promotion Center of Urban and
Rural Development Administrative Committee of Tianjin
Municipal (R2T M A RZREBRLZEGRRERFR L) for
the period from 1993 to 1995 and the deputy director
of the Tianjin Municipal Environmental and Hygienic
Engineering Design Council (K& MR A TR &1k for
the period from 1995 to 2001.

Mr. GAO is a member of the Nomination Committee and
the Risk Committee of the Company.

ERELE RESBKR B-_ZTTAF
NAOBESARRAKELRHITE
F-RE_ZE-TF-_ARLEARA
ERTE - mAETE-_FTTAFN
ARABKRE(RZ)BRAR(—HER
PEARKAMBKIZZAMORARLE
MBAR)RKEE - SEERESRT
P2ED - W — A NANFEERBERT
BRERRBEHEIREE YR T
ThERMAAREIEHERELENMN -
BR—AWNW=ZFE-NAAAFERED
pHEREEREEMRERTLEIE
T IR-NNAFE-TT-FEX
REMRHIERARARE

BEENB/ARBREBEZEGNAE
BREBEKE -

ﬁ
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Bilographical Information of Directors and

Senior Management
ESRERAEEAE[/N

Biographical Information of Directors and Senior
Management

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. WANG Gang, aged 55, has been a non-executive
Director since 9 February 2010. Mr. WANG worked as
an Executive Director from 2004, and was re-designated
as a Non-Executive Director in February 2010. Mr.
WANG graduated from the thermal engineering branch
of Tianjin University (K& X2 ) with a bachelor’'s degree
in Engineering in July 1990 and acquired a postgraduate
degree at Tianjin University of Finance & Economics
in July 2001. He is a senior engineer. He is currently
assistant general manager of TEDA. From August 2003 to
May 2004, he was the chairman and general manager of
Tianjin TEDA Gas Company Limited (KZFRZERB AR S
£27)) (“TEDA Gas”) (which is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of TEDA. Mr. WANG was the vice manager of TEDA Heat
and Power Company (ZZEHE XA ), a wholly owned
subsidiary of TEDA, the vice general manager of Tianjin
TEDA Tsinlien Heat & Power Company Limited ( ZxiZ ZE Bt
EHE/NF]), a subsidiary of Tianjin Development, and the
general manager of Guohua Energy Development (Tianjin)
Company Limited (Bl ZEgeRZER(KXE)BR A F)) from
August 1997 to August 2003. Mr. WANG was responsible
for the day-to-day operation of the Group from May 2004
to July 2007.

Mr. SHEN Hong Liang, aged 50, has been a non-
executive Director since 16 October 2020. Mr. SHEN is
a PRC senior economist graduated from the labour and
social security profession of Jilin University in 2011. Mr.
SHEN has served various positions in Qilfield Natural
Gas Application Technology Research Institute Office*
(FERBXARERFEMAZEEMNAE)and Sinopec Gas
since July 1989. From July 2018 to November 2020, Mr.
SHEN served as the manager of the natural gas sales
centre of Sinopec Gas in Northern China and the deputy
general manager of Great Wall Energy, a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Since November 2020, Mr.
SHEN has served as the manager of the terminal market
development centre of Sinopec Gas.
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Senior Management
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Mr. YU Ke Xiang, aged 50, has been as a non-
executive Director since 26 July 2018. He graduated
from The Tianjin University of Finance and Economics
with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Economics in 1993 and a
Master’s Degree in Economics in 1999. Mr. YU has been
in financial asset investment management (foreign and
domestic capital markets) and fund operations for many
years. He joined Tianjin Development since 2010 and has
served in various roles including deputy general manager
and general manager of Tianjin Development Assets
Management Company Limited (K2 REEEEEFRE A
7)), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tianjin Development.
Prior to joining Tianjin Development, Mr. YU was an
assistant to manager of investment banking division and
manager of securities division of Northern International
Trust and Investment Company Limited (1t75 Bl {E 4535
ERMABRAR), head of operations of Tianjin Guoneng
Investment Company Limited (K;ZE R EBR QA A),
senior project manager of fund utilization department of
Bohai Property Insurance Company Limited (33881 &R
SR D AR AT, etc. He is currently the head of capital
operation department of Tianjin Development, general
manager of Tsinlien (Tianjin) Asset Management Company
Limited G2 B (K )2)EEEE AR A7) (@ wholly-owned
subsidiary of Tsinlien), vice president of capital business
department of Tsinlien Investment Holdings (both Tsinlien
and Tsinlien Investment Holdings being the controlling
shareholders of Tianjin Development), as well as a
director of certain subsidiaries of Tianjin Development,
Tsinlien and Tsinlien Investment Holdings.

TrELE BRFES0m: B-F—N
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Senior Management
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. IP Shing Hing J.P., aged 65, has been an
independent non-executive Director since 23 March
2009. He holds a Bachelor of Laws (Hons.) Degree
from the University of Hong Kong and a Master of Arts:
Arbitration and Alternative Dispute Resolution from
the City University of Hong Kong. He is a solicitor and
Notary Public, Hong Kong SAR and China-Appointed
Attesting Officer, and Justice of Peace, and has been a
practising solicitor in Hong Kong for more than 30 years.
He also serves as an independent non-executive director
of Far East Hotels and Entertainment Limited and PC
Partner Group Limited (both listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange). He was an independent non-executive
director of Quam Limited (listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange) during the period from 1 October 2006 to
30 September 2008. He is enthusiastic in community
activities which include serving as the President of The
Law Society of Hong Kong (2002-2004), Vice-President
of The Law Society of Hong Kong (1999-2002), part-
time Member of Central Policy Unit (2004-2005), Deputy
Chairman of the Council of Lingnan University (2014-
2020), Council Member of the Association of China-
Appointed Attesting Officers Limited (since 2002),
Director of Hong Kong Chinese General Chamber of
Commerce (since 1997), and member of Committee of
the Action Committee Against Narcotics.

Mr. IP is the chairman of the Nomination Committee
and the Risk Committee, and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company.
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Senior Management
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Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin, aged 62, has been an
independent non-executive Director since 23 March 2009.
He is currently running his own management consultancy
firm, Hin Yan Consultants Limited. Mr. LAU has previously
worked at Ernst & Young for over 15 years. He graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1981.
Mr. LAU is a Fellow Member of both the ACCA and the
HKICPA. Mr. LAU was a Member of the World Council
of ACCA from May 2002 to September 2011 and the
Chairman of ACCA Hong Kong in 2000/2001. Mr. LAU is
currently the company secretary of Yeebo (International
Holdings) Limited and Hung Fook Tong Group Holdings
Limited. He has been appointed an independent non-
executive director of Comba Telecom Systems Holdings
Limited, Embry Holdings Limited, FIH Mobile Limited,
Samson Holdings Ltd, TCL Electronics Holdings Limited
and IVD Medical Holding Limited respectively and the
shares of these companies are listed on the Main Board
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. LAU has also
been appointed the company secretary of Expert Systems
Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
GEM of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. LAU is the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Risk Committee of the Company.
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Senior Management
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Professor Japhet Sebastian LAW, aged 69, has been
an independent non-executive Director since 23 March
2009. He obtained his Ph.D. in Mechanical/Industrial
Engineering from the University of Texas at Austin in
1976. He joined the Chinese University of Hong Kong in
1986. He was the Associate Dean and subsequently the
Dean of the Faculty of Business Administration of the
Chinese University of Hong Kong from 1993 until 2002.
Professor LAW has acted as a consultant with various
corporations in Hong Kong and overseas and is currently
an independent non-executive director of the following
companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange:
Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited, Global
Digital Creations Holdings Limited, Shougang Fushan
Resources Group Limited, Regal Hotels International
Holdings Limited and Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics
(Group) Corporation Limited. He also serves as an
independent supervisor of Beijing Capital International
Airport Company Limited. He was an independent non-
executive director of Cypress Jade Agricultural Holdings
Limited from December 2011 to July 2013. He is also
active in public services, having served as Member of
the Provisional Regional Council of the Hong Kong SAR
Government, and various Government and charitable
boards and committees.

Professor LAW is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Risk Committee of the
Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YIN Fu Gang, aged 46, was appointed as a
Deputy General Manager of the Company and the
secretary to the Board on 13 January 2021. Mr. YIN
holds a Master’s degree in Laws granted by the Nankai
University (FFIAEZ:) of the PRC and a Master’s degree
in Business Administration in Finance granted by the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. YIN is a qualified
lawyer in the PRC and also has the professional
qualifications as a judge, company lawyer, a senior
corporate legal adviser and an intermediate economist
in the PRC. During the period from 1997 to 2002, Mr.
YIN was a former court judge of the People’s Court of
Jinnan District, Tianjin. During the period from 2005
to 2009, he was a Corporate Counsel Section Chief in
TEDA. He served successively as the Routine Deputy
General Manager, the Company Secretary and the Chief
Finance Officer of the Company since 2009. Thereafter,
from 2019 to 2020, he held several senior managerial
positions within Jiangsu Gaoli Group Co., Ltd. (/& 7k
£E AR A F))and its subsidiaries. He has extensive work
experience in law, finance, audit, risk control, strategic
investment, and governance of listed companies.

Mr. XI Ming, aged 40, was appointed as a Deputy
General Manager and the Chief Finance Officer of
the Company on 16 October 2020. Mr. Xl is a PRC
intermediate accountant and PRC senior economist
graduated from China University of Petroleum (Huadong)
in 2006 with a bachelor’s degree in accounting. He also
obtained a master’s degree in crude oil and natural gas
engineering from Xi’an Shiyou University in 2017. Mr. XI
has work experience in various aspects, including asset
and investment management, accounting, audit and
report management, and tax management, in Sinopec
Gas since 2006.
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Mr. GAO Feng, aged 52, joined the Group in May
2002. He is currently the Deputy General Manager of the
Group. Mr. GAO obtained his qualification in Construction
Engineering Management from the Hebei University of
Architecture OFJbZ2E T2 &% ) in 1996, and is qualified
as an Assistant Economist of the PRC. From 2002 to
2020, Mr. GAO held positions in the Group’s Operations
and Safety Management Department and Engineering
Department, and has served as the Operations Director
and Assistant General Manager of the Group.

Ms. ZHANG Wen, aged 43, joined the Group in February
2010. She is currently the Deputy General Manager of the
Group. Ms. ZHANG is qualified as a Senior Economist
of the PRC. Ms. ZHANG obtained her qualification in
Computer Software and Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering
from the Tianjin University of Technology (X /& 1 T X
B )in 1999. Ms. ZHANG graduated from the Nankai
University (F9 B K2 ) with a Master’'s Degree in Business
Management in 2010. From 2010 to 2020, Ms. ZHANG
held positions in the Group’s General Manager Office
and Tender Management Office, and has served as the
Administrative Director and Assistant General Manager of
the Group.

*

For identification purposes only
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The Directors present their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
OPERATION ANALYSIS

The Company is an investment holding company. Details
of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in Note 14 to the financial statements. The
analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
business segments is set out in Note 7 to the financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 is set out in the sections headed
“Financial Highlights”, “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 8 to
9, pages 10 to 13, pages 14 to 21 respectively of this
Annual Report.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability
of the environment and communities in which it engages.
Acting in an environmentally responsible manner, the
Group endeavours to identify and adopt effective
measures to achieve efficient use of resources, energy
saving and waste reduction. Details of which are set out
in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on
pages 48 to 120 of this Annual Report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations by the Group.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

The Fifth Plenary Session of the 19th CPC Central
Committee put forward a major plan of “promoting
comprehensive green transformation of economic and
social development”. It was reported that the PRC
will strive to achieve the goal to be “carbon neutral”
by 2060. Meanwhile, during the 14th Five-Year Plan
Period, the PRC will accelerate the promotion of new
energy development, which will in turn contribute to the
continuous increase in natural gas consumption.

At present, Tianjin Clean Energy, with the biggest share
of natural gas sales of the Group, directly sources from
the three largest oil and gas sources. In particular, in
2020, Great Wall Energy has become a shareholder of
the Company. Taking advantage of the direct connection
with Sinopec’s Tianjin LNG receiving terminal, objectively
the Company is able to receive overseas LNG from
Sinopec without relying on the national pipeline network
by means of integration or engaged transportation, thus
creating an advantageous condition for the Company
to lower the procurement costs and increase the gas
distribution volume, and creating conditions for further
development of the Tangshan natural gas market. At
the same time, other subsidiaries are accelerating the
direct connection with Sinopec’s natural gas source.
Upon completion of the relevant projects, the natural
gas source problem of most subsidiaries can be solved.
However, due to the uncertainty of the household gas
consumption indicator and the assessment of the natural
gas storage capacity, there is also an uncertainty risk in
the procurement costs of the natural gas source.
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FINANCIAL RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The financial results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss on page 174.

According to the dividend policy of the Company, the
Board recommended a final dividend of HK$0.079 per
ordinary share (the “Final Dividend”) for the year ended
31 December 2020 (year ended 31 December 2019:
HK$0.035 per ordinary share).

The Final Dividend is subject to approval by holders of
the ordinary shares of the Company at the annual general
meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company to be held on 14
May 2021 and is expected to be paid on or about 11
June 2021.

CLOSURES OF REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

(a) For determining the entitlement to attend and
vote at the AGM

Shareholders of the Company whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on
Friday, 14 May 2021 will be eligible to attend
and, in relation to holders of ordinary shares, to
vote at the AGM. The register of members of the
Company will be closed from Tuesday, 11 May
2021 to Friday, 14 May 2021 (both days inclusive).
All completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office, Hong Kong Registrars Limited of
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 10
May 2021.
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(b) For determining the entitlement to the Final
Dividend

The Final Dividend will be payable to the holders of
ordinary shares whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on Wednesday, 26
May 2021 and the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Monday, 24 May
2021 to Wednesday, 26 May 2021 (both days
inclusive). In order to qualify for the Final Dividend,
all completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office, Hong Kong Registrars Limited of
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 21
May 2021.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

A summary of the financial results, assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years ended 31
December 2020 is set out on page 352.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
Note 18 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had
1,352,025,133 ordinary shares at par value of HK$0.10
each (“Ordinary Share(s)”) and 7,040,000 redeemable
preference shares at par value of HK$50.00 each
(“Redeemable Preference Share(s)”) in issue.

Subscription and Disposal

In order to broaden the shareholder base of the
Company, on 23 April 2020, the Company (as issuer)
entered into the Subscription Agreement with Great Wall
Energy (as subscriber). Pursuant to the Subscription
Agreement, the Company conditionally agreed to
allot and issue, and Great Wall Energy conditionally
agreed to subscribe for, an aggregate of 177,676,183
Subscription Shares at the Subscription Price of
HK$1.33 per Subscription Share (which is equivalent to
the closing price of the shares of the Company on the
date of signing of the Subscription Agreement) under a
specific mandate subsequently approved at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 3 July 2020.
The gross proceeds from the Subscription amounted
to approximately HK$236,309,000 (based on the
Subscription Price). The net proceeds of the Subscription
(after deducting related professional fees and related
expenses) amounted to approximately HK$234,721,000.
As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 12
June 2020, the Company used 70% of the net proceeds
from the Subscription as general working capital of the
Group and the balance as repayment of the Group’s loan
for the gas procurement costs.

On 23 April 2020, TEDA HK (as vendor), being the
controlling shareholder of the Company, and Great Wall
Energy (as purchaser) entered into the Share Purchase
Agreement, pursuant to which TEDA HK conditionally
agreed to sell, and Great Wall Energy conditionally
agreed to purchase, an aggregate of 227,796,154
Ordinary Shares of the Company at HK$1.33 per share,
which is the same as the Subscription Price.
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Details of the nature and terms of the Subscription
Agreement and the Share Purchase Agreement are set
out in the circular of the Company dated 12 June 2020.

Completion of the Subscription and the Disposal took
place on 24 September 2020. Following the completion of
the Subscription and the Disposal, Great Wall Energy HK
(a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Great Wall Energy)
became a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Redemption of Redeemable Preference Shares

8,600,000 Redeemable Preference Shares were issued
to Cavalier Asia Limited for the consideration of HK$430
million on 4 May 2009, all of which were subsequently
transferred to TEDA HK in August 2011. The Redeemable
Preference Shares are redeemable at the discretion of the
Company at their par value of HK$50.00 per Redeemable
Preference Share as from the fifth anniversary of the date
of resumption of trading of the Ordinary Shares on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (i.e. 12
May 2009), subject to various conditions.

In view of the fulfillment of the conditions, the
Company redeemed 640,000 Redeemable Preference
Shares at the redemption amount of HK$50.00 per
Redeemable Preference Share on 28 November
2018, redeemed 520,000 Redeemable Preference
Shares at the redemption amount of HK$50.00 per
Redeemable Preference Share on 27 June 2019, and
redeemed 400,000 Redeemable Preference Shares at
the redemption amount of HK$50.00 per Redeemable
Preference Share on 10 June 2020. Details of the above
redemptions are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 19 November 2018, 26 June 2019 and
10 June 2020.

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2020
including particulars of the above redemption of
Redeemable Preference Shares are set out in Note 29 to
the financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which
impose an obligation on the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to the Shareholders.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in Note 31 and Note
41 to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company had no reserves available for cash
distribution and/or distribution in specie as calculated
under the Companies Act of Bermuda as at 31 December
2020 (as at 31 December 2019: Nil).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Company (as issuer) entered into the Subscription
Agreement with Great Wall Energy (as subscriber) on 23
April 2020, details of which are set out in the section
headed “SHARE CAPITAL” of this report. The Company
had a share option scheme (which had expired) during
the year, and had proposed the adoption of a new share
option scheme at the end of the year, details of which
are set out in the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME” of this report. Save as disclosed above, no
other equity-linked agreements were entered into during
the year ended 31 December 2020 or subsisted at the
end of the year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
made no charitable donations or other donations (for year
ended 31 December 2019: Nil).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME
2010 Scheme

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
20 August 2010, the Shareholders approved the adoption
of a new share option scheme (the “2010 Scheme”) in
place of the previous scheme which had lapsed. The
Company has been operating the 2010 Scheme for
the purpose of providing the Company with a flexible
means of giving incentives to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/ or providing benefits to the eligible
participants of the 2010 Scheme (the “Participants”).
Participants include the Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) and employees of the Group.
The 2010 Scheme became effective on 20 August 2010
and remained in force until 19 August 2020.

The maximum number of share options permitted to
be granted under the 2010 Scheme was an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the Ordinary
Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the 2010
Scheme. The total number of Ordinary Shares issued
under the 2010 Scheme and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each Participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) under the 2010
Scheme in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the total number of Ordinary Shares in issue unless
approved by the Shareholders.

There was no minimum period for which an option under
the 2010 Scheme must be held before such option can
be exercised. HK$1 was payable by each Participant
to the Company upon acceptance of an offer under the
2010 Scheme.
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The exercise price of the share options under the 2010
Scheme was determinable by the Board and would
at least be the highest of (a) the closing price of the
Ordinary Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of the offer under the 2010
Scheme; (b) the average closing prices of the Ordinary
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s quotations
sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding the
date of the offer under the 2010 Scheme; and (c) the par
value of the Ordinary Shares.

Pursuant to the 2010 Scheme, the Company granted
90,500,000 share options to the Directors and certain
employees under continuous contract with the Group on
27 September 2010. Upon the share consolidation of the
Company taking effect on 14 May 2015, the total number
of shares that would be issued upon the exercise of the
outstanding share options under the 2010 Scheme was
adjusted from 55,500,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each to 5,550,000 consolidated ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each, and the exercise price of such options
had also been adjusted from HK$0.56 per ordinary
share of HK$0.01 each to HK$5.60 per consolidated
ordinary share of HK$0.10 each. During the year ended
31 December 2020, 2,800,000 share options were
outstanding and had lapsed on 26 September 2020.
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Details of movement of share options granted under the
2010 Scheme regarding Directors and employees of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2020 are
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T

2,300,000 (2,300,000) - -

500,000 (500,000) - -

2,800,000 (2,800,000) - -

Note: The exercisable period of the share options was 10 years
from the date of grant.

Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2020.
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2021 Scheme

Since the 2010 Scheme had expired, the Company
proposed the adoption of a new share option scheme
(the “2021 Scheme”) at the end of 2020 as an incentive
and award plan for senior management and personnel of
the Group.

At the special general meeting of the Company held
on 13 January 2021, the Shareholders approved the
adoption of the 2021 Scheme. The purpose of the
2021 Scheme is to (1) further improving the governance
structure of the Company, and establishing a sound and
modern corporate system; (2) promoting more focus
of the management team and key employees on the
Company’s operating performance and establishing a
benefit sharing and risk sharing mechanism among the
Shareholders, the Company and strategic investors;
and (3) establishing a long-term and effective incentive
mechanism to attract and retain key talents and
motivating the corporate vitality to support the Company
in achieving its strategic objectives. Participants of
the 2021 Scheme include the Directors (excluding
independent non-executive Directors), the senior
management personnel, and core technical personnel
and key management personnel of the Company and its
subsidiaries who have a direct impact on the Company’s
overall operating performance and sustainable
development. The 2021 Scheme became effective on
13 January 2021 and, unless otherwise terminated in
advance under the relevant requirements of the scheme,
will remain in force until 12 January 2031.

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon
exercise of all the share options to be granted under the
2021 Scheme is an amount equivalent to 10% of the
Ordinary Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
2021 Scheme. Unless approved by a special resolution
at a general meeting, the shares issued and to be issued
upon the exercise of the share options granted to each
participant (including exercised or outstanding share
options) under the 2021 Scheme shall not exceed 1% of
the total Ordinary Shares in issue of the Company as at
the date when the scheme was approved at a general
meeting.
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The restriction period of the 2021 Scheme commences
from the grant date of the share options and lasts for
twenty-four months. The vesting period for the share
options granted under the 2021 Scheme is seven years
commencing from the grant date, upon the expiry of
which the outstanding share options granted shall lapse
automatically. No fee shall be payable by a participant of
the 2021 Scheme on the application for or acceptance of
the grant of share options.

The exercise price of the share options of the 2021
Scheme shall be determined in accordance with the fair
market price principle. The exercise price shall be the
higher of the three following prices: (i) the closing price
of the Ordinary Shares on the grant date; (ii) the average
closing price of the Ordinary Shares on the five trading
days prior to the grant date; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Ordinary Shares on the grant date.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhang Bing Jun (Chairman)
(resigned on 16 October 2020)
Mr. Wang Zhiyong (Chairman)
(appointed on 17 October 2020)
Mr. Zuo Zhi Min (Vice Chairman)
(appointed on 16 October 2020)
Mr. Gao Liang (General Manager)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Gang
Ms. Cao Hong Mei

(resigned on 16 October 2020)
Ms. Peng Bo

(resigned on 16 October 2020)
Mr. Shen Hong Liang

(appointed on 16 October 2020)
Mr. Yu Ke Xiang

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P.

Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin
Professor Japhet Sebastian LAW
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The Company has received an annual confirmation
of independence from each of its independent non-
executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

In accordance with code provision A.4.2 of Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules and Bye-Law 87(1) of the Bye-
laws of the Company, Mr. GAO Liang (executive Director
and General Manager), Mr. YU Ke Xiang (non-executive
Director) and Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P. (independent non-
executive Director), who are longest in office since their
previous re-election, will retire by rotation and will be
eligible for re-election at the AGM of the Company.

RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHANG Bing Jun resigned as an executive director of
the Company and the chairman of the Board with effect
from 16 October 2020 due to change of job positions.
Ms. CAO Hong Mei and Ms. PENG Bo resigned as non-
executive directors of the Company with effect from
16 October 2020 respectively due to change of job
positions. During the year, no director resigned from his
office or refused to stand for re-election to his office due
to reasons relating to the affairs of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Independent non-executive Directors have a term of
office of two years and non-executive Directors have a
term of office of three years, both subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-
Laws.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Group which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS WITH
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Save for the contracts between the Group and TEDA
and its subsidiaries as disclosed in the section headed
“CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” of this
report, there were no material contracts between the
Group and its controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Group were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

No Director had any interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete with the business of the
Group as at 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party which
subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December
2020 or at any time during the period.
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest
paid individuals are set out in Note 12 and Note 43
to the consolidated financial statement to this report.
More particulars are also set out in the section headed
“REMUNERATION COMMITTEE” in the “CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT”.

CHANGE IN DIRECTOR’S
INFORMATION

In November 2020, Mr. SHEN Hong Liang, a non-
executive Director, ceased to serve as the manager of
the natural gas sales centre of Sinopec Gas in Northern
China and the deputy general manager of Great Wall
Energy, a substantial shareholder of the Company. Since
November 2020, Mr. SHEN has served as the manager
of the terminal market development centre of Sinopec
Gas, which is a branch company of Sinopec being a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P., an independent non-executive
Director, retired as a Deputy Chairman of the Council of
Lingnan University with effect from 24 October 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report,
the Company is not aware of any change in the Directors’
information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-Laws of the Company provides that for the
time being acting in relation to any of the affairs of the
Company, every director shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in
or omitted in or about the execution of duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has taken out insurance against the
liabilities and costs associated with defending any
proceedings which may be brought against the directors
of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVES,
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

(a)

Interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives in the share capital of
the Company and its associated corporations

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short
positions of the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”),
Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) which were
required to be: (a) recorded in the register kept

by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO; or (b) notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed lIssuers (the
“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:
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Professor Japhet Beneficial 100,000 - - 100,000 - 100,000 0.01%
Sebastian LAW owner
Eyas L5 )
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Director’s rights to acquire shares or

debentures

Pursuant to the 2010 Scheme, the Company
granted options to subscribe for Ordinary Shares to
the Directors, the details of which are as follows:

ESRBERONERET 2ER

RIFE2010 R #EFTE - AR FE
FETEEREARARNF LB
ZEERRRE BT

Mr, GAO Liang
mEE

ol

Mr, WANG Gang
Tk

Mr. IP Shing Hing, J.P.

ENRREAFEL

Mr. LAU Siu Ki, Kevin

Yart

Professor Japhet
Sebastian LAW
BUEIR

219.2010

219.2010

21.9.2010

219.2010

2192010

219.2010 - 26.9.2020

219.2010 - 26.9.2020

219.2010 - 26.9.2020

219.2010 - 26.9.2020

21.9.2010 - 26.9.2020

56

56

56

56

56

1,000,000 - -

700,000 - -

200,000 - -

200,000 - -

200,000 - -

Note: The exercisable period of the above share options
is 10 years from the date of grant. The above
share options had lapsed on 26 September 2020.
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Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2020 were rights to acquire
benefit by means of the acquisition of any class of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any Director or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights
exercised by them, or was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire such right in any
other body corporate.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020,
there were no other interests or short positions
of the Directors and the chief executives of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (as defined under Part XV of the
SFO) entered in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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(b)

Interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders and other persons in the share
capital of the Company

As at 31 December 2020, the persons (not being
a Director or chief executive of the Company) or
companies who or which had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO and recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO are listed
as follows:

TEDA (Note 1) Long Interest of controlled - -
corporation
REHi) ff REHAT ER
China Petrochemical Long Interest of controlled - -
Corporation (Note 2) corporation
RERk 158 i XBHRE BR
RRAAKE2)

nterest of controlled - -
corporation

Al (Hiy ff REBAT R

Sinopec (Note 3) Long

(b) FERRREMATREITRAE
ZEBERKR

R-ZZE-_FEF+_A=+—H ®
ARARZBROSABEBROPHEAR
BEFSLBERIEXVIHE2 R
SEFAMAN T B A FT#E BR 2 1
mIKE - REARBESRHE
1RBIE 3B IREBEEF2ELRMAZ
Bm AR ZALT(RRABIEEN
FETBABRIN AR YA
T

479,022,505 - 479022505 35.43%
405,472,337 - doodn2 3 29.99%
405,472,337 - AoAn 3T 29.99%
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Notes:

1.  TEDA HK, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of TEDA,
beneficially owned 479,022,505 Ordinary Shares.

28 China Petrochemical Corporation is the controlling
shareholder of Sinopec. China Petrochemical
Corporation was deemed to be interested in all the
shares held by Sinopec pursuant to the Securities
and Futures Ordinance.

3. Great Wall Energy HK, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Sinopec, beneficially owned 405,472,337 Ordinary
Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December
2020, the Company had not been notified of any
other interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which were
recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S
INTERESTS IN NON-COMPETING GAS
SUPPLY BUSINESSES

The Group disposed of its interests in thirty subsidiaries
(“Disposed Subsidiaries”) to Cavalier Asia Limited to
hold on behalf of TEDA HK pursuant to an agreement
(the “2008 Disposal Agreement”) dated 28 May 2008 (as
amended) between Cavalier Asia Limited and a subsidiary
of the Company. The 2008 Disposal Agreement was
deemed completed in May 2009. Since then, the
Group has repurchased interests in six of the Disposed
Subsidiaries from TEDA HK, TEDA HK has disposed
of interests in eighteen of the Disposed Subsidiaries to
independent third parties, and three of the Disposed
Subsidiaries were de-registered. As at 31 December
2020, TEDA HK held no interests in the Disposed
Subsidiaries.
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Apart from the Disposed Subsidiary as mentioned above,
TEDA owns a 51% of the equity interest in TEDA Gas and
a minority interest in Tianjin Eco-City Energy Investment
Construction Company Limited (“Tianjin Eco-City”) which
are engaged in the supply of gas to end users.

TEDA Gas mainly serves the purpose of supplying
natural gas to the Tianjin Economic and Technological
Development Area at preferential rates in order to
enhance the appeal of such area to investors and is not
a purely commercial enterprise. The Group supplies gas
to TEDA Gas on a market basis and accordingly earns
profit. The Group does not have the operating right
granted by the government of the Tianjin Economic and
Technological Development Area to supply gas to the
local end users in such area. Besides, the Company does
not consider it commercially desirable for the Group to
supply gas to the local end users in such area.

Tianjin Eco-City is directly owned as to 51% equity
interest by Tianjin Eco-City Investment Development
Company Limited (owned by TEDA as to 23.19% equity
interest), a company established under a national-grade
cooperation project between the PRC government and
the Singapore Government that manages and operates
a particular district in the Binhai New Area. Tianjin Eco-
City purchases gas from the Group for its own use and
to satisfy the demand of end users in such district in
accordance with the intention of the local government,
and does not carry out the business of sale of gas to
customers. The Group does not have the operating right
granted by the government of such district to supply gas
to the local end users.
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As the businesses of TEDA Gas and Tianjin Eco-City
are differentiated from the business of the Group by
target customers, the Directors consider that there is
no business competition between the Group and the
TEDA Group. Save for TEDA'’s interest in TEDA Gas and
Tianjin Eco-City, none of the Directors or controlling
shareholders of the Company or their respective
associates had any interest in a business which may
compete with the business of the Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

As at the date of this report, TEDA through its wholly-
owned subsidiary holds approximately 35.43% of the
total issued ordinary shares of the Company and is the
controlling shareholder of the Company. TEDA and its
subsidiaries and associates are connected persons of
the Company. Great Wall Energy through its wholly-
owned subsidiary holds approximately 29.99% of the
total issued ordinary shares of the Company and is the
substantial shareholder of the Company. Since Great Wall
Energy is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sinopec, Sinopec
is a connected person of the Company. Since Sinopec
Gas is a branch company of Sinopec, Sinopec Gas
and its subsidiaries and associates are also connected
persons of the Company. Since Sinopec exercises or
controls the exercise of 30% or more of the voting power
at the general meeting of Sinopec Binhai Investment
(Tianjin) Natural Gas Utilization Co., Ltd. (“SBI”), SBI is an
associate of Sinopec and is thus a connected person of
the Company
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During the year, the Group’s continuing connected
transactions with the above connected persons were as

follows:

(a) Master gas supply agreement

Date of the agreement: 19 November 2018

Duration: From 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2021

Parties: TEDA

The Company

Transaction involved: Supply of natural gas by the
Group to TEDA and its
subsidiaries and associates
pursuant to agreements for
supply of natural gas to be
entered into from time to
time

Annual cap for the period RMB537,234,000
from 1 January 2020 to
31 December 2020:

Actual transaction RMB219,073,100
amount in the period
from 1 January 2020 to
31 December 2020:
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Bz - HHE

NAIREE A e
KRR

BE-Z-% AR
F—A—H 537,234,000 7T
E22E-FT
F+-H
=+—81
FELR:

BE-E-F AR
F—HA—H 219,073,100 7T
2T F
F+-A
=+—Hit
EER S
8
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(b) Master gas supply connection agreement

Date of the agreement: 19 November 2018

Duration: From 1 January 2019 to
31 December 2021

Parties: TEDA
the Company

Transaction involved: Provision of gas supply
connection services by
the Group to TEDA and its
subsidiaries and associates
pursuant to the agreements
for services of construction
of gas connection facilities
entered into from time to
time

Annual cap for the period RMB30,302,000
from 1 January 2020 to
31 December 2020 (as
revised and approved
by ordinary resolution
passed at a special
general meeting of the
Company held on 24
October 2019):

Actual transaction RMB9,311,100
amount in the period
from 1 January 2020 to
31 December 2020:
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(c) Master gas supply agreement with Sinopec Gas (c)

BERA{ RART LRRHAEER

17 &

Date of the agreement: 23 April 2020 et —ZE-ZFNMA
HE: —+=H

Duration: From 24 September 2020 to FH H-ZE-ZTFN
31 December 2039 A-+WHZE=
(both days inclusive) T=NFTZA

=+—HB(BEEE
MX)
Parties: Sinopec Gas oDk RARIERAR
Binhai Investment (Tianjin) BERE(XKE)ER
Company Limited (“BHI REl([BERERXR
Tianjin”) 1)

Transaction involved: BHI Tianjin and its subsidiaries 5 RIBEGIREREK
will purchase natural gas HB AR (EA—
from the Sinopec Gas F)EFARAR
Group, pursuant to the o ELH B 1 B o B
individual agreements for EAERE—F)
the sale and purchase of BB RT3 2 {8 Bl
natural gas to be entered ARREE W= -
into between BHI Tianjin or BERERERE
its subsidiaries on the one MEARERTA
hand, and Sinopec Gas or ERAREEHBE
its subsidiaries or associates RIAR o
on the other hand, from
time to time.

Annual cap for the period RMB544,113,000 BE-E-F AR

from 1 June 2020 to FXA—H 544,113,000 7T
31 December 2020: 2ZT-F
F+_H
=+—Hit
HARE EBR -
Actual transaction RMB225,780,910 BE-Z=% AR
amount in the period FXA—H 225,780,9107C
from 1 June 2020 to 2T
31 December 2020: F+_H
=t+—A1
HEERR
VIR
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(d) Gas supply agreement with SBI

Date of the agreement: 9 November 2020

Duration: From 9 November 2020 to
31 December 2021
(both days inclusive)
Parties: SBI

Tianjin Clean Energy
Transaction involved: Tianjin Clean Energy will
supply natural gas to SBI
according to the demand for
natural gas as required by
SBI from time to time.

Annual cap for the period
from 9 November 2020
to 31 December 2020:

RMB8,583,540

Actual transaction
amount in the period
from 9 November 2020
to 31 December 2020:

RMBS8,277,750
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(e) Gas transmission agreement with SBI (e) BEAPAERIILMRE@ N Z
Date of the agreement: 9 November 2020 WEET A : —T-FTF+—H
=
Duration: From 9 November 2020 to FH HZE-ZTF+—H
31 December 2021 NARRE-T——
(both days inclusive) F+—-A=+—H
(BREEEMX)
Parties: SBI A RALER
Tianjin Clean Energy REBREIR

Transaction involved: Tianjin Clean Energy will G

transmit natural gas to SBI
from time to time. Such
natural gas is purchased
and obtained by SBI

from upstream natural

gas suppliers, and will be
transmitted to SBI by Tianjin
Clean Energy after receiving
the natural gas.

Annual cap for the period RMB15,600 H-ZZT-THF
from 9 November 2020 T—HAABR
to 31 December 2020: EITTF

+-A=1—
A HiME

Actual transaction amount RMB10,890 E-ZE-ZF
in the period from T—AAAR
9 November 2020 to ETTF
31 December 2020: +=-RB=+—

AHREEBRR
HE

REB RGN
CILFEEI L& p
RAR > HFERA
REPRLERRA
LB RARSIER
BELDSE - A
RARRERBERIZ
BikBEER AL

B o

AR 15,6007C

AE#10,890 7T
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Details on related party transactions for the year
are set out in Note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of any related party transaction
which also constitute connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction not exempted
under rule 14A.73 of the Listing Rules are disclosed
above. The Group has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in respect of such transactions.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions of
the Group disclosed on pages 153 and 157 of the
Annual Report in accordance with rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions
referred to above for the year ended 31 December
2020 and confirm that these transactions have been
entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Binhai Investment Company Limited & &% & GR A7
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

The Company adopted the 2021 Scheme and granted
certain share options thereunder on 13 January 2021,
details of which are set out in the section headed
“SHARE OPTION SCHEME” of this report and Note 40 to
the financial statements.

There is no event after the reporting period which would
have a material impact on the Company’s financial
position.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, sales to the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for 18% (for
year ended 31 December 2019: 21%) of the total revenue
from sales of goods and service, and revenue from sales
to the largest customer (TEDA Gas) included therein
accounted for 5% (for year ended 31 December 2019:
8% (The largest customer was TEDA Gas).

Purchases from the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for 49% (for year ended 31 December 2019:
53%) of the total purchases for the year ended 31
December 2020 and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein accounted for 16% (for year ended 31
December 2019: 27%).

Among the five largest customers of the Group, TEDA
Gas is a connected person of the Company.

BB RARERESE

ARBIR-_ZT-_—F—A+=ZHE&EH
2021 FHERETEWIREFTETER
o HFBHNARE [ BRETE ] —
B R B ISR MIFE 40 ©

RMBHRRBE - RAEZLEERHHR
NEFBERABEERZERNEH -

TEEFRHER

HE-_T-_THF+A=+T—HLHF
B AEEESEARERFPZHEREMN
RNEFHEBEEWAI18% (BHE-_ZT—H
F+_A=+—HIEEE:21%) &
PEARP(RERR)EAFERH
EWAZ%(HE-_ZT—ALF+ A
=t+—BLEE 8% (ZARF BFRE
AR o

HE-_ZT-_TF+_A=+—HLHF
B ASEBERARTRERERZEK
B HAFTERBATEIONHZE
ZE-NFF+ZA=FT—HLEFE:
53%) R s AMHERZKBEMLAE
FERBBEZI6%(HE-_ZT—hLF
T A=+—BILEE :27%) °

RARZREFTF  FENRRRBARAZ
FEATL -

Annual Report 2020 — = — TG,

159



160

Directors’ Report

ESETHE

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of or any
of their close associates or any Shareholders (which, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital) had any
beneficial interest in any of the five largest customers and
suppliers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION
OF LISTED SECURITIES

Bonds in an aggregate principal amount of
US$300,000,000 issued by the Company on 22
November 2017 had been redeemed at their principal
amount on maturity on 30 November 2020. Save as
disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s other listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2020.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as
at the date of this report, there is sufficient public float of
not less than 25% of the total issued Ordinary Shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who are due to retire and, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM.
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM to
re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as external auditor of
the Company.

Binhai Investment Company Limited & &% & GR A7
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Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was an external auditor of the
Company for the financial year of 2018 and resigned as
the external auditor of the Company with effect from 20
June 2019.

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the external
auditor of the Company at the special general meeting
of the Company held on 12 July 2019, and was re-
appointed at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 15 May 2020.

On behalf of the Board
Binhai Investment Company Limited

Gao Liang
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 18 March 2021
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To the Shareholders of Binhai Investment Company
Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Binhai
Investment Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 174 to 351,
which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2020;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements,

which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.
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OPINION — continued

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment.

FARETEE

FARETSHERERMANFE R HE -
RREUETAHEHYBEBRERNBTRAE
EMER - BLFREERMFFERE
EHMBHRRALOARARETRE
B M AU ELRREHREBNE
R

HZAEZRFTRAINEREAFTALY
TEE - BERRBIBENG

Impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment

HAPE - BFE RREREN S

In connection with the impairment assessment on
property, plant and equipment, we have performed
the following procedures:

HEAE - BERREZRENS - RARTTAT

Refer to Note 4.9, Note 6(i) and 5 :

Note 18 to the consolidated financial

Binhai Investment Company Limited

statements.
BAMA MY BHRENTEL.9 - HIFE6() A
MzE18 o

(1)

BERERRAA

Understood, evaluated and validated the
Group’s internal controls over the impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment
and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud;

T FELAREBEEEHIHE  KRELRE
BAERT B A EBIES - BB E BT AT ML
BREMEMERRRERNKE  BFEEHNT -
FEM BNERBERSEROGRMN - T
HERERAE AR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS — continued FRETSEIE(E)

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying  (2) Understood and evaluated the management’s

amount of the Group’s property, plant processes in identifying impairment indicators;
and equipment was HK$5,246.8 million, THRIFEEREEHRETRBZINNESENE

representing total costs of HK$6,300.3
million less accumulated depreciation (3) Evaluated the outcome of prior period

of HK$854.6 million and accumulated assessment of impairment of property, plant
impairment loss provision of HK$198.9 and equipment to assess the effectiveness of
million. The impairment loss as management’ s estimation process.
recognised during the year ended 31 FEARHREEREESIHE BEMAXERE
December 2020 amounted to HK$9.8 FEPHEBZANTMER  UTEEEEELM
million. ETHURAZ A L

W-_ZE-_TF+-_F=+—H8 AEET
FE- - MELREFESEERESL24688
BB WERESE A6,300.3H 85
T BETESEAESSLIEEBT B
HREEECEA1989EEET T
TEFEHEANBERLALEAISHSE
BT e
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS — continued FRETSEIE(E)

The property, plant and equipment
directly as held by certain loss-making
subsidiaries of the Company were
identified for impairment assessment
(collectively the “Assets with Impairment
Indicators”) and their recoverable
amounts have been determined based
on the higher of their value-in-use and
their fair value less costs of disposal.
As at 31 December 2020, the carrying
amount of the Assets with Impairment
Indicators amounted to HK$99.5 million
(representing total costs of HK$200.9
million less accumulated depreciation
of HK$30.7 million and accumulated
impairment loss provision of HK$70.7
million).

BRETRARNTEHE BMELKREER
BEFR(ATERBFERETRNE
El  FEETRENMG  FERETR
WEENAWEEEREAEEREARE
BRERERNAZESERTE - R_T=
TFE+A=+—H GEREIRHNE
ENFESEROSBEET(HERE
THER2009B&E BT BtTESER
30.7HBEIT At HMEEBTERT0.7
AE&AT) -

(4)

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7

For the Assets with Impairment Indicators,
examined the management’ s value-in-use
calculations as follows:
HEFEREDRNEE KO THTHREER
EBHEREBENE

° Engaged our internal valuation experts
to evaluate the reasonableness of the
methodology and pre-tax discount rate as
adopted by management;
EABHEEREZNH T @ FEERE
ERAMFE T EMBE AT R RSB

o Assessed the reasonableness of the
growth rates of business volume, gross
margin and the pre-tax discount rate as
adopted in the value-in-use calculations
by comparing them with historical actual
information and management’ s approved
budget;
RBLERBELEBENBREESL ENEE - &7
HEREBEFETERNHEERE - £7
MM IREN SR

o Compared the expected growth rates of
business volume and the gross margin
to relevant market expectations such as
industry information;

S TEEHIHE G R EMEN K EITE T IS TEH
HEITH®R - PlnTEERS
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS — continued

Management of the Company
(“management”) has therefore
performed impairment assessment to
determine the recoverable amounts of
these Assets with Impairment Indicators
based on value-in-use calculations
(which is higher than the estimated
fair value less costs of disposal of
the related assets). Key assumptions
adopted in the discounted cash flows
for the value-in-use calculations
included the estimates of the growth
rates of business volume, gross margin
and the pre-tax discount rate.
AARERE(EEEEACHREARD
FE(ERBEEEAABEREREK
ROEBE)HFERETRHEENITK
BEEETREN G - ERKBEERER
BAFRERANEIERICEHEERE £
MEFMB AT XK o

FAEESTEER(E)

Evaluated management’ s sensitivity
analysis around key assumptions for
growth rates of business volume, gross
margin and pre-tax discount rate, to
ascertain the extent to which adverse
changes will affect the outcome of the
impairment assessment of the Assets with
Impairment Indicators; and
AEEREEHHEHEERE  EN MBS
REZERRIOGRNEDNT - AT T
BB EZARELREFERETRNE
EREENER AR

Checked the mathematical accuracy of
the value-in-use calculations and the
underlying data used in the calculations.
BECAEBEEFERAERREN2 BN ER
M o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS — continued FRETSEIE(E)

In addition to the aforesaid Assets with
Impairment Indicators, management has
also performed a separate impairment
assessment on a property under
construction (the related development and
construction works have been suspended
since June 2011) as owned by a loss-
making subsidiary, with net carrying
amount of HK$75.8 million (representing
total costs of HK$110.9 million less
no accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss provision of
HK$35.1 million) as at 31 December 2020
(the “PUD"). The timing as to when the
development and construction works of
the PUD will be resumed is still uncertain
and hence management considers that
the fair value less costs of disposal of
the PUD represents the best estimates of
the recoverable amount of the PUD. The
fair value less costs of disposal of the
PUD was assessed by using the residual
value method with the assistance from
an external valuer. The key assumptions
adopted in the assessment included the
estimated selling price, development costs
to completion and selling expenses. The
results of the impairment assessment
revealed that no additional provision
for impairment on the PUD has to
be recognised for the year ended 31
December 2020.
REMTFERETFRNEEN  BEER
H-REBEETRRBEANEEZMEXGARMA
BERTIEE _E——FNABRYE)#ET
TEBNREN G BEC T:$$+ ﬂ
_+ B {REFELEA75.8BEBIT
1 /& R %é%%1m9§%%ﬁ 258
EHSTERIBIBESET) o MEMEN
ERNFENEEIEEN  HiER
BRARBEBREREKN AT HAEEYE
Bl & 8B H =T o NPT A AT &Y 12
CERERABRRKABEATHERDE
ARBEREREKAE o S ETRERAE
RERROERETHEEER 2R IREE
%%EMW$@%¢E%0&E&H#%%
T ZBERMFEE_T_TFEEFTE
HEHiRRE 2 -

Et

Eﬁﬂmmﬁ
ﬂ%%%ﬁ

In connection with the impairment assessment
on the PUD, we have performed the following
procedures:

HEERYER 2BERE  RARTTATERF

(1) Evaluated the independent external valuer’s
competence, capability and objectivity;

%E%%ﬁiﬁﬁ%%%&zﬁﬂgﬁﬁ

(2) Evaluated the appropriateness of the
methodology used by the management and the
external valuer, with the assistance from our
internal valuation expert;
EARBEEIREEOHDT - fFHEEEBMIN
B RT AL B AT 7 AR & BB

(3) Tested key inputs adopted by the management
and the external valuer against the relevant
supportin irlformation as described below:

R 5 48 8 %ﬁi 5 2 g RN A BP AT i B £R AR
R ERETHE AR

° Compared the estimated selling price to
the recent market transactions by making
reference to the prevailing market price
of the comparable properties with similar
’%Ee size and location;

RIELIE R BB B AT LN
TMIBER - SR EBRETHDIER

SERETHER

° The selling expenses was estimated as a
percentage of the related estimated selling
price of the properties. Assessed if the
above estimated percentage fall within a
reasonable range which is in line with the
prevailing property valuation practice in
China;

HEERREMYETE +%%EWWE

A

mE - FTEBEHES 15*@% #@ﬁ%iAu+fﬁ
= (B A5 &0 L ) 2 7 72 Fh B3R 77 ) 2 S (18 101
HEEEENA
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS — continued

FAEESTEER(E)

We focused on auditing the impairment o Compared the anticipated completion
of property, plant and equipment costs to the actual costs of similar type of
because the estimation of recoverable completed properties; and

amounts is subject to high degree of BERYVEETIRBENEER AR AR
estimation uncertainty. The inherent RIS T TIMENERKANEITLE « AR
risk in relation to the impairment

assessment of property, plant and ° Checked the mathematical accuracy of the
equipment is considered significant due valuation calculations and the underlying
to subjectivity of significant assumptions data used in the calculations.

and estimates used. BB AER R T ERIEFMS A LERE o

HRAREsENGtAESEIEE

M- BB MEESATESBETEIEE Based on the above, we considered that the
MENERERESSE - IERANEZEMAR  significant judgments and estimates made
MEFTTREBENISRAE - TFE - by management in relation to the impairment
WEREHEREFGENEERBRERK - assessment of property, plant and equipment
were supportable by the evidences obtained and
procedures performed.
ER BN  BMRRBEERTHE - BER&
YR B AT T 1B A B2 K 1 BT AN R RE S 3 B S ES AU 78
BAERITHEIRFIZ R -

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all of
the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Em%1§\

BERAREFAHEMEEAR - HitfE
EEERFHRANMABRELR  ETEES
P IRR R B FIZBEN RS -

BNHA G BRENER L TAEE
fiEs  RMATYRSEMEREE
FEARRNEE RS -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B AR E

OTHER INFORMATION — continued

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B AR E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

B BT R B 5T S O I I R R
AENEE

HMMBER  RHAHMBHREREER
BTN FEHRARFRBERMEBMNEK
HRRARGAERE  YHABRER
PIERNZBEIRE - HAERBEER
ZE—NN\—FRFDE)F O KRRAE T
(ERER)RERMOER - Kbz
AHEREEME A - ROTEHAHR
ENARTMEEMEMBALTRE ESAEE
MEME - aBRREZSKFHRE B
TR BRIB(FBESERDETOE
it EX-BAERRAGFER A%
3B o SHERERE AT A BRRF SR SE AR 51 2
WMREERH T FIE B SEAERK A
TEAHYBBMREREKRBES BB
WRATELEIRTE - RIBRMER
BRAL AT AR MEE K

e RIECE BB R IT B 1 BT
o RER T SEHE  RETEE
SRR o BN ¢

o BURIANFTAE B O AR EF B AR T B B
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B AR E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR

THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
— continued

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7
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Independent Auditor’s Report

18 M % BT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

— continued

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee , we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Hon Chong Heng.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

SHfEER

For the year ended 31 December 2020

174

e e A HILFE

Revenue from contracts with REEEFEFELDHA
customers ) 7 3,653,866 3,557,529
Cost of sales and services $H & I AR A AR 11 (3,050,451)  (3,032,910)
Gross profit EF 603,415 524,619
Other income H A A 8 20,214 15,867
Administrative expenses THAX 11 (279,783) (262,118)
Net impairment reversal on TRREHNEENRE
financial and contract assets EEAEIpES ] 10 42,377 816
Other gains — net EmF1S 558 9 148,978 2,211
Operating profit KR 535,201 281,395
Finance income A& ek 13 1,660 1,620
Finance costs A& R AN 13 (104,879) (106,638)
Finance costs — net R E AN HRE 13 (103,219) (105,018)
Share of net profit of an associate J??%ﬁﬂé‘%ééﬂj)}
and joint ventures accounted =1 RAER
for using the equity method (hﬂ& SEANR) 15 7,201 6,312
Profit before income tax B T 15 %% A0 439,183 182,689
Income tax expense Frisfi& R 16 (78,324) (63,065)
Profit for the year FRFHE 360,859 119,624
Profit for the year attributable LT ALTEEFER
to: ME:
— Owners of the Company — RNREHEA A 354,904 81,111
— Non-controlling interests — FEIEH MRS 5,955 38,513
360,859 119,624
HK$ cents HK$ cents
Bl BN
Earnings per share attributable Z&2Q F#HE AEEESR
to owners of the Company: Wi - 17
— Basic earnings per share — BREARKE 29.0 6.9
— Diluted earnings per share — BERHERkR 29.0 6.9

Binhai Investment Company Limited

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SR ERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020

el ERCEE e ) A e

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income/
(loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
— Exchange differences on
translation of financial
statements of the Company

Items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss
— Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
operations

Total comprehensive income for
the year

Total comprehensive income for the
year is attributable to:
— Owners of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

FRFE 360,859 119,624
Hipma s (FE)
BT EEFDIEE R
HE B
— AREFERE
E =%
31,631 (11,008)
RJRE S EHT 77 48 2 18 25 A
HH
— BREBINETFHE K
et
71,371 (23,043)
103,002 (34,049)
FREEZEERE
463,861 85,575
AT ALEREFERNEZEE
I zs -
— AREHEE A 453,557 48,096
— JE¥EIERE 10,304 37,479
463,861 85,575

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive

income should be read in conjunction with the HE o

accompanying notes.

Annual Report 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B OF I TR R =

As at 31 December 2020
REZE—FFfL—H=+f—H

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment properties
Intangible assets

Investments accounted for using

the equity method
Prepayments
Long-term receivables
Deferred income tax assets
Restricted cash

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Notes receivable

Contract assets

Prepayments

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Restricted cash
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital

— Ordinary shares

— Redeemable preferences
shares

Share premium

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Equity attributable to owners of

the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Binhai Investment Company Limited

gE

FRBEE
TREE - BFE MK
EREEE
BEME

BB E
BiEREARNIRE

FafT IR
AR
EEFSTHEE
XREIES

RBEE

FE

JFE Wt B 350 e L At B LUK
AES

BMEE

B FIA
AorBEAEARE
Bt ABHERNE
BMEE

XREIES
BekReEEY

wEE
AERAE
M2

B A

— TR

— B ELER
B (B

B Bt
CEe

EN/NCIE R DN g e
TS
mER

BERERRAA

18
19
20
21

15
22
25(c)
23
27

24
25
5.3(ii)

22

5.3(i),
26
27
28

29

31
31
32

5,246,835 4,317,792
179,458 177,086
7,120 6,896
43,054 51,418
74,790 63,147
138,702 34,206
25,142 7,688
24,224 22,584
1,439 4,457
5,740,764 4,685,274
146,591 116,623
312,381 323,339
16,555 20,556
32,892 54,100
239,954 200,906
182,029 -
15,955 2,426
407,743 699,998
1,354,100 1,417,948
7,094,864 6,103,222
487,203 489,435
135,203 117,435
352,000 372,000
282,115 104,676
(59,603) (176,180)
1,232,109 895,129
1,941,824 1,313,060
57,951 46,966
1,999,775 1,360,026




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B O R R

As at 31 December 2020
REE=—FFL—H=+—H

Liabilities a8E

Non-current liabilities kREBERE
Borrowings B

Deferred income I JE W

Lease liabilities HEEaE

Deferred income tax liabilities FEIEFTSIR A S
Trade and other payables JE A<} BR 3R K EL Ath FE A1 3K
Current liabilities REEE

Trade and other payables JE A~} BR 3% K2 EL Ath PB4 3K
Contract liabilities AHEE

Current income tax liabilities BIERFRIS A &
Borrowings fE

Lease liabilities HESE

Total liabilities weE

Total equity and liabilities HmEZREE

33 1,055,498 28,004
34 111,608 53,757
19 8,288 13,184
23 21,702 10,000
35 64,440 —

1,261,536 104,945

35 1,575,940 1,331,992

7 912,385 733,546

28,242 51,462
33 1,308,508 2,612,222
19 8,478 9,029

3,833,553 4,638,251

5,095,089 4,743,196

7,094,864 6,103,222

The above consolidated statement of financial position
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 174
to 351 were approved by the Board of Directors on 18
March 2021 and were signed on its behalf.

bt & GF B #5 AR 00 3R E B B B PR 5 — BF

B3 -

FAT4E3B1ENEHMEBRREBAE
FEeN-_ZE-_—F=A+/ \BH#E I
HIUTEERKREFTZRE -

Wang Zhiyong
EFEE
Director

EF

Gao Liang
=5
Director

EF
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' Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SEREEXR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
e e A [ R

Balance at 1 January 2019 W=F-7E-F-R
i 515,435 157,522 (160,982 823,013 1,334,988 29,876 1,364,864
Proft for the year ERHE - - - 81,111 81,111 38,513 119,624
Other comprehensive loss EifaER - - (33,015) = (33,019) (1,034 (34,049)
Total comprehensive income &4 = = (33,015) 81,111 48,09 37479 8,575
Transactions with owners, ~ EEEAEGNRG
recognised directly in ERNERARR
equity
Contribution from non- FAHERNIE
controling interests - - - - - 14,875 14875
Lapse of employes share BRMESERE
options 30 - - (4,475) 4475 - - -
Dividends provided forand ~~ EARERAARE
pald % AT - AT AT
Dividends paid to non- BRI EREN
controling interests HRE - - - - - (26,449) (2%6,442)
Redemption of preferences  BEEER
shares N 60 - - - a0 - o
Anpropriaton of stafutory RETRE
eserves 31 - - 13470 (13,470) - - -
Other transfer EfeEp - - 8,822 - 8,822 8822) -
06000 Gsl) AT %S (004 039 (90413
Balance at 31 December ~ W=F-7¥+27
2019 St-RiEs 489435 104,676 (176,180) 895,129 1,313,060 46,966 1,360,026
178 Binhai Investment Company Limited &/&1#% & AR A 7



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SO ERE R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
L e e = iy el = ) s

Balance at f January 2020  R=3=%%-5-A

fih 489,435 104,676 (176,180) 895,129 1,313,060 46,966 1,360,026
Profit for the year EpfE - - - 354,904 354,904 5,955 360,859
Other comprehensive income. £ &zA 0% - - 98,653 - 98,653 4,349 103,002
Total comprehensive income &A% - - 98,653 354,904 453557 10,304 463,861

Transactions with owners,  EEEARFHLE
recognised directly in ERNERAED

equity
Contrbution from a new KRA-HREMNEE

shareholder of the

Company 20 17,768 218,541 - - 236,309 - 236,309
Lapse of employes share BRMESERE

options 30 - - (8,084) 8,084 - - -
Dividends provided forand £ ARETRAHRS

pad % - ) - - ) - )
Dividends paid to non- BRI ERR

controling interests HRE - - - - - (21,801) (21,801)
Redemption of preferences  BEEER

shares ) (20,000 - - - (20,000 - (20,000)
Appropriation of statutory dla

BS6rVes 31 - - 26,008 (26,008) - - -
Contrbuton from non- FibltERNEE

controling interests - - - - - 22,482 22,482

R IR N IR L 61 175088

Balance at 31 December ~ H=F=FFt=R

2020 ST-BhéH 487,203 262,115 (59,603 1,232,109 1,941,624 57,951 1,999,775

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity | alt & fF A 25 5 Bh 2K e B S B B 5 — F
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying BIGE o
notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e - H R

Cash flows from operating KETHNEERE

activities
Cash generated from operations &&EFHELRIE S 37(a) 864,050 783,546
Interest received B U F 8 1,660 1,620
Income tax paid ETFTSH (93,414) (76,885)

Net cash inflow from operating K& FZBHELNFES

activities A 772,296 708,281
Cash flows from investing RETBNEESRE

activities
Payment for acquisition of U B TN BB FR

subsidiary, net of cash acquired  FIRWEMEBIR S - (37,984)
Grants received for construction 2 :% 18 B U 2| &4 B)

projects 53,687 —
Payments for property, plant and T 8E - &= &EED

equipment BN (869,378) (610,246)
Payments for land use rights T b {5 R AV 3R (2,411) (23,466)
Payments for intangible assets EEEMNR (5,063) (2,116)
Proceeds from disposal of BETHE - BEMEE

property, plant and equipment B FT 15 5KI8 22,256 24,010
Proceeds from disposal of land Be B 1 s PR R FT1S 508

use rights 2,200 —
Government grant received W B B 46 B 34 805 1,442
Withdrawal of restricted cash REVE R FI3R & 6,866 2,955
Placement of restricted cash TAXZRHIRE (16,595) (2,454)
Payments for investments in BRERNEMERNONRK  5.3(),

wealth management products 26 (5617,573) (1,982,768)
Proceed from redemption of HE [0] 32 B 25 SR A9 FT 1S 3078

wealth management products 345,060 2,297,387
Wealth management products B UIE B EE iR B W s

income received 7,801 14,361
Net cash outflow from RETHEENFERS

investing activities Tt (972,345) (318,879)

180 Binhai Investment Company Limited &E/&&R&GR A7



Consolidated Statement of Cash

EHETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE—F-Fsr+-A=+—AIFE

Cash flows from financing
activities

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Principal elements of lease
payments

Interests paid

Contribution from non-controlling
interests

Dividends paid to the Company’s
shareholders

Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests in subsidiaries

Contribution from a new
shareholder of the Company

Redemption of redeemable
preferences shares

Net cash outflow from
financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in
cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Effects of exchange rate
difference

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of year

METHNRETRE

BT SR
BB
HENKAEHD

ERFLE
FEIEBI R ITE

14
ERARARRERE

36
ENRNFATIIEESIEE S
&)
RRAR]—HFBRFEE

29(a)
& [o] A HE B8 R AR

29(b)

METHEENTZIRER
H

RERRSEENF
(R2), /&
FURELREFEY

[EXZHENTE

FRAEERBEEEEY
28

Flows

2,275,432 109,247
(2,468,901) (256,230)
(11,196) (6,716)
(106,429) (107,791)
22,482 14,875
(41,102) (52,846)

— (26,442)

236,309 —
(20,000) (26,000)
(113,405) (351,903)
(313,454) 37,499
699,998 669,518
21,199 (7,019)
407,743 699,998

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should
be read in conjunction with the accompany notes.

B7E
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Binhai Investment Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 8 October 1999,
with its principal place of business at Suites 3205-
07, 32/F, Tower Two, Times Square, 1 Matheson
Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. Its ordinary
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“HKEX”).

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in Note 14. The Company and its subsidiaries are
hereafter together referred to as the Group.

As detailed in Note 29(a) to the consolidated
financial statements, on 24 September 2020, Great
Wall Energy HK, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of Sinopec, acquired approximately 29.99% of
the total ordinary shares of the Company in issue,
through subscription of new ordinary shares issued
by the Company and acquisition of ordinary shares
of the Company held by TEDA HK. Following the
completion of these transactions, TEDA HK and
Great Wall Energy HK hold approximately 35.43%
and 29.99% of the total ordinary shares of the
Company in issue respectively and are the two
largest shareholders of the Company.

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) and
the functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries is Renminbi (“RMB”).

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e = - [
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e = - [ [

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”) and disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622 of
the laws of Hong Kong (“HKCQO?”).

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for certain financial assets that are
measured at fair values.

Going concern

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by approximately HK$2,479 million. The
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
largely depends on the sufficiency of financial
resources available to the Group. The Directors
are of the view that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the
next twelve months from 1 January 2021,
based on the following considerations:

° The Group is expected to remain profitable
and continue to generate stable operating
cash inflows from its future business
operations;
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o The Group has extended the repayment
date of a borrowing of approximately
HK$943 million which was originally
repayable on demand (at the request of
the lender by serving a seven-day prior
notice) to become repayable on 1 May
2022 (or prior to that maturity date at the
discretion of the Group) pursuant to a
borrowing renewal agreement entered into
between the Group and the lender on 10
February 2021; and

° On 26 February 2021 and 10 March
2021, the Group has entered into
banking facility agreements with a
reputable commercial bank (a PRC
incorporated bank which is listed on
both the Main Board of the Shanghai
Stock Exchange and HKEXx) pursuant to
which the Group can draw down 1-year
term bank borrowings of RMB200 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$238
million) and RMB1,000 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,188 million)
respectively from the aforesaid listed
commercial bank. As of the date of these
consolidated financial statements, the
Group has already drawn down a bank
borrowing of RMB200 million under the
aforesaid banking facilities.

In view of the above, the Directors are
confident that there will be sufficient financial
resources available to the Group to enable it to
continue as a going concern and hence have
prepared the consolidated financial statements
on a going concern basis.
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(iv) New and amended standards adopted by
the Group

The Group has applied the following amended
standards and revised conceptual framework
for the first time for their annual reporting
period commencing on 1 January 2020:

° Definition of Material — amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

o Definition of a Business — amendments to
HKFRS 3

° Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7

o Revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting
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(v)

The Group also elected to adopt the following
amended standards and annual improvements
early.

° Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards
2018-2020 Cycle.

° COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions —
amendments to HKFRS 16 and Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform — amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

The adoption of the above amended standards,
revised conceptual framework and annual
improvements did not have any impact on the
amounts recognised in prior periods and are
not expected to significantly affect the current
or future periods.

New and amended standards and
interpretations not yet adopted

Certain other new and amended standards
and interpretations have also been published
that are not mandatory for 31 December
2020 reporting periods and have not been
early adopted by the Group. These amended
standards and interpretations are not expected
to have a material impact on the Group in
the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.
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3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Adoption of Amendment to HKFRS 16 “COVID-
19-Related Rent Concessions”

The Group has early adopted Amendment to
HKFRS 16 “COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
retrospectively from 1 January 2020. The
amendment provides an optional practical expedient
allowing lessees to elect not to assess whether
a rent concession related to COVID-19 is a lease
modification. Lessees adopting this election may
account for qualifying rent concessions in the
same way as they would if they were not lease
modifications. The practical expedient only applies to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the
following conditions are met:

a. the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for
the lease immediately preceding the change;

b. any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments due on or before 30 June 2021; and

c. there is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease.

There is no qualifying COVID-19-related rent
concessions recognised in the Group and thus
the early adoption of this amended standards
did not have any impact on the Group’s financial
performance for the year ended 31 December 2020
and the opening balance of equity at 1 January
2020.

FHBEBE

RANBERMBRELEE 165
(87T 2)[2019 Bk % H #H B8
HERR ]

AEBR-_ZEZ-_ZF5E—HA—H#&
REEHENETBMBEREER
F165(EFT A )2019 B K im =
HEAESER] - ZEFTRE®ETH
BENATEEARE ATEAMR
ABRBETF(GHHE2019B R B E
COVID-19fH M EHER &
HEBE] - KMZEEREBEAT
RHEWIHFBEGTNERLTRNEE
BRESERAR - ZA{THEES
FEFEAR019EBERFSEBE
BEEAMEeRES BBKARET
5| FT A 164

a. MEMNFHNEFEEENE
BRI - MEEFTHRKE
HERFPHMNEERERXN
HHER APREREHH
M EE

b. MEENKNEMBIEZE
RZE-_—FA=+8%
ZATEI B SE &

c. THERYE R M IR I &

AEEYEERSERN2019T
ARSHEEES TR - FRFR
MBI EAENASEEE —
E_EFT_A=1T—HLFEDN
MBRAR-_TE-_TF—A—HX
MRS ERTETE -

Annual Report 2020 —Z T FFH

187



188

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
B S - H IR

4

Binhai Investment Company Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

4.1 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an
entity where the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting
is used to account for business
combinations by the Group (Note 4.2).

Inter-company transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.
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(ii)

(iii)

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately
in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity
and the statement of financial position
respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not
control or joint control. This is generally
the case where the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting
(see (iv) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 Joint
Arrangements to all joint arrangements.
Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures depending on
the contractual rights and obligations of
each investor. The Group has assessed
the nature of its joint arrangements and
determined them to be joint ventures.
Interests in joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method (see (iv)
below), after initially being recognised
at cost in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

(i)

(iii)
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(iv) Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting,
the investments are initially recognised at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in profit or
loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of
the investee in other comprehensive
income. Dividends received or receivable
from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investments.

When the Group’s share of losses in
an equity-accounted investment equals
or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of
the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associates and joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity-accounted
investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in
Note 4.9.
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(v)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result
in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. A change
in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-
controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable
to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or
equity account for an investment because
of a loss of control, joint control or
significant influence, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value
becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable HKFRSs.

(v)
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If the ownership interest in a joint
venture or an associate is reduced but
joint control or significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

4.2 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used
to account for all business combinations,
regardless of whether equity instruments or
other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred,

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business,

° equity interests issued by the Group,

o fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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The excess of the:

° consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts
payable in the future are discounted to their
present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental
borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms
and conditions. Contingent consideration is
classified either as equity or as a financial
liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in
profit or loss.
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4.3 Separate financial statements

4.4

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors of the
Company that makes strategic decisions (the
“Executive Directors”).
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4.5 Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the group entities are measured
using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are
presented in HK$, and the functional
currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries is RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates
are generally recognised in profit or loss.
They are deferred in equity if they relate to
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying
net investment hedges or are attributable
to part of the net investment in a foreign
operation.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the statement of profit or
loss on a net basis within “Other gains —

net”.
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(iii)

Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary
assets such as equities classified as
fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of
foreign operations (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position,

o income and expenses for each
statement of profit or loss and
statement of comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions), and
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o all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of any

s MEHUELERE
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BHARE - BB E M
BINERHFRE N R

net investment in foreign entities, BMEETAREBIEEN
and of borrowings and other financial HORIEE M ER R EAMm
instruments designated as hedges of & @l T A i 2= A& R L

such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign

EZRNHEGAEKEA
R BHEBIEH

operation is sold or any borrowings HEEEBKFREILD
forming part of the net investment B EA & SR - HEH
are repaid, the associated exchange ERE=E&EmosHEE

differences are reclassified to profit or
loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.

4.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment (if any). Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.
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4.7

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their cost, net of their
residual values over their estimated useful lives
or, in the case of certain leased plant and
equipment, the shorter lease term as follows:

Gas pipelines 30 years
Buildings and infrastructures 30 years
Machinery and equipment 20 years
Office equipment and motor 5 years

vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 4.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are included in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are office buildings
held for long-term rental yields and are not
occupied by the Group. Investment property
is initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs. Subsequently, they are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to
write off the cost of investment properties over
their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using
the straight-line method.
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4.8

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when it is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

The estimated useful lives of the investment
properties is 30 years.

Intangible assets

(i) Operating rights

Separately acquired operating rights of
piped natural gas sales are shown at
historical cost. Operating rights of piped
natural gas sales acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Operating rights are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the
terms of operation rights as stated in the
respective industry licenses ranging from
25 to 30 years.

(ii) Software

Acquired computer software programmes
are capitalised on the basis of the costs
incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are
amortised over the estimated useful lives
of 5 to 10 years on a straight-line basis.

4.8
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(i) Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in
Note 4.2. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries is included in intangible
assets. Goodwill is not amortised but
it is tested for impairment annually, or
more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and
losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to
the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units (“CGUs”) for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those CGUs or groups of CGUs that
are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose.
The units or groups of units are identified
at the lowest level at which goodwill
is monitored for internal management
purposes, being the operating segments.
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4.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have
an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (CGUSs).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end
of each reporting period.

4.10 Investments and other financial assets

(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) or
through profit or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised
cost.
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(i)

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains
and losses will either be recorded in profit
or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for
the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model
for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on trade-
date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVPL”),
transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirety
when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies
its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are
held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in other gains/(losses)
together with foreign exchange gains
and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss.

(iii)
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FVOCI: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When
the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains/
(losses) and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI
are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL
is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other gains/
(losses) in the period in which it
arises.

Equity instrument

Currently, the Group does not have any
equity instrument carried at fair value.
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(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-
looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its financial assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets,
the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables,
see Note 5.1(b) for further details.

4.11 Inventories

Inventories mainly comprising pipelines and
other materials for construction and gas
pipelines installation service and gases, are
stated at the lower of cost or net realisable
value. Cost, being cost of purchase, is
determined on a weighted average basis.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

4.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.
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Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the
trade and other receivables with the objective
of collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

4.13 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other
short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

4.14 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods
and services provided to the Group prior to the
end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade
and other payables are presented as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities. They are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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4.15 Borrowings 4.15 &R

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount
is recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs
of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw down occurs. To the extent there
is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the
fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the statement of
financial position when the obligation specified
in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,
is recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.
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4.16 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets
are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

4.17 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable on the current period’s
taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences
and to unused tax losses.
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Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and considers whether
it is probable that a taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group
measures its tax balances either based on
the most likely amount or the expected value,
depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred income tax liabilities are
not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax
is also not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
if it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets
are not recognised for temporary differences
between the carrying amount and tax bases
of investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current income tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred income tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current income tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised
in profit or loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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4.18 Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries that
are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related
service are recognised in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the statement of financial
position.

Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the balance sheet date. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.

Retirement benefits

In accordance with the rules and
regulations in the People’s Republic
of China (the ‘PRC’), the PRC based
employees of the Group participate in
various defined contribution retirement
benefit plans organised by the relevant
municipal and provincial governments
in the PRC under which the Group and
the PRC based employees are required
to make monthly contributions to these
plans calculated as a percentage of the
employees’ salaries.
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The municipal and provincial governments
undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired
PRC based employees’ payable under the
plans described above. The assets of these
plans are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administrated funds
managed by the PRC government. The Group
also provide an commercial annuity insurance
for its employees from this year. Other than
the monthly contributions and the commercial
contributions, the Group has no further
obligation for the payment of retirement and
other post-retirement benefits of its employees.

4.19 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments to
employees and others providing similar services
are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-
based payments determined at the grant date
without taking into consideration all non-market
vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on
the Group’s estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve). For
share options that vest immediately at the date
of grant, the fair value of the share options
granted is expensed immediately to profit or
loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred. When the share options
are lapsed after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to retained earnings.
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4.20 Provisions

4.21

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties
and make good obligations are recognised
when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period. The discount
rate used to determine the present value is
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the
sales of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the
Group and specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities as described
below.

(i) Sales of piped natural gas

Revenue from the sale of piped natural
gas is recognised at the point of time
when control of the piped natural gas has
been transferred to the customer (which
generally coincides with the time when
the gas is delivered to customers and title
has passed), and when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the

Group.
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(ii) Construction and gas pipeline

installation service

Revenue in respect of construction
and gas pipeline installation service is
recognised over time, by reference to
completion of the specific transaction
using input method which recognises
revenue using costs incurred relative to
total estimated costs to determine the
extent of progress toward completion.
The Group recognises revenue over time
only if it can reasonably measure its
progress toward complete satisfaction of
the performance obligation. However, if
the Group cannot reasonably measure the
outcome but expects to recover the costs
incurred in satisfying the performance
obligation, then it recognises revenue to
the extent of the costs incurred.

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of
progress toward completion are revised
if circumstances change. Any resulting
increases or decreases in estimated
revenue or costs are reflected in profit or
loss in the period which the circumstances
that give rise to the revision become
known by management.

The customers are required to pay in
advance for certain contract amount
based on a payment schedule. If the
services rendered by the Group exceed
the payment, a contract asset is
recognised. If the payment exceed the
services rendered, a contract liability is
recognised.
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(iii) Gas passing through service

Gas passing through service income is
recognised at a point in time when natural
gas has been passed through the Group’s
gas pipelines in providing the related
services.

(iv) Sales of bottled natural gas

Revenue is recognised when control of
goods has transferred, being at a point
in time when the customers purchase the
goods.

4.22 Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing:

° the profit attributable to owners of
the Company, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary
shares,

o by the weighted-average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during
the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding
treasury shares (it applicable).
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(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the
figures used in the determination of basic
earnings per share to take into account:

° the after-income tax effect of interest
and other financing costs associated
with dilutive potential ordinary shares,
and

° the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

4.23 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-
lease components. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real
estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has
elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as
a single lease component.
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Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis.
Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable,

o variable lease payment that are based on
an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date,

° amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees,

° the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
that option, and

° payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in
the measurement of the liability.
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The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment
with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate,
the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee
as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third
party financing was received,

o uses a build-up approach that starts with
a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit
risk for leases held by the Group, which
does not have recent third-party financing,
and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease,
e.g. term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate
is available to the individual lessee (through
recent financing or market data) which has a
similar payment profile to the lease, then the
Group entities use that rate as a starting point
to determine the incremental borrowing rate.
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Lease payments are allocated between
principal and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability,

o any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease
incentives received,

° any initial direct costs, and

° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and
the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-
value assets are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-
term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less without a purchase option.
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Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in income on
a straight-line basis over the lease term (Note
20). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining
an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised
as expense over the lease term on the same
basis as lease income. The respective leased
assets are included in the statement of financial
position based on their nature. The Group
did not need to make any adjustments to the
accounting for assets held as lessor as a result
of adopting the new leasing standard.

4.24 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any
dividend declared, being appropriately
authorised and no longer at the discretion of
the entity, on or before the end of the reporting
period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.

4.25 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are
deferred and recognised in the profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment are included in
non-current liabilities as deferred income and
are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related
assets.
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4.26 Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is
included in the net fair value gains/(losses) on
these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised
cost calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in profit or loss as part
of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income
where it is earned from financial assets that are
held for cash management purposes, see Note
13 below. Any other interest income is included
in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit-
impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets
the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).
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5

Binhai Investment Company Limited

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group do not use any derivative financial
instruments to hedge against its financial risk
exposures.

The Group’s risk management is predominantly
controlled by the Group’s financial department
(Group treasury) under policies approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”).
Group treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges
financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group’s operating units. The Board provides written
principles for overall risk management, as well as
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of
derivative financial instruments and non-derivative
financial instruments, and investment of excess
liquidity.

5.1 Financial risk factors
(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions and
recognised assets or liabilities are

denominated in currency that is not
the functional currency of the entity.
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The operations and customers
of the Group’s subsidiaries are
located in the PRC with most of the
assets/liabilities and transactions
denominated and settled in Renminbi.

Certain bank balances and
borrowings are denominated in HK$
and US$ which exposes the Group
to foreign currency risk. The Group
currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

As at 31 December 2020, if RMB
had strengthened/weakened by 10%
(2019: 10%) against the USD with
all other variables held constant, the
Group’s profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$1,000
lower/higher (2019: HK$235,351,000
higher/lower), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of USD denominated cash
and cash equivalents (2019: USD
denominated borrowings).
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(i)

As at 31 December 2020, if RMB
had strengthened/weakened by 10%
(2019: 10%) against the HK$ with
all other variables held constant,
the Group’s profit for the year
would have been approximately
HK$91,080,000 higher/lower (2019:
HK$177,000 lower/higher), mainly
as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of HK$
denominated borrowings (2019:
HK$ denominated cash and cash
equivalents).

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises
from deposits and borrowings which
are obtained at fixed rates and
other borrowings with variable rates,
which expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. The deposits
interest rate risk is considered as not
material. The Group is also exposed
to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed rate bank and other
borrowings.

Management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider other
necessary actions when significant
interest rate exposure is anticipated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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The tables below set out the Group’s
fixed rate borrowings and floating
rate borrowings which expose the
Group to fair value interest rate
risks and cash flow interest rate risk
respectively:

BeRnEMXR
LA

G
AA

At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+=B=+-H
Current piok:)
Bank borrowings RITER 108,078 - 108,078
Current portion of long-term & EIE (& Fk 49 3%
other borrowings B - 79,974 79,974
US$ bond EnfEH 2,324,170 - 2,324,170
2,432,248 79,974 2,512,222
Non-current E Lok
Other borrowings HffER - 28,004 28,004
Total borrowings EE L 2,432,248 107,978 2,540,226
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEF
+=B=+-H
Current piok:)
Bank borrowings RITER 309,518 26,065 335,583
Other borrowings HffER 942,852 - 942,852
Current portion of long-term  REIEMERHRE
other borrowings i) - 30,073 30,073
1,252,370 56,138 1,308,508
Non-current ELik ]
Bank borrowings RITHER 26,934 279,901 306,835
Other borrowings HffER - 748,663 748,663
26,934 1,028,564 1,055,498
Total borrowings fEREE 1,279,304 1,084,702 2,364,006
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As at 31 December 2020, if interest
rates on floating rate borrowings
had been 1% higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, post-
tax profit for the year would have
been lower/higher by approximately
HK$8,588,000 (2019: HK$918,000)
due to the higher/lower interest
expenses on floating rate borrowings.

(b) Credit risk

(1)

Risk management

Credit risk arises from cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash,
contract assets, notes receivable
and trade and other receivables. The
carrying amounts of these balances
substantially represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk at
the end of the reporting period. The
credit risk for deposits with banks
and financial institutions is limited
because the majority of the Group’s
deposits are placed in banks in Hong
Kong and top tier state-owned/listed
banks and financial institutions in the
PRC with high credit rating. For trade
and other receivables, the Group has
no significant concentrations of credit
risk. The Group assesses the credit
quality of the customers, taking
into account their financial position,
past settlement history and trading
relationships. The utilisation of credit
limits is regularly monitored.
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(i)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has three types of
financial assets that are subject to
HKFRS 9 expected credit loss model:

o trade receivables,

° contract assets, and

° other receivables

While cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash and notes receivable
are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

Trade receivables and contract
assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables and contract
assets.

(1)

T EERE

AEBRE=HLR
BEXBBUMBR
&= HEBI| 55957 18 1
EEEBEBRERFR
fR

o EUARK

s ANEE R

o EHAMEUGK

BERENREF
EY ZRGBIRE
REWEENRZE
R =
FORHBERTE
g HEBH
BRLE BRI A B
* o

EUEER KRB HE
3

AEBEEBEEYM
1% ¥ & 2= RI 55 9 5%
MR AETR
HEEEBE Y
P YRR & &
HMEERRZHE
HIR IR -
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To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables and
contract assets have been
grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the aging
analysis. The contract assets
relate to unbilled work in progress
and have substantially the same
risk characteristics as the trade
receivables for the same types of
contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the expected loss
rates for trade receivables are a
reasonable approximation of the loss
rates for the contract assets.

The expected loss rates are based
on the payment profiles of sales over
a period of 36 months before 31
December 2020 or 1 January 2020
respectively and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced
within this period. The historical loss
rates are adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the
receivables. The Group has identified
the GDP of China in which it sells its
goods and service, the default rate by
client’s industry group, the defaulted
unsecured loan recoveries rate to
be the most relevant factors and
accordingly adjusts the historical loss
rates based on expected changes in

these factors.
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On that basis, the loss allowance as RILERE  A&EH
at 31 December 2020 and 2019 was RZEZTF+=
determined as follows for both trade A=+—H K=
receivables and contract assets: T-N&E+=HA
=+ —BHEKE
HKEENEERR

EEBEET
— Construction and gas pipeline — IEMIEK
installation service AREBLE

PR 75

31 December 2020 —E—Zf

+ZA=t-H

Trade receivables JEW R 3
Expected loss rate EHEEX 9.16% 9.69% 54.20%
Gross carrying amount  BREEE(FET)

(HK$'000) 70,975 50,182 120,697 241,854
Loss allowance BEREFET)

(HK$°000) 6,499 4,863 65,415 16,777
Contract assets ENEE
Expected loss rate EHEEX 10.31% - -
Gross carrying amount  REEE(FAT)

(HK$'000) 36,675 - - 36,675
Loss allowance EERETET)

(HK$°000) 3,783 - - 3,783

10,282 4,863 65,415 80,560
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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31 December 2019 —“E-NF

Trade receivables R

‘Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Expected loss rate EHEEX 5.14% 5.43% 59.08%
Gross carrying amount  BREEE(FET)

(HK$'000) 80,306 25,006 136,990 242,302
Loss allowance ERRE(FET)

(HK$°000) 4128 1,358 80,935 86,421
Contract assets ANEE
Expected loss rate BHFRX 5.14% - -
Gross carrying amount  REEE(FAT)

(HKS'000) 57,029 - 5702
Loss allowance BiERETFAT)

(HK$’000) 2,929 — — 2,929

7,057 1,358 80,935 89,350
Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7
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— Sales of piped natural gas

31 December 2020

Trade receivables

Expected loss rate

Gross carrying amount
(HK$'000)

Loss allowance
(HK$000)

31 December 2019

Trade receivables

Expected loss rate

Gross carrying amount
(HK$'000)

Loss allowance
(HK$’000)

BBk
il =R
REEE(TET)

ERB&(FET)

ERES
RHERE
REEE(TET)

ERBk(FET)

BRARH

=
&

1003%  10.31%  92.99%

18,197 2115 21416 41,728
1,826 218 19915 21,959
555%  5.67%  89.12%

36,167 1,111 73592 109,870
1,951 63 65585 67,59
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— Gas passing through service — RXAREHR
%

31 December 2020 —ZE-Zf

+ZA=t-H
Trade receivables JEW R 3
Expected loss rate EHEEX 10.45% 10.38% -
Gross carrying amount  BREEE(FET)
(HK$'000) 220 530 - 750
Loss allowance BEREFET)
(HK$7000) 23 55 - 78
31 December 2019  —ZF—NF
+-A=1+-H
Trade receivables R
Expected loss rate BEEEER 5.87% - -
Gross carrying amount  REEE(FET)
(HK$000) 3,561 - - 3,561
Loss allowance BEREFET)
(HK$’000) 209 - - 209
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The loss allowances for trade EKERREE

receivables and contract assets as ERTZ=ZA=1+—

at 31 December reconcile to the AR EERERESF

opening loss allowances as follows: e B A RN
T

Opening loss R-B—AHE

allowance as at ~ WEERHE

1 January 154,229 157,328 2,929 4,963
Net impairment FARERNE

(reversal)/losses RERE

recognised in (#m),/

profit or loss BETE

during the year (46,776) 672 638 (1,949)

Receivables written £ i i A &%
off during the year W& fE U

as uncollectible P (16,787) (403) - —
Currency translation H¥MHEZR

difference 8,148 (3,368) 216 (85)
Closing loss R+=A=+-

allowance as at BNEREE

31 December B 98,814 154,229 3,783 2,929
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Trade receivables and contract
assets are written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery
include, amongst others, the failure
of a debtor to engage in a repayment
plan with the Group. Where loans
or receivables have been written off,
the Group continues to engage in
enforcement activity to attempt to
recover the receivable due. Where
recoveries are made, these are
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on contract
assets and trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses
within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the
same line item.

Other receivables

Other receivables such as deposits
paid are considered to have low
credit risk and the loss allowance
recognised during the period was
therefore limited to 12 months
expected losses. Management
consider ‘low credit risk’ for financial
instruments when they have a
low risk of default and the issuer
has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term.
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The loss allowance for other
receivables as at 31 December
reconciles to the opening loss
allowance as follows:

Opening loss allowance K — A —BHF]
as at 1 January BERE

Net impairment losses  FRAREBRAER
recognised in profit or  BIREE5E
loss during the year

Currency translation BEmEER
difference

Closing loss allowance W+ —-A=+—H
as at 31 December M EREIBEE

Hip IR+ =
A=+—A®EE
B F Y EE R
BEIRIAT ¢

3,845 3,462

3,761 461
381 (78)

7,987 3,845

(c) Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk,
the Group monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

(c) mEEZER

REBRBDEER
B AEEERKER
RekBeEFEMEE
EBERARARAEE
B ERMEE € W E
ReMmEKBFEHNK
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Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities and the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities to meet obligations when
due and to close out market positions.
At the end of the reporting period, the
Group held bank deposits at call of
HK$407,743,000 (2019: HK$699,998,000)
that are expected to readily generate cash
inflows for managing liquidity risk. Due
to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, Group treasury maintains
flexibility in funding by maintaining
availability under committed credit lines.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group’s liquidity reserve(comprising
the undrawn borrowing facilities below)
and cash and cash equivalents (Note 28)
on the basis of expected cash flows. This
is generally carried out at local level in
the operating companies of the Group, in
accordance with practice and limits set by
the Group. These limits vary by location
to take into account the liquidity of the
market in which the entity operates. In
addition, the Group’s liquidity management
policy involves projecting cash flows in
major currencies and considering the level
of liquid assets necessary to meet these,
monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios
against internal and external regulatory
requirements and maintaining debt
financing plans.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7
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The Directors take the ultimate
responsibility for liquidity risk
management, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the
Group’s short, medium and long term
funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate, banking
facilities and reserve borrowing facilities,
by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities. When necessary, the Group will
seek for financial support from the major
shareholders to finance its funding needs
(if any).

Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, the Group’s
financial department maintains flexibility
in funding by its ability to move cash
and cash equivalents between different
entities through related parties borrowing
arrangements.
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(i)  Financing arrangements

The Group had access to the
following undrawn borrowing facilities
at the end of the reporting period:

@

AL
RmEHR - A%
BT ER AT AR R
HEREE

Floating rate FENFIER
— Expiring within — —F NI
one year (bank (RI1TE)
borrowings) 439,691 1,114,206
— Expiring beyond — —F1& 5
one year (bank (RITEK)
borrowings) 261,527 479,109
701,218 1,593,315
Subject to the continuance of fin 15 B sV BFFE M
satisfactory credit ratings, the bank B ZSRITER
loan facilities may be drawn at any T&EHfLAAE%h
time in RMB and have an average CEHEFEHA
maturity of 2.7 years (2019:1.1 2.7@(: T — N
years). F11F) -

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities (i) =HEEFEHH
The tables below analyse the Group’s TREAEENS
financial liabilities into relevant BEBEIN  &F
maturity groupings based on their TRHEBEERES
contractual maturities. MR E BB D A

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7
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The amounts disclosed in the table KXABRBENESER

are the contractual undiscounted BHRRBIFER SR

cash flows. Balances due within 12 2 HRMIRHT

months equal their carrying balances BYTEKN ' WR

as the impact of discounting is not 128 A R E HR e 45

significant. 5 B H AR [ 45 8R40
&

At 31 December 2020 ittt 3:3

+2A=t-H
Borrowings (Note 33) Bk 1369474 156,629 919475 81606 2,527,184 2,364,006
Trade and other payables ~ ERBFREMERT
(Note 35) Wit s) 1,570,012 55,417 12,744 - 1638173 1,630,674
Lease liabities Notg 1)~ BEEE(H19) 8,887 4,902 3,463 3,085 20,337 16,766

208313 216,048 935,662 84691 4185604 4,011,446

At 31 December 2019 RIE-0E

tZR=1-A
Borrowings (Note 39) B hiss) 261153 28,957 = — 2640489 254026
Trade and other payables ~ EREFREMERH
(Note 35) i) 1,325,905 - - - 135905 1,325,905
Lease liabities (Note 19)  EE&EMHZ19) 10,297 7,460 5,108 2974 25,834 2.3

3,947,734 3,417 5,103 2074 3992008 3,888,344
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5.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to:

o safeguard their ability to continue as a
going concern, so that they can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, and

° maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as
net debt divided by total capital. Net debt
is calculated as total borrowings (including
current and non-current borrowings and
lease liabilities as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position) less cash and
cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated by
adding total equity and net debt.
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The gearing ratios of the Group as at 31
December 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

AEER-_ZF_ZFFR_F
—hF+ZR=+—HWE
AREBELERMT

Total borrowings (Note 33) & Fk4E%E (f17£ 33) 2,364,006 2,540,226
Lease liabilities (Note 19) HEBEHZ19) 16,766 22,213
Less: Cash and cash B REeERReE
equivalents (Note 28) B (HiE28) (407,743) (699,998)
Net debt B F 5 1,973,029 1,862,441
Total equity ERE 1,999,775 1,360,026
Total capital B AR B 3,972,804 3,222,467
Gearing ratio BRAGBHE 50% 58%
The Group manages its capital to ensure that REEEEEERUEBRRN

entities in the Group will be able to continue
as a going concern while maximising the return
to stakeholders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
borrowings and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and retained earnings.

SEARERBBARNFTE
e FAEEBEILESTR
P #E 2z ¥ 187 38 DO AR [ 4R o
AEBEERBERKEFF 5 -

AEBEXAERBBRERR
ARREEAREER (B
BEBETRA  HEEEFKR
&) °
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5.3

The Directors review the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, the
Directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the Directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends and
new share issuance.

Under the terms of the major borrowing
facilities, the Group is required to comply with
the following financial covenants:

° The borrower shall not invest in third party
over RMB5 million, and

o The asset-liability ratio and the current
ratio of the borrower must be not more
than 70% and not lower than 80%.

The Group has complied with these coverants
throughout the reporting period.

Fair value estimation

(a) Financial assets and liabilities

This section explains the judgements and
estimates made in determining the fair
values of the financial instruments that are
recognised and measured at fair value in
the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs
used in determining fair value, the Group
has classified its financial instruments
into the three levels prescribed under the
accounting standards.
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Financial instruments measured at fair
value are analysed into the following fair
value measurement hierarchy:

Level 1:

Level 2:

The fair value of financial
instruments traded in active
markets (such as publicly
traded derivatives, and equity
securities) is based on quoted
market prices at the end of the
reporting period. The quoted
market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is
the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level
1.

The fair value of financial
instruments that are not traded
in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the
use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible
on entity-specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

2 :
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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Level 3: If one or more of the significant
inputs is not based on
observable market data, the
instrument is included in level
3. This is the case for unlisted
equity securities.

Fair value of the financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at
fair value on recurring basis:

The Directors consider that the carrying
amounts of other financial assets and
financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3).

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7
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'Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE— T _TFF-A=F—HIFE

The following table presents the changes
in level 3 items for the periods ended 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2019:

(i) Financial assets at FVPL

Opening balance as

TREVNEHE-_Z_F
F+-A=+—8B k=
T—-nE+_A=+—
BIFEAAMEIEHEHR
B -

() HUr2rEE;EH
HEZ A EHR

R—HA— B

at 1 January FRER - 318,058
Acquisitions =] 517,573 1,982,768
Disposals fE 3] (352,861) (2,311,748)
Gains recognised in REMFE — F8E

other gains — net HR IR A Y 2 11,455 14,361
Currency translation BEMmEER

differences 5,862 (3,439)
Closing balance as at R+—-—A=+—HH

31 December HAIReREE (A7t 26)

(Note 26) 182,029 -

Annual Report 2020 == — T 4FFR
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-—F-_FH+-A=1—HILFE

(i)

Notes receivable

(i) FEREE

Opening balance as R—HA—B&
at 1 January BREE 20,556 28,876
Increase during the F AL M
year 77,746 54,677
Decrease during the  ERF
year (82,942) (62,460)
Currency translation BEEmE=EZR
differences 1,195 (537)
Closing balance as at R+ZA=+—HH
31 December BiR#R&E 16,555 20,556
In respect of these notes receivable, RZERKERM
the Group’s business model T AKENER
is achieved both by collecting BRAFBUWEE L
contractual cash flows and selling RenEREHEZ
of these assets (through the EEEFEAKR
endorsement of bank acceptance TERAEZEEEE
notes to suppliers as settlement of ‘“%L\Fg?ﬁf’ﬁﬁﬁg
payable balances). Therefore, these NRIEBEHEGREE)
notes receivable have been classified %ffﬁ it - %%
as classified as financial assets BKREBEDER

at FVOCI. Considering the short
maturities of these notes receivables
and their principal amounts will not
normally be changed much, the
changes in the fair values of these
instruments are minimal.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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6

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the
use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. Management also
needs to exercise judgement in applying the Group’s
accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated.
They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that may have a financial impact on the entity
and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

(i)

Impairment assessment of the long-term
assets

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed
for possible impairments whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. If
impairment indicators exist, the recoverable
amount is determined at the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs of disposal.

Determination as to whether and how much
an asset is impaired involves management
estimates and judgements such as growth rates
of business volume, gross margin and the pre-
tax discount rate for value in use and estimated
selling price, estimated costs to completion
and selling expenses for fair value less costs of
disposal. Judgement is required by the Board
to determine key assumptions adopted and
changes to key assumptions can significantly
affect the results of the impairment reviews.

Details of the recoverable amount calculations
are disclosed in Note 18.

6

BASE b ET R A

AT mRACEA S - B
HEE A ELERERS
R-BEEBNTARBASENEE
TRV #1Hf o

AEBEREN GG RAHE - &
T RHES DERBELRREME
Z(BERAEHZXERELMBY
ENAREFRNARBERLTHR
REEHNARREFNIEREDL -

() RBEENREFME

TEE BEIRRKBR M
BN E BB RE ER L
AU B g2 A FT BEJRUIELE

maf o MEFEREIR -
B EZERAEEER
AEBERHEKRANRSE

EE -

HEEERGREN;KEDN
TR NEEER MG KA
B Gl EREBENS &
EBEMERE  EHNEXR
BRBEATITIRE MU AAE
BR G EKAAASGEE
B - & TR AN K 35 & 5
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ERFANEERRKR ME
2 RRE F ] HRERTH
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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(ii)

(iii)

Deferred income taxes not recognised

As at 31 December 2020, no deferred
income tax asset is recognised in respect of
deductible temporary differences amounting to
HK$254,310,000 (2019: HK$215,978,000) and
tax losses amounting to HK$263,615,000 (2019:
HK$288,963,000) due to the uncertainties on
whether these temporary difference and tax
losses can be utilised in the future (Note 23).
The recognition of the deferred income tax
asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future assessable profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the actual future assessable
profits generated are more than expected,
a recognition of deferred income tax asset
may arise, which would be recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
period in which such recognition takes place.

Estimation of goodwill impairment

The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment on an annual basis. For
the 2020 and 2019 reporting periods, the
recoverable amount of cash-generating units
(CGUs) was determined based on value-in-
use calculations which require the use of
assumptions based on management judgement
and evaluation.

Details of key assumptions are adopted by
management in the assessment are disclosed
in Note 21.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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(iv) Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the Group’s past history existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. Details
of the key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in Note 5.1(b).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Executive Directors review the Group’s internal
reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources of the Group. The Executive
Directors have determined the operating segments
based on these reports.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of
the following Group’s operating segments:

° Sales of piped natural gas

° Construction and gas pipeline installation
service

o Gas passing through service
o Sales of bottled natural gas
The Executive Directors assess the performance of
the operating segments based on segment results.

Segment results are measured as gross profit of
each segment.

(iv) EREERE

TREENBEERELER
HEAORRMFEHER XS
RRFTE - AKRBHEEDLZ
ERRAIEAERENE
ABER  @RRAKEDN
BELER - RITHHRT A
KR & ¥R HI R &Y A BE 1 1
AHETTHIE - BRI A RS
RER N B A B B0 5 18 Y
F25.1(0) #ER ©

7 EBE R
$77 3 % B4 5K B 0 PO BB R 45 A
HEFEEORARHITER - #

FEFNRBRERSETLEH

2 .
T AL T AR BB
GESIE

. EERARHE

e IBEMIRRKAREERE
AR%S

e  RAREBRH

BRI E
HATEBERD BEAFEEES

MNE - PBLBEUE S BHE
Rt g -
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#E-F-

FEf A= +—HILEE

The segment results are as follows:

Total segment revenue from

RENIZFHABEMA

DEBEFAAIT

external customers 2,935,616 626,300 70,991 20,959 3,653,866
Recognised at a point PEBEET
in time 2,935,616 - 70,991 20,959 3,027,566
Recognised over time H-BEENET - 626,300 - - 626,300
Segment results A%k 170,464 366,660 58,406 7,885 603,415
Other income A 20,214
Administrative expenses IHREx (279,783)
Other gains - net EFGEE 148,978
Net impairment reversal on SRRANEENRE
financial and contract assets ~ EEIFE 4231
Finance income Eren 1,660
Finance costs BERA (104,879)
Share of net profit of an EBERakaets
associate and joint ventures 07 (FEREAR)
accounted for using the
equity method 7,201
Profit before income tax RAERAHE 439,183
Other segment information ~ Efi 2 5&#
Depreciation (included in cost of ~ E(AEEEERRE
sales and services) fids) 105,465 8,875 1,424 17 121,781
Depreciation (included in E(REENRRLY)
administrative expenses) 47,661
169,442
Impairment loss on goodwil SEERANREER 10,741 2,561 - - 13,302
Impairment loss on property,  AEIE - MR RRERD
plant and equipment HRERE 9,803 - - - 9,808
Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7
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Total segment revenue from — RESNFRFHAHE
external customers WA 2,893,232 560,820 81,423 22,054 3,067,529
Recognised at a point RRBSET
in time 2,898,232 - 81,423 22,064 2,996,709
Recognised over time K—BREAER - 560,820 = - 560,820
Segment results PPEE 141,711 309,001 66,931 6,386 524,619
Other income HtA 15,867
Administrative expenses THRER (262,118)
Other gains - net EGHE 2211
Net impaiment reversal on £ BRANEENHE
financial and contract E{ah
assets 816
Finance income BElE 1,620
Finance costs BERA (106,638)
Share of net profit of an EBENARAELE
associate and joint HR(EREEAR)
ventures accounted for
using the equity method 6,312
Profit before income tax ~ BRAFEHATE 182,689
Other segment information ~ EftAB&H
Depreciation (included in cost & (BEEHERRE
of sales and services) AAR) 100,709 2,016 10,248 348 113,321
Depreciation (included in NG R
administrative expenses) 26,945
140,266
Impairment loss on property,  HABE - MERRMERE
plant and equipment REAEER 37,607 = = = 37,607
Annual Report 2020 — &~ ZEFH
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The Executive Directors have not make reference
to any geographical information for assessing the
Group’s performance and allocating resources as all
of the Group’s operations are all conducted in the

PRC.

The Group has recognised the following assets and
liabilities related to contracts with customers:

Contract assets
Contract assets relating
to construction and gas

pipeline installation
Less: loss allowance

Total contract assets

Contract liabilities

Receipts in advance from

customers relating to:

— Sales of piped natural
gas

— Construction and gas
pipeline installation
service

— Others

Total contract liabilities

BHEE

HTIREIRAAR
BB EKARER
BHEE
B TR

MANWEE

BHAE

BN ERENTE
FEUEIRE P YR
— BEBRARIHE

— IREBIRRA
REBRERS

— Hft

BENAE

RRARB A A ZHHRN P EE
17 ABTEERESEEM
EEN B EARERAL DB

BIR

AEBCDHANTEEFAHNERH
MEEMEIE :

36,675 57,029
(3,783) (2,929)
32,892 54,100
621,453 456,922
283,079 274,471
7,853 2,153
912,385 733,546
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(a)

(b)

FEf A=+ —HILEE

The following table shows how much of the
revenue recognised in the current reporting
period relates to carried-forward contract
liabilities:

Revenue recognised that RAEFE R a1 E 4
was included in the BB EHERKA
contract liability balance at
the beginning of the year
Sales of piped natural gas EEXARIEE

Construction and gas TEETRRAR
pipeline installation BETRERS
service

Others HAth

(@ TRINTRAREHEER
MBARSEREBANAER
B

445,888 361,352
208,069 100,961

1,063 3,855
655,020 466,168

The contract assets primarily relate to the
Group’s rights to consideration for works
completed and not billed because the rights are
conditional on the Group’s future performance.

The Group classifies these contract assets as
current because the Group expects to realise
them in its normal operating cycle.

b) EHNEETERBEAEEYK
BB B 1S I&iﬁrﬁfﬁﬁﬂi
BENTIENREER -
Eﬁ%%ﬂﬂﬁ?&ﬁéﬁ%@ﬁ@
RRKIR -

AEEKZFEANEERA
MBEIERRBEE T
RAAGKEBHPAIRLEERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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()

Contract liabilities are expected to be settled
within the Group’s normal operating cycle and
classified as current liabilities.

Typical payment terms of contract liabilities
recognised are as follows:

Sales of piped natural gas

When the Group receives an advance
payment before gas sales, this will give
rise to contract liabilities and the balance
will be reducing by the amounts of
revenue as recognised by the Company
from the customers related sales of gas.

Construction and gas pipeline installation
service

When the Group receives a deposit before
the construction activity commences, this
will give rise to contract liabilities and the
palance will be reducing by the amounts
of revenue as recognised by the Company
from the customers related construction
and gas pipeline installation service. For
most of its customers, the Group typically
receives a 30% to 50% of total contract
sum upon the commencement of the
construction and installation works.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7
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8

OTHER INCOME

He A

Assembling services income LB AR IS A 12,163 10,834
Rental income HE Wz 1,133 1,508
Government grants BT #8 By 6,918 3,625
20,214 15,867

OTHER GAINS - NET HAi RIS F 8

Net gains from compensation 18I X AR B BB
for damaged gas stations B &5 (1)
and gas pipelines (i) 13,491 19,362
Impairment loss on goodwill RN REBE
(Note 21) (Hiat21) (13,302) -
Realised fair value gains BYEMNEERA
on wealth management nBERE
products 7,801 14,361
Net unrealised fair value gains UAAREBEEAH
on financial assets at FVPL BEirt ABENE
(Note 26(b)) BMEENARERA
nEEFKE
(Ki7#26(b)) 3,654 -
Net gains on disposal of raw  H& R £ 8)F W
materials 4,000 3,339
Net foreign exchange gains/ HME N Wz (E518)
(losses) (ii) (i) 135,769 (35,141)
Net gains on disposal of land  H & L ithfF AR
use rights F U AR 1,299 —
Net (losses)/gains on disposal HETHE - HE
of property, plant and wEr (E8),
equipment Wz 58 (2,063) 1,778
Others HAth (1,671) (1,488)
148,978 2,211
Annual Report 2020 == — T 4FFR
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o

(i)

(if)

—FFEFT A=+ —HIFE

In 2020, four subsidiaries (2019: two
subsidiaries) have relocated their gas stations
or gas pipelines in accordance with the road
repair and construction requirements of the
municipal government of Fengxian county,
Gaoan city, Deqing city and Tianjin city (2019:
Tianjin City and Deqging City). The compensation
amounts in excess of the carrying amounts
of the pipelines being relocated have been
recognised as net gains from compensation for
damaged gas pipelines for the year ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

The net foreign exchange gain for the year
ended 31 December 2020 comprise of the
net exchange gain of HK$128,193,000 arisen
from the full settlement of the US$ bond in
November 2020.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7
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A(ZE—NF: WERBA
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10 NET IMPAIRMENT REVERSAL

10 ERRENEENRES

ON FINANCIAL AND CONTRACT
ASSETS

Impairment reversal/(losses) on 5t J& U BR 2k K2 H ) fiE

trade and other receivables W SR T SR B R (B B [T

[E] 73 88

/(E18) 43,015 (1,133)

Impairment (losses)/reversal on #t& K& E R HIRE
contract assets (E518) /#E [0 (638) 1,949
42,377 816

The Group had recognized full provision for
impairment loss allowance of RMB46.68 million for
balances due from a steel manufacturing group (the
“customer”) in prior years considering the insolvency
of the customer (with an voluntary liquidation as
initiated by the customer in November 2019). In
April 2020, the creditors’ committee formed for
the aforesaid voluntary liquidation has lead the
completion of a debt restructuring for the customer
and the Group has subsequently recovered amounts
of RMB46.68 million (equivalent to HK$53.68 million)
and hence the Group has recognized a reversal of
provision for impairment loss of the same amount
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

AEEDHBEFERK —EHE
HESE([BFP )2 EBRBERRE
B 18 2 fEE A R % 46,680,000
T WD EBRIEFPNEERBR
(EFRZ-ZZE—NEF+—ABEHE
ER)R e RZE_FEEMA -
AT EFEBEBRKINEREAS
BEEETKNEFPMNERKREMAT
B MASEHEZEEKRE AR
46,680,000 7T (18 E 7 53,680,000
B MASEREBEE_ZT=T
F+_A=+—RALFERRARASE
SEMNREBEREED -
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11 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Binhai Investment Company Limited

Cost of gas purchased

Employee benefit expense
(Note 12)

Depreciation

— Property, plant and
equipment
— Right-of-use assets
Subcontractor and other costs
Changes in inventories of
pipeline and other materials
Costs of pipelines and other
materiels purchased
Repair expenses
Other professional fees
Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment
Expenses relating to short
term leases
Auditor’s remuneration
Amortisation

— Intangible assets
— Investment properties
Others

Total cost of sales and
services and administrative
expenses

MR RERBB AL A

BERMER

(Htez12)

e

— THE  BE
B

— FAREE

2B R E KA

BB REMMEERT

-2

&8 R H AR RS

B AR

HIERX

HiHEEH

RABE - BB &%

BHERKREERE

RHHAEEENER

BRI &
B

— EBVEE
- REWF
Hito

SHE N AR R AN AR R
RITHFEX

11 BMESHITNEH

2,455,417 2,493,349
258,491 233,352
169,442 140,266
155,411 130,152
14,031 10,114
124,412 122,626
(28,907) (27,233)
218,380 164,161
27,026 33,781
19,234 12,577

9,803 37,607
5,492 7,999
3,220 3,154
3,495 2,506
3,268 2,271
227 235
64,729 70,883
3,330,234 3,295,028

BERERRAA
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12 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 12 EERANEHR

Wages, salaries and bonuses I& - Hr&MEs 207,966 173,510
Social security and housing HRMEERES
fund 40,624 51,167
Other benefits HAbi@H 9,901 8,675
258,491 283,362
Five highest paid individuals hEBREFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the FAXAEEREAZRTNATRE
highest in the Group for the year included one —H(ZE-NEF: —R)ESH-
(2019: one) director whose emoluments are reflected HMES R T42AFMTROITF R
in the analysis shown in Note 42. The emoluments B FABRTHZR(ZZTE—NF :
to the remaining four (2019: four) individuals during ME)ALTHEFMAT -

the year are as follows:

Wages, salaries and bonuses I¥& -« HaMEs 3,019 2,056
Discretionary bonuses EBIEAL 1,598 1,711
Employer’s contribution to a 18 B mEKEFIFTE
retirement benefit scheme {EH A9 3R 13 119
Other social security H b RN
contributions 594 743
5,224 4,629
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BRAMEN FIATEE :

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

1,000,000/8 T2
4

HK$1,000,000 —
1,500,000 % 7T

HK$1,500,000

13 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 13 FE W= K KA

Finance income: R W Es
— Interest income on bank — RITEF B
deposits I = 1,660 1,620
Finance costs: BB ¢
— Interest expenses — FEEA (126,394) (125,110)
Less: amounts capitalised 0 B RE
as construction in EITIRH
progress k] 21,515 18,472
(104,879) (106,638)
(103,219) (105,018)

The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount —E_EFAREBEEREBEMNMEIE
of the interests incurred eligible for capitalisation in HHEELANENENMEEREF
4.46% (ZZF—NEF : 4.59%) °

2020 was 4.46% (2019: 4.59%) per annum.
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14 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of subsidiaries at 31 December

2020:

14 A H

UTFTAER-_E_FF+_H=+—
HREET QAR :

Winstar Venture Limited ~ British Virgin Islands US$200
ordinary shares

ABRIES Lk

200%T

Binhai Investment Hong Hong Kong  HK$2 ordinary
Kong Company Limited shares
BEREEBARAT 3 LR
28T

Binhai Investment Tianjin
owned enterprise,
PRC
NEBERR
ilEi

BERERR

Zibo Jin Bin Gas Company
Limited

Wholly foreign
owned enterprise,
PRC

HEREMRARAA HEEALR

hE

Wholly foreign  USD235 million

235,000,000
S

25,000

US$200
ordinary shares
2R
0%

HK$2 ordinary
shares

LBk

28T

USD235 million

235,000,000
e

25,000

100%  100% =

Investment holding,
Brish Virgin Islands
REER
ZBRAEE

100%  100% =

Investment holding,

Hong Kong
REER

100%  100% =

Investment holding,
PRC

RERK 8

100%  100% =

Construction and gas
pipeline installation
service and sales of
piped natural gas,
PRC
IRBIRAARES
RERBREEANR
HE HE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e e HIF R

Tianjin TEDA Binhai Clean Wholly foreign  USD185 million
Energy Group Company  owned enterprises,

(formerly known as PRC
“Tianjin Binda Gas

Enterprise Company

Limited”) (‘TEDA

Energy’)

RARERBRRMRSE IEEERR
ERAF(MBRREE ke
RREXARAA)

([=ER])

Binzhou TEDA Gas Wholly foreign

Company Limited owned enterprises,
PRC

ENRERRERLA  EBALK PH

Zhaoyuan TEDA Gas Wholly foreign
CGompany Limited owned enterprises,
PRC

HEZEMRARLR  EBELE TE

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/&1#% & AR A 7

- Construction and gas

pipeling installation
service and sales of
piped natural gas,
PRC

IRBIRAARES
TRRBREEARK
BE - PH

Construction and gas
pipeling installation
service and sales of
piped natural gas,
PRC
IRBIRAARES
LRREREEAAR
HE HE

Construction and gas
pipeling installation
service and sales of
piped natural gas,
PRC
IRBIRKAREE
RERBREBAAR
HE hE
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S e - HIF R

Zhaoyuan Binhai Gas
Company Limited

Sino-foreign co-
operative joint
ventures, PRC

BEREMAARAT

Deqing Binhai Gas Sino-foreign co-

Company Limited operative joint
(‘Deging Company’) ventures, PRC
ERESAARAT afEEERE
([Egam) il
Zhuozhou Binhai Gas Sino-foreign co-

Gompany Limited
("Zhuozhou Company’)

operative joint
ventures, PRC

ANRERRERAA

PIRERELE
(TAMAA) R

31,160

20,000

111,000

31,160 100%  100% - — Construction and gas
pipeling installation
service and sales of
piped natural gas,

PRC
IRBIRAARES
RERBREEAAR
HE hE

20,000 90% 9%  10%  10% Construction and gas
pipeline installation

service and sales of

piped natural gas,

PRC

TREIRAARES

RERBREERAR

HE T8

111,000 85%  83%  15%  15% Construction and gas
pipeling installation

service and sales of

piped natural gas,

PRC

IREIRAARER

RERBREERAR

#E hE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
e e A [ R

Nanjing Binhai Gas Wholly foreign 12,000 12,000 100%  100% - — Construction and gas
Company Limited owned enterprises, pipeling installation
PRC service and sales of

piped natural gas,

PRC

BREERRERAT NEBALE IRBIRAAREE
i RERBREEAAR

HE hE

Yizheng TEDA Gas Wholly foreign 13,000 13,000 100%  100% - - Construction and gas
Company Limited owned enterprises, pipeline installation
PRC service and sales of

piped natural gas,

PRC

BEFERAARAT NEEERR - IBHIRAARER
i ZERBREERAR

HE - TE

Qinhuangdao TEDA Gas Wholly foreign 12,000 12,000 100%  100% - — Construction and gas
Company Limited owned enterprises, pipeling installation
PRC service and sales of

piped natural gas,

PRC

RERREMRARLA NEBERE IRBIRAARES
hE RERBREBAAR

HE
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Qingdao TEDA Gas Sino-foreign 11,000 11,000 80% 80%  20%  20% Construction and gas
Company Limited co-operative joint pipeling installation
(Formerly known as ventures, PRC service and sales of
“Qingdao Jiaonan Wah piped natural gas,
Sang Gas Gompany PRC
Limited’)

EERERRARAT mhafEEERE IRBIRAARER
(RRIE5BHEL ilei RERBREERAR
RRERAT) HE  hE

Sanhe TEDA Gas Company Sino-foreign 7,000 7,000 90%  90%  10%  10% Construction and gas
Limited co-operative joint pipeling installation

ventures, PRC service and sales of

piped natural gas,

PRC

SHRERRERAT mHafEEERE IRBIRAARES
il ZERBREERAR

HE

Changle TEDA Gas Wholly foreign 10,825 10,826 100%  100% - — Construction and gas

Company Limited owned enterprises, pipeline installation

PRC service and sales of

piped natural gas,

PRC

EARENAERAR NEBALE TREIRAARES
hE RERBREBARR

HE E
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Dezhou Binhai Gas Sino-foreign 12,000 12,000 100%  100% - — Construction and gas
Company Limited co-operative joint pipeling installation
ventures, PRC service and sales of

piped natural gas,

PRC

ENEERRERAT hafElEhR IRBIRAAREE
hE RERBREERAR

HE hE

Qingdao Jiaozhou Binhai Sino-foreign 17,000 17,000 100%  100% - - Construction and gas
Gas Company Limited co-operative joint pipeline installation
ventures, PRC service and sales of

piped natural gas,

PRC

EEBMEEMEAR  TAAlEEERE IRBIRAARES
Ad i RERBREEAAR
HE - TE

Jingjiang Wah Sang Gas Sino-foreign 3,000 15,601 9% 9% 1% 1% Construction and gas
Company Limited co-operative joint pipeling installation
ventures, PRC service and sales of

piped natural gas,

PRC

BIZAMAARAR  PoafEEERE IREIRAAAER
hE RERBREBAAR

HE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
L e e el = | o Y

Funing TEDA Gas Sino-foreign 7,000 7,000  100%  100% - — Construction and gas
Company Limited co-operative joint pipeling installation
ventures, PRC service and sales of
piped natural gas,
PRC
EERERRERAT hafElEhR IRBIRAAREE
hE RERBREERAR
HE hE
Yishui Binhai Gas Wholly foreign 12,600 12,600 100%  100% - - Construction and gas
Company Limited owned enterprises, pipeline installation
PRC service and sales of
piped natural gas,
PRC
KBS RARAT NEBELE T IBHIRAARER
ZERBREERAR
HE - TE
Rizhao Binhai Gas Wholly foreign 12,600 12,600  100%  100% - — Construction and gas
Company Limited owned enterprises, pipeling installation
PRC service and sales of
piped natural gas,
PRC
ARESMRARAA  EBELE T8 IREIRAAAER
RERBREBAAR
HE
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e T T e e /] i S T e

Haiyan Tian Tai Gas Wholly foreign
Company Limited owned enterprises,
PRC

BEXFRRARDA hEBALR
hE

Beijing Airport Wah Sang Sino-foreign
Gas Company Limited co-operative joint
ventures, PRC

IRERZENAAR  PHefBELE

NG il
Halyang Wah Sang Gas Sino-foreign
Gompany Limited co-operative joint

ventures, PRC

BRELRRERAA  MAEEERE
R

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/&1#% & AR A 7

— Construction and gas
pipeling installation
service and sales of
piped natural gas,

PRC
IRBIRAARES
RERBREEAAR
HE hE

- Construction and gas
pipeline installation
service and sales of
piped natural gas,

PRC
IRBIRAARES
RERBREEAAR
HE - TE

— Construction and gas
pipeline installation
service and sales of
piped natural gas,

PRC
IRBIRAARES
RERBREBAAR
HE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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Tianjin Binhai Xinda Real
Estate Company
Limited

REEBEERERR

d

Yizheng Jin Bin Gas
Company Limited

BIZERRARDE

Tangshan Binhai Gas
Company Limited

ELRSMRARLA

Wholly foreign
owned enterprises,
PRC
NEBALE
i

Wholly foreign
owned enterprises,
PRC

IEFELR
hE

Wholly foreign
owned enterprises,
PRC

NEEELR
RE

156,000  100%  100% = =

12,000 12000 100%  100% =

Real estate
investment, PRC

BHERE PH

- Construction and gas

pipeline installation
service and sales of
piped natural gas,
PRC

IEBIRAARER
ZRRBREEARR

24,000 24,000 100%  100% - =

BE H

Construction and gas

pipeling installation
service and sales of
piped natural gas,
PRC

TERIRAARER

Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e e HIF R

Tianjin HuaTai Xinda Wholly foreign 6,000 6,000  100%  100% - — Construction and gas
Gas Company Limited ~ owned enterprises, pipeling installation
PRC service and sales of
piped natural gas,
PRC
REEREEMRARAN  NEBALE IRBIRAAREE
i RERBREEAAR
HE hE
Tangshan TEDA Gas Wholly foreign 47,000 47,000  100%  100% - - Construction and gas
Company Limited owned enterprises, pipeline installation
PRC service and sales of
piped natural gas,
PRC
ELRERRARLA NEEELR - IBMIRAARES
i ZERBREEAAR
HE e
Jizhou Binhai Gas Sino-foreign 10,500 10,500 8%  98% 2% 2%  Gonstruction and gas
Company Limited co-operative joint pipeling installation
(Jizhou Gompany’) ventures, PRC service and sales of
piped natural gas,
PRC
BNESMAARAR  hiAEEERE IREIRARAER
(TEMRa)) hE RERBREBAAR
HE HE
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Anxin TEDA Gas Company Wholly foreign 6,188 6,188  100%  100% - — Construction and gas
Limited owned enterprises, pipeling installation
PRC service and sales of

piped natural gas,

PRC

ZHRENRRERAT NEBALE IRBIRAAREE
i RERBREEAAR

HE hE

Qingyuan Binhai Gas Sino-foreign 10,000 10,000 99.82% 99.82% 0.18%  0.18% Construction and gas
Company Limited co-operative joint pipeline installation
ventures, PRC service and sales of

piped natural gas,

PRC

FRESMRARLT HRfEEERE IBHIRAARER
i ZERBREERAR

HE - TE

Liuyang Binhai Gas Sino-foreign 19,000 19,000 100%  100% - — Construction and gas

Gompany Limited

AGRERRARAA

co-operative joint
ventures, PRC

PRIEERLR
R

Annual Report 2020

pipeline installation
service and sales of
piped natural gas,
PRC
IRBIRAARES
RERBREBAAR
HE
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Fengxian Binhai Gas Wholly foreign 14,000 14000 100%  100% - — Construction and gas
Company Limited owned enterprises, pipeling installation
PRC service and sales of

piped natural gas,

PRC

LEERNRERAT NEBALE IRBIRAAREE
i RERBREEAAR

HE hE

(Gaoan TEDA Gas Sino-foreign 50,000 50,000  100%  100% - - Gonstruction and gas
Company Limited co-operative joint pipeline installation
(“Gaoan Gompany”)(i ventures, PRC service and sales of
piped natural gas,

PRC

BREEMAARAT afEEERE IRBIRAARES
(I&zRa])() il RERBREERAR
HE A

Tianjin Taigang Gas Wholly foreign 15,464 15,464 100%  100% - — Construction and gas
Company Limited owned enterprises, pipeling installation
PRC service and sales of

piped natural gas,

PRC

RERAMRERAT NEBARE IRBIRAARES
hE RERBREBAAR

HE HE
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Tianjin BinMing Gas Sino-foreign 3,686 12,285 80% 80%  20%  20% Construction and gas
Company Limited co-operative joint pipeling installation
ventures, PRC service and sales of

piped natural gas,

PRC

RERBRRERAT hobafERERE - IRBIRAARES
hE RERBREERAR

BE hE

Tianjin BinNing Gas Wholly foreign 3,345 11,688 100%  100% - - Construction and gas
Company Limited owned enterprises, pipeline installation
PRC service and sales of

piped natural gas,

PRC

REREMRARAT NEEERR - IERIRARRER
il ZERBREEAAR

HE hE

Tianjin Tairan Technology Wholly foreign = 73901 100%  100% - — Construction and gas
Gompany Limited owned enterprises, pipeline installation
PRC service and sales of

piped natural gas,

PRC

REFMHRARAT e IREIRAAAER
il RERBREERAR

HE
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Hainan Teda New Energy Wholly foreign = 11,688 100%  100% - — Construction and gas
Company Limited owned enterprises, pipeling installation
PRC service and sales of

piped natural gas,

PRC

BERENERARAR NEBALE IRBIRAARES
i RERBREEAAR

HE hE

Tianjin Tairan New Energy Wholly foreign - 77920 100%  100% - - Construction and gas
Technology Company ~ owned enterprises, pipeline installation
Limited PRC service and sales of
piped natural gas,

PRC

REFIARRENAR NEEERR - TRBIRAARES
Ad] i RERBREERAR
HE A

Nanjing Luyuan Gas Wholly foreign 7,733 7,733 100%  100% - — Construction and gas
Company Limited owned enterprises, pipeling installation
(‘Nanjing Luyuan’) PRC service and sales of
piped natural gas,

PRC

AR RRRERAT IEEr% IREIRAAAER
(TAmazR ) hEl RERBREERAR
HE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

/I_i:_'

Tianjin Taihe Heating
Company Limited
(‘Taihe Heating”)i
REFLBNARAT
(T8N (i) hE

(if)

(il

Sl A= AL EE

Sino-foreign 79,307 11,421
co-operative joint
ventures, PRC

PAAIEAELE

On 31 August 2020, Binhai Investment Tianjin, the
controlling shareholder of Gaoan Company, has
contributed additional capital to Gaoan Company
amounting to RMB29,665,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$33,700,000 as at 31 August
2020).

On 28 August 2020, Fangxinyuan Heating Co.,
Ltd., the minority shareholder of Taihe Heating,
has injected capital to Taihe Heating amounting
to RMB20,000,000(equivalent to approximately
HK$22,482,000 as at 28 August 2020).

The Group deregistered its’ subsidiaries of Qingdao
Tairan Energy Company Limited and Tianjin Tairan
Energy Technology Develop Limited on 22 July 2020
and 15 September 2020 respectively.

51%

51%

(if)

(i)

'Notes to the consolidated financial statements

49%  49% Heating supply

services, PRC

s 8

R_ZE-_ZTENA=1+—"H ' 5
ZATMERBRREEGEREX
EREBETARBENMNEEARE
29,665,000 (== F N\ A
=+—A : &R 433,700,000
PEIT) ©

RZZE_ZFNA=_+NH " =
%%ﬂ%9%%%%%ﬁ#%ﬁ

REIBRERNEIEARE
zomommﬂ_?_7$AH
—+AH : #HER22,482,0007%
JL) ©

AEBEDHR T _TFLH
—+t-AR_FE_FFEAAt+EH
HREHEMENB AR S SRR
BERAR AR RKRFMRERE
RERBRAIF -
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‘Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE— T _TFEF-A=FHIFE

15 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 15 REZZEARNKRE
USING THE EQUITY METHOD

The amounts recognised in the consolidated REFI BRI R P IERN B
statement of financial position are set out below:

N
o

_|

Investment in joint ventures REETENKRE 25,794 24,255
Investment in an associate R —EEE R AR E 48,996 38,892
74,790 63,147

The amounts recognised in the consolidated REHBREANERNSBELOT :

statement of profit or loss are as follows:

Share of (losses)/profits of ElEAERE(ER)

joint ventures /FIH (73) 412
Share of profits of an FEAG B 2 A R FE

associate 7,274 5,900

7,201 6,312

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/&1#% & AR A 7
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S e AL

B E—

Interests in an associate and joint ventures

Set out below are the associate and joint ventures of
the Group as at 31 December 2020. The proportion
of ownership interest is the same as the proportion
of voting rights held.

SEMBE QT é} iEééﬁﬂ7<°
P M HE 2 1O L ) LS  RORBE Y
L BIRRR -

Sinopec Binhai
Investment (Tianjin)
Natural Gas Utilization
Co., Ltd.

PECRR(XE)XAR
NMAARAR)([HE])

Tianjin Airport Economic
Area Gas Co., Ltd.
(“Tianjin Airport Gas”)(i)
REEERRERA
(TREZ /%J?*’ﬂ)()

Qinhuangdao Taixing Gas
Co., Ltd.

REETREXMAER
RA([RESFE])

40,000 50% 50% Joint venture (189) 406 14,585 16,071
BV

30,000 40% 40% Joint venture 116 6 11,209 8,184
RERE

30,000 45% 45%  Associate 7,274 5,900 48,996 38,892
Bend

7,201 6,312 74,790 63,147

(i)

The Group and a joint venturer have joint control
over Tianjin Airport Gas in accordance with the
articles of incorporation of the joint venture.

() AEEREELERBEAZLE
MARBERHRXREENAES
AR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e - H R

16 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

16 FIBHEH

Current income tax BNERFT S 7%

Deferred income tax charge/ pi

(credit) (Note 23)

EREFMEHER,/
BB (K7 23)

67,627 67,705
10,697 (4,640)
78,324 63,065

Reconciliation between profit before income tax and

the aggregate tax at the rates appl

icable to profits in

the respective entities concerned is set out below:

BRATSHAAERZERRNERE
BRHENREFENAHBE R

HERIAN ¢

Profit before income tax

Tax at the statutory corporate
income tax rate of 25%

Tax effect of preferential tax
rates on income of certain
subsidiaries

Tax effect of additional income
tax deduction granted to
subsidiaries in research and
development expenditures

Tax effect of share of profit of
the associate

Tax effect of share of results
of joint ventures
Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for the tax
purpose
Binhai Investment Company Limited J&/&#&&

Bx P15 %5 B A

REEDEMSHB
R 25% =T

T HB A RS
AEBEHENTB
24

B AR EER
BEIMNEHOBR Z Bt

B/ 488
T

FE 5 Bt & X B A Y
e

Bl ELREFEN
MR E

ORI A kb y

=27
wE

BRAR

439,183 182,689
109,796 45,672
(27,648) (14,695)
(7,758) (7,344)
(1,819) (1,475)
18 (103)
11,386 26,285
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EZE

—F-—F

ST A= HILFE

78 R 1 U8 i O A

taxable for the tax purpose mE

Tax effect of income not

Tax effect of deductible ANUER AR By =
temporary difference not BB BEE
recognised

Tax effect of tax losses not ANERRIEE BN
recognised %

Utilisation of tax losses AR AR ERAT
and deductible temporary THE 1A R AT
differences previously e =58
unrecognised

Recognition of previously ERF AR ERA ]
unrecognised deductible BKINERER

temporary differences

Withholding income tax on
undistributed profits of PRC RAIEERER
subsidiaries, an associate 2 B R EE TR P
and joint ventures ey

TEMEBAR - BE

PSR th

Income tax expenses

(26,212) (8,352)
7,660 12,821
4,514 18,042

(2,094) (5,283)

(200) (12,611)
10,681 10,108
78,324 63,065

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative
Council passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment)
(No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was
signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted
on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of
the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%,
and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at
a flat rate of 16.5%.

R-E—N\EFE=ZA-_+—H" &
B EERB-_E—tEBRBK(E
FI)ETHRIKRINER(TER]) -
SIAMBEIFIBHE - ZERKZ
T-—NFZA-+NBERERE
EE - URBRATIZER - BEM
LHIFEHE  GEREEERY
2,000,000 7% 7t F) )8 #% 1% 8.25% &Y
TR - M8 3E 2,000,000 7T
BRI A% 16.5% ML R5HH « T~
REERLRRHFEREABH
B # B 1R 16.5% M 5t — T K5t
i o
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There was no Hong Kong profit tax provided for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

In accordance with the “Notice of the State Tax
Bureau of the Ministry of Finance Regarding Certain
Preferential Treatment Policies on Enterprise
Income Tax”, New and High Technical Enterprise
was subject to income tax at a preferential tax rate
of 15%. Two subsidiaries of the Company were
recognised as New and High Technical Enterprises
in accordance with the applicable Law of the
People’s Republic of China of Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and hence eligible to the preferential
tax rate of 15% for the respective years, with more
details as below:

()  TEDA Energy was recognised as a New and
High Technical Enterprises on 28 November
2019 for 3 years and is subject to the
preferential tax rate of 15% from 2019 to 2021.

(i)  Zhuozhou Company was recognised as a
New and High Technical Enterprises on 2
December 2019 for 3 years and is subject to
the preferential tax rate of 15% from 2019 to
2021.

Other subsidiaries established in the PRC are
subject to income tax at the statutory tax rate of
25% for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
25%).

The Company was established in Bermuda, which is
a tax free country.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e = - [

BE_Z_ZFR_ZT—NF+=
A=+—8H ii&ﬂ?ﬁiﬁ'ﬁ%/aﬂ =
TR -

BB B BE RN EEBDER D
EREHME TERBERMNBAM)
BB EEEZRISRHEERT
RGNS o KR AH) /& B
RABRBEATPEARLMBEDE
FTERE(TEREBRE]DERTE
REAEMEE - BB EERIE
BEEIR15% M E BT EEMEAT
B8 FBEAT

i) RZFE-—NAF+—HA=+N
B RERREREAES
SMEEIFE RZE—NF
BT —FHAKEI5%HE
BEMEBANER -

Ok

iy RZTE—NAF+=ZA=H"
FHIN QB ERTE A S T M
ﬁ%si R_ZE—NEE=
T —FEBIG%NERH
T%%% SR o

HE-_Z-_ZF+=-A=1+— Eut
FE - Ha PRI E A
AL 25% (=& — ﬁﬁ£:25%)m
ETE R EGMETEH -

ARRINBRERYL - MZBERR
BB -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_ZF

R g AV

17 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(i)

(ii)

Basic

Basic earnings per share are calculated by
dividing the profit attributable to owners of the
Company by the weighted-average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

17 SR¥ =

(i)

xR

FRERYSE DA QA E
BARMGMBERIAFEAD
17 & 8 B0 hn 4 7 19 B BT

Aty

ﬁ_o

Profit attributable to
owners of the Company

NB(T#ET)

RRBEB AR

(HK$'000) 354,904 81,111
Weighted-average number st EFMRERIZS

of ordinary shares for R 3 3 AR N

basic earnings per share BB (FAR)

(thousand) 1,222,054 1,174,349
Basic earnings per share BREARKE=

(HK$ cents) CEN) 29.0 6.9

Diluted (ii) e

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted-average number
of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. Under the share option scheme
adopted by the Company in 2010 which had
expired, the Company had granted share
options, the exercise of which would have no
dilutive effect to earnings per share because
the exercise price of those options was
higher than the average market price of the
Company’s shares in both 2020 and 2019.
The aforesaid share options had expired on
26 September 2020. Therefore, the diluted
earnings per share equal to the basic earnings
per share.

Annual Report 2020
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BRERE - ﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁ
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
S SR AR

EE_

18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Binhai Investment Company Limited

At 1 January 2019

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impaiment

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2019
(pening net book amount
Additions

Transfer

Acauistion of subsiciaries
Disposals

Depreciation charges

Impairment losses

Currency translation dffferences

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2019
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impaiment

Net book amount

18 TBE MERRHE

H-%-1E-B-R
A 3400457 169,992 20278 53,509 641,264 4,560,004
2ifE (406.997) (54,63%) (59.404) (347%) - (555,175
EifhE (33,579 (24611) (50,114) (13%) (33,600 (14323)
RERE 3,051,882 90,745 93,264 17441 07,664 3,860.9%
BE-E-NEToRzt-ALER
ANEESE 3,051,682 90745 93,264 17441 07,664 3,860,996
g - 31,654 16,019 10,710 662,107 721,300
& 421,166 59,789 2,90 45 (50433 -
E SO 10920 4189 1464 30 = 16,805
& (16,896) (1,33 6671) b14) - (24,416)
fERR (109.451) (5,089) (10,151) .461) - (130,159
HEER (18,869) - 29%) - (15,749) (37,607)
gHaEER (66,819) (3,476) 2259 (t16) (14.34) (69314
HREENE 3,269,945 176477 113522 04 735,361 4317792
HoE-RET2Az1-A
i3 3,823,649 239,85 23,00 61,812 783,078 5,150,604
g2ifE (502,157) 58719) (59.497) (38219 - (638,591)
Zithe (51,547) (24,069) (30,901) (1,097) (t8.621) (176.241)
REAE 3,269,945 176477 113522 0407 735,351 4317792
EERAER AT
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A mENT

For the year ended 31 December 2020
L e e el = | o Y

Year ended 31 December 2020~ HE-F-BEt-A=t-ALEE

Opening net book amount RERE 3,269,945 176477 113522 0407 735,361 4317792
Addtions g 9 ) 418 9615 778,504 792,929
Trangfor &R 41,200 19,69 %01 2897 (469,004 -
Disposals & (1,126) 2,089) (2.551) ) - (6,549)
Depreciaion charges &R (130,767) (8,651) (9,800 (6,199 = (185,411)
Impaient losses HEER (8.484) - (1214 - (105) (9,09
Curency ansifion iffrences ~ EHHEZEE 271590 13315 783 158 5751 3074873
Clsing net book amount BRERE 3,768,307 198,841 187678 29,562 1,10401 546,83
At 31 December 2020 HZEZRETZR=1-A

Cost ik 4501477 204013 26293 76,208 1,165,084 6300317
Accumulated depreciation 2irfE (670,236) (69,449) (10078) (44,839) - (854,601)
Accumulated impaiment EihE (62614) 25,123) (55,179) (1909 (53,557) (198,881)
Net book amout RASE 3,768,327 198 841 197678 20,562 1,112,407 5,246,835
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e = - [

(1)

(if)

(i)

Depreciation expense of HK$119,873,000
(2019: HK$111,221,000) has been charged
to “cost of sales and services” and
HK$35,538,000 (2019: HK$18,931,000) in
“Administrative expenses”.

The Group is in the process of applying for the
ownership title certificates of certain buildings
and constructions which are with net carrying
amounts of approximately HK$135,621,000
(approximately RMB114,125,000) as at 31
December 2020 (2019: HK$110,688,000
(approximately RMB99,343,000)). The Directors
believe that the ownership title certificates
will be obtained in due course without any
significant additional costs.

The Group reviewed the recoverable amounts
of its property, plant and equipment to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment
loss or have a potential reversal of impairment
allowance previously made. The property, plant
and equipment directly held by the loss-making
subsidiaries of the Company, with net carrying
amount of HK$99,505,000 as at 31 December
2020 (2019: HK$184,790,000), were identified
for impairment loss assessment.

— Assessment using value-in-use method

The recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment except a property under
construction is determined at the value-in-
use using a discounted cash flow method
and is assessed at the Cash Generating
Units (“CGUSs”) level and the management
regards each subsidiary as an individual
CGU.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7

(if)

(i)

#r & 5 % 119,873,000/ 7T
(ZZ — N F 111,221,000
BIL)BETATEE KRB K
|- mITER X 35,538,000
BL(ZE—NF ¢ 18,931,000
BT)EFTATITEAX] -

N E—FF+_HA=+—
H ASBEHREEFE
49 /135,621,000 7T (4 A
R #114,125,0007¢ )(= &
— N % : 110,688,000/ JT
(#) A R #99,343,0007T )
WETEEYREFMERES
Bl EEMREHERKBEA
EXBAKNANBER TRE
B o

AEBEETHE BWER
REHATRD SR UE
EERBEANPTRETZ
ZEEELHAREEBE XA
B SCRIRHIRM R EETE
£ 3 N/NECT = o 7= B Sl/NIC]
EERERBENTBE: BE
BER_ZE_ZFTF+=
A=Z+—HBMEBFEAR
99,505,000/ (= & — A,
& 184,790,000 7t ) B
HAER BB -

— IRARHEEZETF
14

R—RBEZMEIN T
BHE BEEXBEH
A O EEAITRR
TREEFREREEE
oY ERSELEEM
(REELBEMDER
Afh MERBRE T
AAREERSELE

fiL o
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e = - [ [

The key assumptions for the calculation
included the growth rates of business
volume, gross margin and the pre-tax
discount rate. The Group expected no
revenue will be derived from CGUs with
no business operations and used a growth
rate of business volume ranging from
5% to 16% (2019: 4% to 20%) for those
CGUs with normal business operations
which are consistent with the historical
performance of the respective CGUs. The
Group used a long-term growth rate of
2.48% (2019: 3%) which is based on the
relevant industry growth forecasts.

For the CGUs under assessment, the
assumed gross margin for sales of
piped natural gas is 3% to 20% (2019:
7% to 16%) and the assumed gross
margin for construction and gas pipeline
installation service is 43% to 60% (2019:
54% to 66%). The Group used a pre-
tax discount rates ranging from 11.69%
to 14.63% (2019:11.56% to 12.00%)
to discount the estimated future cash
flows from the relevant CGUs. Based
on the management’s assessment
on the impairment of property, plant
and equipment, an impairment loss of
approximately HK$9,803,000 has been
recognised during the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019:HK$37,607,000).

AEMETEREBERE
BEMERE . FHX
RBRBMAIFTIRE - K&
EEHEERLENR
CEXEMNBTEEL
WA MHp#EEERE
BEEMREEEBN
Bl AN T4% E=20%
(ZZF — L F 1 4%=F
20% )M EBELRE
EHABEREeELEN
MELKRE - AK
B 2.48% (=ZF— 1
F:3%) MK HEER
= EEEETERNE
RIEAIME—2 -

HREXTHHReE
EBEM BENE R
AARHEHENENER
3% E20% (= T — N1
F:7%216%) ' 1M
BENIE®ETIRX
RAREBRLRERBH
E Fl £ B43% E60%
(ZE—NF 54% =
66%) c NEBE AN
F11.69% £14.63%
ZE—NF :11.56%
Z£12.00% ) H) B % B 37
WE - LR EBERS
EEBMHMEFTRRR
EnE-REEEEY
TEE  BERXED
WEE BEZTZ
TE+_-_A=+—HI
FEEERABEEED
9,803,000 (= &
— 1% : 37,607,000
JL) °
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e = - [

Assessment using residual value method

The management reviewed the carrying
amount of a property under construction
with reference to a valuation carried out on
31 December 2020, with the assistance
from external valuer. The residual value
method — used in valuing properties under
development by establishing the market
value on the premise that the properties will
be developed and completed in accordance
with its latest development plan. The
residual values of the properties can be
expressed as the market value deducts
the estimated costs to complete and
developers’ profit to reflect the total value
of the partially completed development. The
key assumptions included the estimated
selling price, estimated costs to completion
and selling expenses. The results of the
impairment assessment revealed that no
further provision for impairment on the
property under construction with total
costs of RMB93,325,000 (approximately
HK$110,904,000) (2019: RMB93,325,000
(approximately HK$103,984,000))has to
be recognised during the year ended 31
December 2020 and the accumulated
impairment losses as of that date amounted
to RMB29,511,000 (approximately
HK$35,069,000) (2019: RMB29,511,000
(approximately HK$32,881,000)).

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7

AT EEZETTAF
e

£ 5N 3B 1 1B BB &9 13 BD
T BEEELKZRERZ
EEFF+A=1—
HETHEERERE
BYEONREE - Fep
BEZEZ -FARBEBRBXR
MEFRBERNERE
EIBER R T I mET
MERGERPYEE
THE - MEAFERE
BRI XTI~ ATERBMG
BT T2 AR AR AN I B R 7 A
B AR E S T
RIEEWNBEBE - T2
REBEHTAER"
BEr TR AREE
MY REFTHLER
BR BHEZE_ZE_-F
F+-_A=+—HI1t
FE - BEREED
E R R
# ZEEMELEKR
B AN R #93,325,000
7L (#9110,904,000 %
T ZE—NAF: AR
# 93,325,000 7T (4
103,984,000 7T )) °
RZ AW R REEE
A AR #29,511,0007C
(#35,069,000 %
T ZE—hF: AR
#29,511,000 7T (4
32,881,000/ 7C) °



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE—F

(iv)

(v)

e A= HILFR

Movements of the impairment allowance of
property, plant and equipment are set out
below:

At 1 January R—H—H

Impairment loss recognised R FE AR RRIE
in the year B8

Write-off of impairment o B B BB R (B 1

allowance upon disposals &
Currency translation E N =%
differences

At 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—8H

(iv), TEE - BERKZXEBERE
BHE2FHOT -

176,241 143,233
9,803 37,607
= (1,290)
12,837 (3,309)
198,881 176,241

Gas pipelines with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$231,386,000 (approximately
RMB194,712,000) as at 31 December 2020
(2019: HK$357,888,000 (approximately
RMB321,204,000)) are pledged as security for
the related borrowing, details of which are set
out in Note 33(c).

v) RZEZZTF+HA=+—
H - BR @ F {8 49231,386,000
7B n(48 A R #194,712,000
TL)(ZE— N5 : 357,888,000
& T(# A R 321,204,000
T0)) MR E BEERBRE
FEEIR - BREAFFIEEAN T
33(c) °
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e - H R

19 LEASES

() Amounts recognised in the consolidated

statement of financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position
shows the following amounts relating to leases:

19 fHE
() REGHBHRRENEZY
&5

BHMBANRBRNIE
FRETHE AR

Right-of-use assets

— Land use rights

— Leased buildings

Lease liabilities HEAE
— Current — n#
— Non-current — RS

B RRAE
— iR
— ARHEF

164,220 156,368
15,238 20,718
179,458 177,086
8,478 9,029
8,288 13,184
16,766 22,213

The Group’s land use rights represent prepaid
lease payments for land located in the PRC
which are with lease terms from 30 to 50

years.

The Group also leases various offices and
warehouses and the related rental contracts
are typically made for fixed periods of 2 to 5

years without extension options.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7

REBEW L FERREBLR
OB H) i B TR R B R
0 HHIRB0EL0%F °

AEETERTEABAE
BE - MABELNEEH
[R—MRR2FELF » WEIE
REERE -



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e = - [ [

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

Additions of land use rights and leased
buildings during the year ended 31 December
2020 amounted to HK$2,411,000 and
HK$5,213,000 (2019: HK$30,477,000 and
HK$16,544,000) respectively. Disposals of land
use rights during the year ended 31 December
2020 amounted to HK$901,000 (2019:Nil).

The Group is in the process of applying for
the ownership title certificates of certain
land use rights with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$46,996,000 (approximately
RMB39,547,000) as at 31 December 2020
(2019: HK$47,695,000 or approximately
RMB42,806,000). The Directors believe that the
ownership title certificates will be obtained in
due course without any significant costs.

MEGFTIZENESHRE
¥ BEEEDR MGHRK &K
1¢ ﬁi*jéz’; 3F 4 1 H0AE fa]

CEREAMFEESR
FE’HJ*T%% SRS HEE
ETSREEZRNERR -

HEz2_ZEZE_ZTF+ A
=t+—HBLFE  tEHA
BEMEEZEMHRE DR
/42,411,000 7t 15,213,000
B(ZZE—N4F : 30,477,000
7 7T #116,544,0005 7T ) °
BHE-_ZT_ZFF+ = A
E+—E¢¢E£§iiﬁzﬁ
FA# 901,000 (= — N
F:8|)o

RZE_FEF+—A=+—
H A&EEEREEENR
46,996,000 JT(4) A R &
39,547,000T (= F — 1
F : 47,695,000 JT =k 4
A R # 42,806,000 ) B &

T ERERRAAER
H-ZEFMHEEHERAEHE
EEERAKAHERTIE
B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
e = ] [

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (i) REGBEZSRABRNESE
statement of profit or loss

The consolidated statement of profit or loss AEHERRBET T B H
shows the following amounts relating to leases: HEMEA :

Depreciation charge of EREEENTE
right-of-use assets 53
— Land use rights T s A 3,983 4,313
— Leased buildings HEREF 10,048 5,801
14,031 10,114
Interest expense (included  FIE & A (Gt ARE
in finance costs) PXAS) 1,070 760
Expense relating to short-  EEfEHFAEGRIN
term leases (included in ERAGIAHER
cost of sales and services RIS A KR ITIR
and administrative )
expenses) 5,492 7,999
The total cash outflow for leases in 2020 was RZZTZZTF - HEMNBBRSRD
HK$16,688,000 (2019:HK$14,715,000). 16,688,000 7T (= Z — AL -

14,715,000 7T) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE— T _TFF-A=F—HIFE

20 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

20 REME

At 1 January R—H—H 6,896 7,280
Charge for the year FAREZ (227) (235)
Currency translation b =R
differences 451 (149)
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8H 7,120 6,896
The carrying values of the investment properties KREVMEHN A BEEAEREEMR

approximated their fair values.

Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment
properties are set out below:

4+

Eo

HIEMENBRAERNSEN
T

Rental income HE k= 748 733
Direct operating expenses REEEHEERERN

from property that generated  ¥IEMEERLE

rental income 53 (227) (239)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE— T _TFEF-A=FHIFE

21 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21 BREEE

At 1 January 2019 R=T—h&

—HA—H

Cost B AR 43,736 — 1,504 45,240
Accumulated HEtEE

amortisation (5,549) — (125) (5,674)
Net book amount REFE 38,187 — 1,379 39,566
Year ended BE-Z—h&F

31 December +=—A=+—H

2019 IEFE
Opening net book FYREFE

amount 38,187 = 1,379 39,566
Acquisition of W B 7 A

subsidiaries — 13,586 — 13,586
Additions NE = = 2,116 2,116
Amortisation charge  BESHFX (1,113) - (1,158) (2,271)
Currency translation  [E X, =%

differences (787) (699) (93) (1,579)

Closing net book FARREFE
amount 36,287 12,887 2,244 51,418

At 31 December R-E—hF

2019 +=ZHA=+—H
Cost AR 42,812 12,887 3,604 59,303
Accumulated RETHEEH

amortisation (6,525) — (1,360) (7,885)
Net book amount BREEE 36,287 12,887 2,244 51,418

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e - H IR

Year ended BE-_ZE-ZEF

31 December +=—B=+—H

2020 ILFE
Opening net book FYREFEE

amount 36,287 12,887 2,244 51,418
Additions NE - - 5,063 5,063
Impairment losses VERIEEEES - (13,302) - (13,302)
Amortisation charge  BESHRX (1,809) - (1,459) (3,268)
Currency translation — [&E X Z=%8

differences 2,297 415 431 3,143

Closing net book FREEFE
amount 36,775 — 6,279 43,054

At 31 December R-BE-TE

2020 +=ZB=+—H
Cost BN 45,794 13,745 9,556 69,095
Accumulated R 5T 8

amortisation (9,019) - (3,277) (12,296)
Accumulated Z5HRE

impairment - (13,745) - (13,745)
Net book amount BREDFE 36,775 - 6,279 43,054
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B =

—ETe A= AR

Notes:

(i)

(if)

The goodwill is arisen from the Group’s
acquisition of 100% equity interest in Najing
Luyuan in March 2019. The acquisition is
strategic for the Group to expand its business
operations in the Nanjing area and management
considers Nanjing Luyuan is a separate cash
generating units (the “Nanjing Luyuan CGU”)
and review its business performance on a
regular basis.

Impairment tests for goodwill
Management reviews the business performance

and monitors the goodwill on individual CGU
basis.

Management has conducted an impairment
assessment on the goodwill as allocated to the
Nanjing Luyuan CGU based on value-in-use
calculations and the key assumptions as adopted
in the impairment assessment are summarised as

below:
Revenue Sales of piped natural gas:
compound 22%
annual growth Construction and gas
rate pipeline installation

service: 27%

WAEEFRER EERARIHEE  22%

TRETIRRAREELRE
AR 27%

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7

Bz

) AEELAAKSER-F
—NE=ZAURBERZIRN
100% Bt o Z B L A K E
BREXNERERONREZ
BRAEBHMER MEEE
RREARARRBILNRS
ELBN(ERRRASE
EEM]) YEMRSEE
BRI

(i) FERERR

EEERMBEMNREELEM
EEARNRBERANRERA
=

EEEEREEREBEAEH K
EMRRRACELEUNBELE
TTRERTE - MBRERHEFTERA S
EE2HEEBALLT

Compound annual growth rate of
revenue over the forecast period
was based on past performance
and management’s expectations of
market development.

TR BRI AR & FIR R R IIRRAE
BREBREBHMISERNTES -
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020

EZE

= S -

Gross margin rate Sales of piped natural gas:
15% — 40%

Construction and gas
pipeline installation

pipeline service: 52%

EH = EBRAREE 15% £
40%
TEEIRAAREBLHR
R : 52%
Long-term growth 2.2%
rate
REIE R X
Pre-tax discount 15.83%
rates
PR RIHTIR &

Based on past performance and
management’s expectations for the
future. Operating expenses to be
allocated into different segments
are not included in gross margin
hereon.

RBEANMERBYARKNEAD - %E
NMEABEIRETRA S BIKEE
e

This is the weighted-average growth
rate used to extrapolate cash flows
beyond the forecast period of 5
years. The rates are consistent
with management’s forecasts and
industry information.

HEEEABRBRFAERHRERE
PR IR E - FAKLRE
HERENTRRITEER —B -

Reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant segments and the industry
in which they operate.

[RER B RAMERE D 2B Kz % 0 B AR & PR E
TR ERR

The impairment charge for this year of
HK$13,302,000 arose in Nanjing Luyuan CGU
following a slowdown of business expansion
and bankruptcy or shutdown of some potential
customers caused by the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic. And the Group reassessed the
depreciation and amortisation policies of Nanjing
Luyuan’s property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets other than goodwill and estimated
that their useful lives will not be affected following
this slowdown. No class of asset other than goodwill
was impaired.

RN F E KR E 2 F 18,302,000 %
TTEABERARASEEREN -
TEHRERESEEREERER
BERMEARTD BERPWES
FEMY - AEBMENTEER
IR TEE - BB RBREARE
FEE(FERIN B RE &
o WA RSN FERFEHET
EXSHWBETE - BELMER

M B E (BB HBRRIE -
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020

EE_

22

S FES A= HIEFER

PREPAYMENTS

RERARKAMNK

Prepayments for natural gas

22 ANFIR

purchases =] 251,492 157,371
Prepayments for construction  #E3218 B JEt K
projects (note) (H13t) 178,526 135,499
Prepayments for others H TR FRIE 27,522 16,203
457,540 309,073
Less: Provision for impairment J& - B B (78,884) (73,961)
378,656 235,112
Representing: He -
— Non-current portion — EmEEH D 138,702 34,206
— Current portion — REIS 239,954 200,906
378,656 235,112
Note: Bisr -

The non-current portion of prepayments represent
prepayments for the construction of the gas pipeline
network of the Group, out of which, an amount
of RMB100 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$118.8 million) is subsequently refunded by a
contractor in February 2021. More details are set
out as below:

In August 2020, the Group has advanced an amount
of RMB100 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$118.8 million) to a third party construction
contractor for the preparation and coordination
of a cross-cities pipeline construction project (the
“Project”) pursuant to a construction agreement
dated 10 August 2020 (with a total contract sum
of RMB623,000,000) (the “Agreement”). The
Agreement has been subsequently terminated on 18
February 2021 due to slow progress of the Project
and certain additional approval requirements of the
Company and after the communication with the
contractor, the entire advanced amounts of RMB100
million has been refunded by the contractor on 24
February 2021.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7
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BE— T _TFF-A=F—HIFE

23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 23 EEMBH

Deferred income tax assets EEFSHEE([IE

(“DTA”): EFTEHEE]) -
— to be recovered within — B 1288 "I
12 months 9] 10,899 14,806
— to be recovered after — B 12{@ B &K
more than 12 months [ 13,325 7,778
24,224 22,584
The movement on DTA during the year is set out FRELEFRGEHEENEBNT -
below:

At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—A—H 8,311 - — 8,311
Credited to profit or loss ~ Ei#Es 71 14,677 — 14,748
Currency translation EHHnEZS

differences (318) (157) — (475)

At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+=A

=+-A 8,064 14,520 - 22,584
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-_ZT&—H—H 8,064 14,520 - 22,584
(Charged)/credited to (3t A) BiiEx=
profit or loss (94) (8,992) 9,070 (16)
Currency translation EHBEZER
differences 686 668 302 1,656

At 31 December 2020 R-E-FT&+—A
=1—=E 8,656 6,196 9,372 24,224
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B =

Binhai Investment Company Limited

(i)

(if)

—ETe A= AR

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for
tax losses carry forwards to the extent that the
realisation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profits is probable. The Group
did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of HK$65,904,000 (2019: HK$72,241,000)
in respect of tax losses amounting to
HK$263,615,000 (2019: HK$288,963,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams
of the respective group entities.

The amount of unrecognised tax loss will expire
in the following years:

REBEAR B IEEENE
EFBHEE " R&fEE
BMHEENSRETESA
RRERRBFNERG S &
BR-AEEERSEEE
B2 /9 SR 2R ) B A &9 S AT R R
M K Bt #8263,615,000
BT (ZE—L4F : 288,963,000
BIL)ERELEMEHREE
65,904,000 (= & — N,
£ 172,241,000/ 7T) °

AERRBBEEE RN
NEERER

2020 —E-TF
2021 —E-—F
2022 =

2023 —EC=F
2024 — TN
2025 —E-RF

= 55,865
61,483 57,647
27,323 27,882
80,513 75,401
76,240 72,168
18,056 —

263,615 288,963

No deferred income tax asset is recognised
in respect of deductible temporary differences
amounting to HK$254,310,000 (2019:
HK$215,978,000) due to the unpredictable of
the utilisation of these temporary difference in
the future.

BERERRAA

(if)

FH R 4 5K BRI K SR By = 58
BOB) A IBE R - B L AT
NEREZBRRELHBEH
& E 254,310,000/ (= =
— L4 : 215,978,00058 7T ) °
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e - HIF R

The breakdown of unrecognised deductible
temporary differences is set out below:

R HERR AT K 0 B = FE AV AR
M

Loss allowance of trade
receivables

Loss allowance of contract
assets

Loss allowance of other
receivables

Loss allowance of
prepayments

Impairment losses of
property, plant and
equipment

Others

& Ui AR SRR (B B 1

BHEERERR

H {th & W SR IR RN (B
B

TR SRR (B B

TEE - BFE MK
R E R E

Al

78,667 69,136
- 58

556 555
78,884 73,524
85,307 70,488
10,896 2,217
254,310 215,978

Deferred income tax RIEFTISTHEE
liabilities (“DTL”): ([EEMFHE
&) :
— to be recovered within — B 12 AR
12 months U [8] 21,702 10,000
— to be recovered after — B 12{@ A%
more than 12 months U e - =
21,702 10,000
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The movement on DTL during the year is set
out below:

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e - H R

At 1 January Rn—H—B8

Charged to profit or loss FFAEZE

Currency translation BE¥HmE=R
differences

At 31 December R+=—A=+—8”

10,000 —
10,681 10,108

1,021 (108)
21,702 10,000

According to the PRC Corporate Income
Tax Law, the dividends as declared by PRC
incorporated subsidiaries to their foreign
immediate holding companies (incorporated out
of Mainland China) relating to the profits made
subsequent to 1 January 2008 are subject to
withholding income tax (“WHT”) at the rate of
10%. The Group is therefore liable to WHT
on dividends to be distributable from the
unremitted earnings of the PRC incorporated
subsidiaries as accumulated subsequent to 1
January 2008.

In order to support the continuous development
of the Group’s businesses in the PRC, the
Group has set up a dividend principle in 2020
that the future dividend to be distributed out of
the PRC incorporated subsidiaries’ unremitted
earnings as of 31 December 2020 will not
exceed an amount of HK$106,810,000.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7

RIEFBEEEMETE  HEHE
AR AL P B X B A B SN E R
22 B (FE R B 3 DA 9 i B i
A ) BRI EER —ZFFN
F-A—RRERABSMNEERR - AA
RIREMEN ([FREMEH DX
10% FMFBRLRFAAEN - Bt - A&
= 78 Bt A6 1 o B S A SZ BT /BB 2 R
R-ZZZENF—-A—BEMRFR
FEE e st AT 1t 00 T ) e B S AR TR 1R
FTiSHR

AREYBASEBEHREEBHFFER
B AEBR_Z_ZFHERE
BUR - TR B &S 1P B
MEBARBE-—_ZET_ZETF+=A
= t+t—HRELKZDRHKET
51838 106,810,000 7T °
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE— T _TFF-A=F—HIFE

24 INVENTORIES

24 FE

Pipeline and other materials TREIRRARE
for construction and gas BERERBNEE
pipeline installation service K E At A1}

Gases KRR

143,973 115,066
2,618 1,657
146,591 116,623

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in the cost of sales and services amounted
to HK$2,644,890,000 (2019: HK$2,630,277,000).

FEXABRAREALAHEE R
RIS AL A - & %8 & 2,644,890,000
BIL(ZF—NF : 2,630,277,000
BIT) °
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e - H R

25 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25 fEURBR = &2 H fth fE WL &k

Trade receivables from third W EE =T 708

parties (Note a): (Htita)
— Construction and gas — TR RRA
pipeline installation REBLRERY
service 240,150 238,012
— Sales of piped natural — BEERARIHE
gas 31,128 49,302
— Gas passing through — RARE®IRT
service 750 3,561
272,028 290,875
Less: provision for impairment J& - (A E 18 &
loss allowance (92,860) (96,933)
179,168 193,942
Trade receivables from related &Y B8 B 77 7118
parties (Note a): (Hieta)
— Sales of piped natural — BERARIMEE
gas 10,600 60,568
— Construction and gas — ITREmBIRRA
pipeline installation REBLRERY
service 1,704 4,290
12,304 64,858
Less: provision for impairment & - i {&E E518 B 1
loss allowance (5,954) (57,296)
6,350 7,562
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e - HIF R

Other receivables H Ath & WK
— Value-added tax — AJ Y EEER
recoverable 63,834 44,416
— Deposits (Note b) — REBE2(Katb) 20,299 21,540
— Others — Hfph 75,859 67,412
159,992 133,368
Less: provision for impairment J& © JR{EEE R E
loss allowance (7,987) (3,845)
152,005 129,523
Total trade and other JFE S B 3 B L At 8 Uk
receivables RAREE 337,523 331,027
Less: non-current portion J - FRURBR IR R EAth
of trade and other FEUGREIIETR ED
receivables (Note c) o (Htite) (25,142) (7,688)
Current portion MENE D 312,381 323,339
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE—F

(a)

e =y g = B

The Group grants credit period of 90 days for
its customers of piped natural gas sales and
customers of gas passing through service,
whereas a longer credit period of 91-180
days after the completion of relevant stage
of contract work is granted to customers of
construction and gas pipeline installation.
A longer credit period may granted on
a discretionary basis to certain selected
customers with good repayment histories or
settled by bills.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the revenue recognition
date is set out below:

(a)

AEERMHEEERAREE
EPRAAREGRBEEF
REOBHMEER HRT
PX & # T2 R R 18 7] )
TEBEBIERAREELE
RBEFIRHEIIE180HK
BEREEH - AEBEAKNIE
MERCHRRTKUERLE
ENETHREEFPELARER
BEEH -

E R A TER B H A IR
R BRI D ITLAT

Within 90 days 0 HA 52,740 76,966
91 — 180 days 912180 H 36,652 42,611
181 — 365 days 181 £365 H 52,826 26,139
Over 365 days A 365 H 142,114 210,017
284,332 356,783
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified AEERRESMBEREE
approach to measuring expected credit losses E”% Q%W%ﬁ{tﬁyfﬁ-zﬁ,ﬁﬂ
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance =EEE - YA RKE

for all trade receivables and contract assets.

Note 5.1(b) provides details about the
calculation of impairment loss allowance for
trade and other receivables.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7

REENEERAEHES
B 1R o

B 5E 5.1(b) T2 4 A B FE UK BR 3K
Ko B it & WK A R (B 7S 1R
R E S o



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e = - [ [

(b)

As detailed in Note 33(c), the Group has
certain sales and lease back arrangements
with a third party financial leasing company
which have been accounted for as the
drawdown of collateralised borrowings from
that financial leasing company. The deposits
of approximately RMB6,900,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$8,200,000) as at 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB10,800,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$12,033,000))
as paid by the Group to the financial leasing
company as part of the securities for the
related borrowings. The remaining deposits are
mainly the deposits of the pipeline construction
projects.

The non-current portion of trade and other
receivables represent trade receivables of
RMB21,157,000 (equivalent to HK$25,142,000)
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil) which
arised from the Dabei Town construction and
gas pipeline installation project. The Group
has signed an installment payment agreement
with the local governments due to the local
governments funding arrangements. According
to the agreement, the amount will be due for
settlement in installments over the next three
years.

The carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables approximated their fair values. As
at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying
amounts of the Group’s trade and other
receivables were all denominated in RMB.

BB FE33(c) Frafa - A&
EE-—HEZHL@MBER
RIFJEME TERBE L
EARIERRZEMEE
RAIMBEBER - NEE
RZEZZTF+_A=+—
Ha<mBERQa X HRE
% # A R # 6,900,000 7T (48
478,200,000/ 7T) (=&
—h&E+-_A=+—8: A
R #10,800,000 T (18 & »
12,033,000 L)) fE & & 8
EBERERHN—FD - B TR
BT ERAEEEERIER
MIRE S °

JIE U5 B 5k Re L fh JE L 3R A9 3E
RBILEHIER T -_ZF
+—A=+t—HB®MEKRZKA
R #21,157,000 T(#8 &
25,142,000 L )(ZZE— N
FoE) EELAARIET
BEIRAAREEBELER
B - BREMBFNEESR
o ASEBEEE BT RE
ETHBNRBZE - REZ
ZH BERBEEREAKR=
FE D HEE o

JE WS AR 3R Ko H b & UL 3Kk Y BR
HEEREAABEMASE - B
ZTEEFRITE-NF
+—A=+—8 xE£EE
L BR SR K H b 8 L 5Kk Y BR T
BEEAARKEEE -
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_F_FTFEL—A=+—HIFE

26 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVPL

(@) Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVPL

include the following:

26 AAREETEAES
STAEHRENERMEE

BmEIERNAABEAERA

EBFENATIER :

Wealth management B Em
product

182,029 =

As at 31 December 2020, the wealth
management product is the Group’s investment
in the Fuli No. 6 Single Fund Trust with
the principal of RMB150 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$178 million as at 31
December 2020) as purchased from a reputable
financial institution on 26 August 2020 and will
mature on 25 August 2021.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7

RZTEZZTF+=_RA=+—
H BVMEGRALNESERE
BohE—EoEEMEN
MIEE AeBEAARK
150,000,000 7L (A = & =
TEF+-A=+—HMEER
#7178,000,0005 7T ) * %2
MEMRR _ZT_ZTF)\A
“t+ABEE—HMAELRE
g IR T =—F N
A-+ARBZRH-



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _TFEL_H=+—HIFE

(b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss (b) REZABEINSHE
During the year, the following gains were REAFE  RERABERE
recognised in profit or loss: Wastn T -

Realised fair value gains REMFIE — F
on wealth management R R RE R A 2R B
products recognised in EmtEBEHAA
other gains — net BEWNE=(HZ9)
(Note 9) 7,801 14,361
Net unrealised fair value REAMAE — F
gains on financial assets AR ERHAR
at FVPL recognised in nEBEFEEH
other gains — net BEETAEEN
(Note 9) %Eﬂﬁ?a’ﬁﬁ
WA BEFR
=®m(H:E9) 3,654 —

11,455 14,361
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE— T _TFEF-A=FHIFE

27 RESTRICTED CASH 27 ZREES

Non-current portion: EREI S
Restricted bank deposits for Y&+ #b{E AR
land use right acquisitions Z PR HIERITF K 1,439 —
Restricted bank deposits EERERBENT
for pipeline construction PR I SR 1T K
project - 4,457
1,439 4,457
Current portion: mENE D
Restricted bank deposits EEAEREBEAERN
for pipeline construction 2R HIERITIF K
project (Note b) (Biitb) 15,955 —
Restricted bank deposits for Y&+ #b{E AR
land use rights acquisitions ZRRFIERITF R - 1,345
Restricted bank deposits for  $R1TE = Rl
bank borrowings RITIERX - 1,081
15,955 2,426
17,394 6,883

308 Binhai Investment Company Limited &E/&&R&GR A7



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e - H IR

(a) Restricted bank deposits are all denominated (@) ZBREHBRTHERAAARE
in RMB and the related restriction are A EERGE KR
expected to be released within one year —FAFER ERZZE =
except that, the restricted bank deposit for TEFE+-_A=1+—HWKEL
land use rights acquisitions of HK$1,439,000 (E AR R S RITFER
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: for a pipeline 1,439,000%8 T(= & — v
construction contract of HK$4,457,000) is F: BEREKAEHL 4,457,000
expected to be released after one year from BT TEBHEREEEEARE
the respective balance sheet date. =B —F1ERRk -

(b) The restricted bank deposit of HK$10,696,000 (o) PR HIER1T1F 510,696,000
is for a bank acceptance note payable for BILTAEEBEDRENNERN
pipeline construction projects. IRITHENIES o

28 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 28 RERAEEEY

Cash at bank and in hand: RITREFRE
— Denominated in RMB UARESE 332,735 697,717
— Denominated in HK$ B TTEHE 73,670 2,159
— Denominated in USD PAZETTEHE 1,338 122

407,743 699,998
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_F_FTFEL—A=+—HIFE

29 SHARE CAPITAL 29 AR

Ordinary shares EER
Authorised: oy
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 EMREE0.187TH)

per share L@ 1,677,676 167,768 1,500,000 150,000
Fully paid: M
As at 1 January R—H—R 1,174,349 117,435 1,174,349 117,435
Addition (Note a) iz a) 177,676 17,768 — -
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1,352,025 135,203 1,174,349 117,435

Redeemable preference FEEELR
shares

Redeemable preference SR E(E50.00 B TTH)

shares of HK$50.00 EJ?E@]E%H& .
each, issued and fully EEEE  BTR
paid e 7,440 372,000 7,960 398,000
Redeemed during the year FREE(#:Z b)
(Note b) (400) (20,000) (520) (26,000)
7,040 352,000 7,440 372,000
Total @3t 487,203 489,435
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e = - [ [

(a)

In September 2020, Great Wall Energy HK
has acquired 29.99% equity interest in the
Company through (i) the subscription of
177,676,183 of the Company’s newly issued
ordinary shares at a subscription price of
HK$1.33 per share (resulting in a share
premium of HK$218,541,000 credited to
reserve (Note 31)); and (ii) the acquisition
of 227,796,154 of the Company’s ordinary
shares as previously owned by TEDA HK at
a transaction price of HK$1.33 per share.
Upon the completion of the aforesaid shares
issue and transfer, the fully paid ordinary
shares of the Company has been increased to
1,325,025,000 shares.

The Company issued 8.6 million redeemable
preference shares on 4 May 2009 to Cavalier
Asia Limited, all of which were subsequently
transferred to the largest immediate
shareholder of the Company, TEDA HK, in
August 2011. These redeemable preference
shares are:

° not entitled to dividend,

° non-voting,

° non-convertible and at zero coupon, and

o redeemable into their full nominal amount

after the fulfilment of certain redemption
conditions.

RZE_ZFTFNH BEH
MRBBEBRBONAREE
B B% 191.337%8 T R B
177,676,183 18 X 1 &) ¥7 %
TEBREEERDEE
218,541,000 7% JLM 5T A ff f8
(BF5ES1)) K (i) A EES
% 8% 17 1.33 7 7T Uk B8 S5 AT
REBRBH AR 227,796,154
BRAQRRLEEEKR  WEARQ
A]29.99% A% #& - A it X 19
BORBEETKE A2
AEHEETRAREEME
1,325,025,000 P& °

RZEZNFHAWMAB © K
A al[A Cavalier Asia Limited
2% 778,600,000 i% 7] BE [O] 18
Sy 2RO EERR-ZT
—— FN\AEBETARAN
BEAEEBRRRTEERS - %
Lo ERE LR :

o  EBUWHURE -
o  WEREE-
o FHEBMETRE K

o REKETHEOKRMR
AREAHEEER -
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e = - [

The Company has the discretion rights to redeem
the preference shares if the following redemption
conditions exists:

(1)

(if)

(i)

(iv)

the occurrence of the fifth anniversary of the
date the shares of the Company resumes
trading on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Resumption Date”),

the Company has declared and paid final
dividends in respect of at least two consecutive
financial years since the Resumption Date,

the diluted net asset value per share at the
time of any redemption of the redeemable
preference shares is not less than the pro
forma net asset value per share which was
HK$0.054 stated in the Circular dated 27
February 2009 which was adjusted to HK$0.54
per share after the share consolidation of the
Company that took effect on 14 May 2015, and

the aggregate principal amount of all
redeemable preference shares redeemed in a
financial year of the Company shall not exceed
50% of the total amount of dividend declared
and paid to shareholders in that financial year
of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company exercised its discretion rights to redeem
from TEDA HK 400,000 (2019: 520,000) preference
shares which amounted to HK$20,000,000 (2019:
HK$26,000,000) on 10 June 2020 (2019: 27 June
2019).

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7

BT 7E LA T T B
EWEREEELR -

P /NIE:

() ARBBRONREL R 5
%ﬁ@@ﬂ&@a;%ﬁ
(MEB8 D mERBSE

%

(i) BEMBHE X2arxd
BEMEDBREE SR MK
1#;E/HHHX/Q\ ’

(iii)  PA{EA{A] & [B] AT BE [0 8 ok A% B
HERBEEEFETK
RBHRAEA-_ZTTNAE_A
THEtEMNBRAEEESSE
MEEFEO0.0548L » ER
AARBRGEHR=ZZ—H
FRHATHBEREEFHE
EFHWR054F8TT ' &

7

(v, RABMBFEFEBEEOMRA
ABEEEERATBBENF
BERNRBRZMBEEER
PR B R RO 5 B B AR B Y
50% °

HE-_T-ZTF+=-A=+—H
EFE ARATERNBEERZ
7f7iﬁﬂ+m T—NF:
T-hF~AAZT+ER)BEZHF
#H/ B EE 400,000 (=T —h
F : 520,000k ) EBER ©EA
20,000,000% T(=Z & — f1 & :
26,000,000 7T) °
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e - H IR

30 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 30 U AEREBNIM

On 27 September 2010, the Company granted share
options (the “Share Option”) to the Directors and
certain employees to subscribe for a total 9,050,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the share of the
Company under the share option scheme adopted
by the Company on 20 August 2010, all of which
are immediately exercisable on date of grant. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the option in cash.

(@) Movements in the number of share option
outstanding and their related exercise prices
are as follows:

R-ZE—ZTFHLA-_t++H &ARQ
AIREBEER-_Z—ZFF/N\A=_+H
EaHERESERNESRETE
BRHERE(TERE]) - ARE
& 3£9,050,000 KA R AR AF &
REBOCAABTHNERR  FIEE
PEAERAR I B AR AT 1T(E - AEE
WHEEERETEFAURS BRI
BEEREERE -

(@) BITHEIMNBEREHE RHEMA
FRITHRENESHMT :

At 1 January m—A—8 2,800 5.6 4,350
Lapsed (Note i) KB(HFET) (2,800 5.6 (1,550)
At 31 December R+=-—B=1+—H - 5.6 2,800

()  The share options are all lapsed as some
employee resigned without exercising their
share options and the rest was all expired
during the year, the amounts previously
recognised in share options reserve
were transferred to retained earnings
accordingly.

() BRIEOEREAEILET
EEBBRENER N E
B MNABERESRA
FhEm - BRES 2
KR+ 5 A R AR R
RN S EIEE
EBERFWE -
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& ORI S 3R R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE— T _TFEF-A=FHIFE

(b) Share options at the end of reporting period b) MEHARNEBRERHEESY
and their remaining contractual lives are as Fler BT -
follows:

Exercise price: Nill I : &
(31 December 2019: (ZE—NF
HK$5.6) +=-A=1+—-8:
5.6 BT - - 0.7 2,800
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE—_F _FTFEL—A=+—HIFE

31 SHARE PREMIUM AND OTHER 31 RO BEEREMREE
RESERVES

Year ended 31 December BEZE-NETZA=T-AL

2019 Eg
At 1 January 2019 NE-nE-R-A 157,522 (243 551) 85,088 12,599 (15,078) (160982)
Other comprefensive loss for £ kEAEER

the year - (33,015 - - - (33,015
Lapse of employees share BXHESERE

options - - - (4.475) - (4.475)
Appropriation to statutory iR

T6Serves = = 13470 = = 13470
Dividends relating to 2018 ZE-NERERA D)

Mote 3 (52846] . - - - -
Other transfer HipEh - - - - 8822 8822
At 31 December 2019 KoB-hE+AZ1-7 0467 (276566) 98558 B 084 625 (176180)
Yearended 31 December ~ EZ-F-FET-A=t-ALt

2020 5B
At 1 danuary 2020 S LA 04676 (76566 98558 8,084 6256 (176,180)
Other comprehensive income for ~ £MA iz Al

the year - 98,653 - - - 98,653
Lapse of employees share BXHERERE

options - - - (8,084) - (8,084)
Appropriaton to statutory ROEERE

T8Serves - - 26,008 - - 26,008
Dividends relating to 2019 “S-NERBRE %)

(Note 36) (41,102) - - - - -
Contribution from a new KR - FREEWE 298)

shareholder of the Gompany

(Note 29 (a) 218,541 - - - - -
At 31 December 2020 R-B_FEr_A=1-0 282,115 (177,019) 124,566 - (6,256) (59,603)

Annual Report 2020 —Z T FFH 315



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B =

32

Binhai Investment Company Limited

—F-—F

S A= HIFFRE

The exchange reserve arose upon translation of the
consolidated financial statements from the functional
currency to the presentation currency.

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, the
subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC
are required to transfer a certain percentage (as
determined by the board of directors of each of the
subsidiaries) of their profits after tax (as determined
in accordance with the PRC generally accepted
accounting principles), if any, to the statutory
reserves. The statutory reserves can be used to
offset accumulated losses or to increase capital
upon approval by their respective board of directors.
The statutory reserves are not distributable unless
the respective subsidiaries in the PRC are dissolved.

RETAINED EARNINGS

At 1 January KR—H—H

Profit for the year attributable  ZNQ B A A (L4
to owners of the Company A F

Appropriation to statutory REVETE
reserve

Transfer from employee share  REERRAE LKA - ¢
reserve upon lapse of option  {EBIRD FEEER
share (Note 30(i) (H 5 300))

At 31 December Wt+-—A=+—H

32

(X RN A G SRR T aE 1t
ERMEE2NERREL

REFBEMEERG - ARFRHE
R EFRRIAKETAD (A
BEFRAREESET)NWHRHREAF
BREPEAR ST RAUERE)
(B )EREETEHE - KAEE
AR OEERE N AIAKE
RFTEBEBIENE AR o FRIE L
BT AR TR BREEM
BIRED KA -

B 7=

895,129 823,013
354,904 81,111
(26,008) (13,470)
8,084 4,475
1,232,109 895,129

BERERRAA
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE—_F _FTFEL—A=+—HIFE

33 BORROWINGS

33 &

Non-current FERE
Secured, BHEM -
— Bank borrowings (Note b)  — R1T{EZR(H1:tb) 306,835 —
— Other borrowings (Note ¢)  — EMER(A1tc) 748,663 28,004
1,055,498 28,004
Current TE
Secured, BHEM -
— Bank borrowings (Note b)  — $RiTER(H5Eb) 264,282 108,078
— Other borrowings (Note ¢) — HEMitE(Hfitc) 30,073 79,974
294,355 188,052
Unsecured, mEA -
— US$ bond (Note a) — ELEHHita) - 2,324,170
— Bank borrowings (Note b)  — $RITIER(H3Eb) 71,301 —
— Other borrowings (Note ¢)  — EAbfER(Hitc) 942,852 =
1,014,153 2,324,170
1,308,508 2,512,222
Total borrowings & TR 4B EE 2,364,006 2,540,226
Annual Report 2020 == — T 4FFR
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020

o

(a)

—FFEFT A=+ —HIFE

US$ bond

On 22 November 2017, the Company issued
the bonds in the aggregate principal amount
of US$300,000,000. The bonds matured on
30 November 2020, unless the Company early
redeemed and cancelled the bond due to
the existence of early redemption events as
set out in the agreement governing the bond
offering (the “Early Redemption Events”). If the
Early Redemption Events occurred, the bond
holder would have has the right to request the
Company to redeem the US$ bond at 101%
of the principal amount, together with accrued
but unpaid interest. The estimated fair value
of the rights on Early Redemption Events is
insignificant at initial recognition. The US$
bonds carried interest at a rate of 4.45% per
annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The
effective interest rate of the bonds was 4.62%
per annum.

On 30 November 2020, the principal and
interest of the US$ bond had been fully repaid
on maturity.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7

(a)

EP

R—_ZFE—+tF+—A=+=
H ARAIBTASEBER
300,000,000 7T K & % °
DEBEN _BE_TFE+—
A=+RHE28  RIFEAQA
BIEBEESFZHITIHETEIRR
B EHERRFHE(RE
BEREMGH]DANSIERNR-
WMEECRFERESH  EF
BREABEEREQFUR
LEM101% Y E R E 1B
AEMWFEBEERETE
Ho REEREHERNMMG
AR BERYEEREL
RERX - ELBEHRFMNX
4.45%5T B - BEB¥EFEXR
BEF B - ZBEHFHER

FEAE4.62% °



'-.Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE— T _TFF-A=F—HIFE

(b) Bank borrowings (b) RITER
The bank borrowings are summarised by IRITIE IR E RN R BN Bt
liquidity as below: wnR

Non-current bank IEMBVIRTTIE X
borrowings:

Secured (i) BEA) 306,835 —

Current bank borrowings:  RENRITHE K

Secured (i & i) B (L) 264,282 108,078

Unsecured (iii) AR (1)) 71,301 —
335,583 108,078
642,418 108,078

Annual Report 2020 — &~ ZEFH
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e = - [

(1)

As at 31 December 2020, bank borrowing
of HK$113,452,000 (2019: Nil) is secured
by all income from changing coal to gas
projects of Zhuozhou Company. The
borrowing bears interests, calculated by
over 5-year loan prime rate (“LPR”) plus
24 basis points announced latestly, of
4.39% per annum in the current year. The
borrowing of HK$15,046,000 will be due
for repayment in 2021, and the rest will be
repayable after one year.

As at 31 December 2020, bank borrowing
of HK$27,481,000 (2019: Nil) is secured
by all rights to the earnings on sales of
piped natural gas of Jizhou Company.
The borrowing bears interests at the fixed
interest rate of 4.80% per annum and the
borrowing amounting to HK$547,000 will
be due for repayment in 2021, and the
rest will be repayable after on year.

As at 31 December 2020, bank borrowing
of HK$71,301,000 (2019: Nil) of Zhuozhou
Company is guaranteed by a subsidiary of
the Company, Binhai Investment (Tianjin).
The borrowing bears interests calculated
by over 5-year LPR plus 51 basis points
announced latestly, of 4.56% per annum
in the current year. The borrowing of
HK$71,301,000 will be due for repayment
in 2022.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7

—EEF+=ZH
+—H RITEXK
113,452,000 T(= &
—NF : EB)BAEMAF]
MR RIEE MATE K
mEEI - RFEEHE
RABEEHEFAMH A
FHINFERTISHRE
FME(ERTHREF
K])24 EEBEE -
Th & F AN E4.39% 5t
B o {8 315,046,000
BILER_ZT = —FF
HEER HHIBHBHER
—FREER -

[ 2

RZE_ZEF+_-A
=+—HB RITEX
27,481,000/ (= =
—NF : B)HEMNAQA]
WATBEEEBRAR K=
HFTBREEERR - ZE
IR B E F | & 4.80%
& B B f& 547,000
BETER - - —F5|
HEE HHDPOHER
—FIREE -

RZEZZEF+ A
=t+—8  AMAAH
$8 17 & 3£ 71,301,000
BIL(ZE—NhF: &)
MR R MK B A RE
HIRERZIEER - K
FERNERN LR
DR AFH EEX
% W E F = st @
EAE HERFF
L A456%F B o ZfERK
71,301,000 T# K =
T _FEIHEE -



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e = - [ [

(if)

(i)

As at 31 December 2020, bank borrowing
of HK$121,213,000 (2019: Nil) of Deging
Company was guaranteed by a subsidiary of
the Company, TEDA Energy. The borrowing
bears interests, calculated by over 5-year
LPR plus 95 basis points announced latestly,
of 5.60% per annum in the current year. The
borrowing amounting to HK$11,019,000 will be
due for repayment in 2021, and the rest will be
repayable after one year.

As at 31 December 2020, TEDA Energy’s bank
borrowing of HK$118,835,000 is guaranteed by
a subsidiary of the Company, Binhai Investment
(Tianjin). The borrowing bears interests at the
fixed interest rate of 4.80% per annum and will
be due for repayment in 2021.

As at 31 December 2020, TEDA Energy’s bank
borrowing of HK$118,835,000 is guaranteed by
a subsidiary of the Company, Binhai Investment
(Tianjin). The borrowing bears interests at the
fixed interest rate of 4.35% per annum and will
be due for repayment in 2021.

As at 31 December 2020, TEDA Energy had an
unsecured bank borrowing of HK$71,301,000,
bearing interests at the fixed interest rate
of 4.00% per annum and will be due for
repayment in 2021.

(if)

(i)

R_ZEBE_ZFTF+_A=+—
H ZFAamiRITER
121,213,000 L (Z & — /L
F:EB)BARFNMER
ARERREER &XF
ENFMELEH MO A

FHUELERTSREN X
MOSEEFFE - HIREF

F £5.60%: B % & XK
11,019,000 7T & N = T
——FHHBREE E&IHH
R —FREE -

%

—EZEFFA=1—
H’ﬁéﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ
118,835,000/ T B8 A A
NN /ﬁ/ib\ﬁ%/$
EER - %16 RIZE E F F
EAB0%FT R KR ZF
—FEIHPEE o

B ZERFROEITER
118,835,000/8 7t A & A A
M B AR EBIRE RZE
EER - ZERIREEFF
EA435%FE - WHRZF
——FEIEEE o

RZBZZBF+-_RA=+—
B RELRNERMRT
1%*71 301,0007% T & 7
FH E4.00%5T 8 - IR

T FEHEER -
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(c) Other borrowings

On 29 April 2016 and 29 June 2017, TEDA
Energy had entered into two financial leasing
agreements respectively with a third party
financial leasing company whereby the
Group sold and lease-back on gas pipelines
owned and operated by TEDA Energy. In
substance, the Group got collateralised
borrowings amounting to RMB230,000,000 and
RMB130,000,000 respectively. The borrowing
is repayable by 20 and 12 quarterly instalments
till June 2021 and June 2020 respectively
and carried interest by reference to the RMB
benchmark lending rate published by the
People’s Bank of China for the same period
minus 12% and plus 2% respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, the outstanding
balance of the aforesaid collateralised
borrowings amounted to RMB25,306,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$30,073,000)
(2019: RMB96,910,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$107,978,000)).

The Group has placed security deposits of
RMB6,900,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$8,200,000) and RMB10,800,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$12,033,000) as at 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2019 with
the third party financial leasing company for the
aforesaid arrangement (Note 25(b)).

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7

(c)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e = - [

H & =K

RZE—XRENA -+ 1H
rFZZTE—+tF<A=-t+h
S Labxféﬁi ME=7

‘i\rﬂﬁ“ BRI RIET LM 5
TREEHZ Bt A%
= & R A O B R E R

EREBEBNAAREE - K
SEEE ORI ESERE
= A R # 230,000,000 7T &
A R # 130,000,000 ° f&
KOBNBH 20 R 12EFEE
BEE_ZE-_—FXARK=E
—EFARAUERFBEAR
RITAMHRBAREER
EENESBTHI12% & E
F2% BIFIEETE o

RZEZTEF+=ZA=+—
H: FliiEBEROKREE
# % A A R % 25,306,000
JT(# & ® 430,073,000
TIHZE—AF: ARE
96,910,0007L(# & B ©
107,978,000/87T)) °

$EIEF_?_T$+_
AZ+—BAEKR=ZZE—Ah&F
+_H—+*E%LLQ%
RZE=ZFcBBEERFF
BRE S AR 6,900,000 7T
(& 14 8,200,00087T) &
A R #10,800,000 7t (#H &
A #712,033,000 3 7T ) (B 57
25(b)) °



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B E—

(d)

e e EEs

In November 2020, TEDA Energy and
Binhai Investment (Tianjin) had drawn
down borrowings, which are guaranteed by
TEDA, of RMB630,000,000(equivalent to
HK$748,663,000 as at 31 December 2020)
from a related party, Sinopec Finance Company
Limited and the borrowings will be wholly
repayable in 2023. The borrowings bears
interests, calculated by 1-year LPR plus 60
basis points announced in the latest month on
the Withdraw Date, of 4.45% per annum for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

In November 2020, the Group has drawn
down a secured borrowing of borrowings
amounting to HK$942,852,000 from a third
party company. The borrowing bears interests
at a fixed rate of 6% per annum. The third
party company has right to request the Group
to repay the payment within 7 working days in
advance and the Group can choose to repay
the borrowing at any time before the maturity.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s
borrowings were repayable as follows:

Within 1 year 1FER

1 to 2 years 15824
2 to 5 years 215 BieE
Over 5 years 5F A

RZEZTF+— A RiE
BER KB B IR E K E A B8 B
FHEAREHBEEREEA
A & X A K #630,000,000
TR ZZEZZEF+ A
=+—BMHEN 748,663,000
BL)  ERBEREER -
BR_EZ=F2FEEE-
ERAELRIRIB B&if
—1IH NEE —FHE RN
*&F%Wﬂ%omgﬁaﬁ
B HE-_Z-_ZF+_-A
=F— Eljtir;ﬂ,mm;zi
M=K A4.45%ET 5 -

ﬁé_?_;fiwL A K&
HEE% NERBE KA
f& $£942 852 00078 7t I
RETEMER6%TE - Z5F
=HAABREEEREAE
ER7EITEEARNEENKE
7N 55 B 0] 5 42 A B HA A1 B B
BREMER °

(d R-ZE-_TER-_T—NE
TZA=+—RB  AEEH
e BB A T HARS 2 -

1,308,508 2,512,222
110,981 28,004
883,538 =

60,979 =

2,364,006 2,540,226
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‘Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e e HIF R

(e) The carrying amounts of the Group’s () AEBEEFRNEREMENATS
borrowings are denominated in the following B¥EHE
currencies:

RMB ARH#E 1,421,154 216,056
HK$ I 942,852 -
USD ETT - 2,324,170
2,364,006 2,540,226
The weighted-average effective interest rate for HE-_ZT_ZF+ A
the year ended 31 December 2020 is 4.56% =+—BLEFEMNMEFEH
(2019: 4.59%). EBRMEE456%(ZFT—AN
F :4.59%) °
(f) The carrying amounts of the Group’s () AEBEFOEEDEEAEAR
borrowings approximated their fair values. REBEEE

Binhai Investment Company Limited &/&1#% & AR A 7



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE—F

e A= HILFR

34 DEFERRED INCOME

34 EIE W=

Government grants (Note a) BRATFaRE (Aata) 56,135 53,757
Grants for construction EHRIBE M
projects (Note b) (Htitb) 55,473 —
111,608 58,757
(a) In 2020, certain subsidiaries of the Group @ RZE_ZFHF £ E
received government grants totalling ETHBRARERSAGH
HK$805,000 (2019: HK$1,442,000), which 805,000 L(=F — A& :
related to the corresponding gas pipeline 1,442,000 70 ) B B EE X
construction projects for the purpose of the AREBRERERB ARS8
improvement in the energy use efficiency. TR T FB A2 /Y BT R B o
Accordingly, the government grants are Ut - B A6 BE 9 ER IR IE
classified as deferred income and released to @ WREERREEEE
the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over W=1+FHtrEAFHRA
the estimated useful lives of the relevant gas ERBEZREREIEER °
pipelines assets of 30 years.
(b) In 2020, certain subsidiaries of the Group b) RZFE_FTF- K

received grants for gas pipeline construction
projects and heating construction projects
of Tianjin Future Sci-Tech City totalling
HK$55,473,000. Accordingly, the grants
are classified as deferred income and will
be released to the profit or loss during the
operating period on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the relevant assets
in the future.

During the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019, the amortisation of deferred income
as recognised as other income amounted to
HK$1,967,000 and HK$1,926,000 respectively.

Annual Report 2020

ES
AN
=]

T

ETHERARERSAH
55,473,000 ;LB K E XK
REEBRAREBERE
BRHEERERIEE MM -
Bt #B o 8EARETENK
wm WEREBEEERNRRK
B ERFHAENRERE
EREE AR B =B -

HEZZ_TFR=-_ZT—AN
F+-A=+—HLFE "
R AE MR A R E WS
%S BB 1,967,0008 7T
11,926,000 7T °

—T_TFFIH
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE—F—Fr{—A=1—AIFE

35 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

35 ENRMK

H At A K

Trade payables (Note a) FERTBRFR (KT it a) 780,558 587,217
Other payables H Ath FE - 50
— Other payables for — EEERNEME
pipeline construction B 583,590 525,399
— Advances from an — TEUkEE & A RIRRIE
associate (Note b) (Bi#tb) 36,028 33,544
— Other tax payables — EMEATR 4,649 3,487
— Payroll payables — FE1S H A 5,057 2,600
— Others — Hfb 177,376 145,030
806,700 710,060
Accrued expenses fEETE A 53,122 34,715
Total trade and other payables &/~ BR % & E f fE 1~
R 1,640,380 1,331,992
Less: non-current portion Jat : FEERF S E A
of trade and other FERT KAV IETR
payables (Note c) BE D (Hitc) (64,440) —
Current portion MENEE D 1,575,940 1,331,992
326 Binhai Investment Company Limited &E/&&R&GR A7
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BRE-F=

(a)

FEf A=+ —HILEE

As at 31 December 2020, the ageing of the
trade payables based on supliers’ invoice date

is set out below:

Within 90 days 90BN
91-180 days 912180 H
181-365 days 181 £ 365 H
Over 365 days B8 365 H

@ R-B-_FTF+-_A=+-—
B BNERFREREEDR
SEMRRE DT -

256,497 206,035

91,354 71,176
135,858 95,758
296,849 214,248
780,558 587,217

As at 31 December 2020, trade payables of
HK$296,849,000 (2019: HK$214,248,000) were
aged over one year, which are mainly payables
in connection with the gas construction and
installation pipeline projects. The balances had
yet to be settled as those projects and their
final accounts have not yet been completed.

The advances from the associate are
unsecured, bear interests at a fixed rate of
4.24% (2019: 4.24%) per annum and will be
repayable in 2022.

RZTEZFEF+ZA=+—
B REEBE-—FHEMNE
X 5296,849,0008 L (=&
— L5 : 214,248,000/ 7T )
FEATIREIRRRRE

EXEEEHRBOENK
B -BARZEFEBRARE
MARTERK - BERTER RS o

(b) TEUEEE DA RIBEEF -
#24.24% (= T — N F:
4.24%) M EEFFEGE -
WER_ZE-__FANEE -
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e e HIF R

(c) In 2020, the Group purchased gas meters on ) RZZEZZTF AKEHED
the terms of payment by installments and the HNRNBERBEMRRE
payables which will be repayable after one year W AR —FREZENEN
are classified as non-current portion of trade RO AEMNERREMIE
and other payables. NRRIERBNE S o

(d) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and d) AEEENRRREMER
other payables are denominated in the following FHBREEN N5 E¥ETE -
currencies:

RMB AR 1,627,838 1,320,239
HK$ BT 12,542 11,753
1,640,380 1,331,992
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B E—

36

S FESTAE S HIEFER

DIVIDENDS

Final dividend for the year BE_T-hF+=
ended 31 December 2019 of A :—1— BIEFE
HK$0.035 (2018: HK$0.045) 7B &Ik MR R
per ordinary share declared HRERERE®

and paid
—F-N\Ft+=A
=+—HIEFEZ
RNEARR 2 : 0.045
BIT)

f%0.035 8T (HE

36 K=

41,102 52,846

The final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2018 of HK$52,846,000 as declared on 10 May
2019 was distributed from the share premium
account and was fully paid in June 2019.

The final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2019 of HK$41,102,000 as declared on 15 May
2020 was distributed from the share premium
account and was fully paid in June 2020.

At a Board meeting held on 18 March 2021, the
Board proposed a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2020 of HK$106,810,000 (2019:
HK$41,102,000), representing HK$7.9 cents
(2019: HK$3.5 cents) per ordinary share, to be
distributed from the share premium. This proposed
dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in
these consolidated financial statements, but will
be reflected as an appropriation from the share
premium for the year ending 31 December 2021.

—hWERATBEAREREE
2 N\E+ZA=T—BILEFE
B R HA R B 52,846,000 7B ITTE R
ZE-NFEANABERDREDIER
AEBURAT -

R-ZE_EFRAAT+HEBMERE
EE-NFE+ZA=+—HIEF
E B K B9 A% 841,102,000 T E
Bé_g_%ﬁﬁx\ﬂ QHXTD/ET\A/)E
RABEURS -

RZEZ—F=A+NBETH
Esegal EZCEZAH8
FREDRBEE-_Z_ZTF+=
AZ+—BLEFEHNRBERE
106,810,000 (=T — ML & -

41,102,000 7T ) * & R &’k
LB 7.9BM(=Z —ﬁﬁ 1 3.5
BAL) - WIEEERBEYENRZSE

éﬁﬁﬂ%#&i’%qﬂ)\ﬁﬁﬁwﬂgﬁﬁﬁ
B MERBE_T_—F+_A
=t —ALEFEARIEEBRDE
ER
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-F-Fr{-A=1—HUFE

37 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 37 REREBEH
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) REELENRE

Profit before income taxes  B&F78 %1 Al F) 439,183 182,689
Adjustments for: BTSEHBE :
— Depreciation of property, — TEE * B5H

plant and equipment REHNITE 155,411 130,152
— Depreciation of right-of- — {EREEENIT

use assets = 14,031 10,114
— Amortisation of — RE W a

investment properties 227 235
— Amortisation of — B AEEH

intangible assets 3,268 2,271
— Amortisation of deferred — EFE Uk =5 & # 5

income (1,967) (1,926)
— Impairment loss on — TBIE ' BI5H

property, plant and REREESRE

equipment 9,803 37,607
— Impairment loss on — EBENREEE

goodwill 13,302 =
— Net gains from — BERARKEE

compensation for B B (B W s F 5B

damaged gas pipelines (13,491) (19,362)
— Net gains on disposal of — E& L A

land use rights BF I a (1,299) -
— Net losses/(gains) on — BRETHE ' W

disposal of property, SR F

plant and equipment BB (W) 2,063 (1,778)
— Net impairment reversal — £BIRAHNEE

on financial and oD NP RIEE SN

contract assets (42,377) (816)

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
L e e = iy el = ) s

— Share of net profits of — EhEE AR R

an associate and joint B a1 = FFE

ventures (7,201) (6,312)
— Finance costs — BEKAR 104,879 106,638
— Net foreign exchange — FEN (W),

(gains)/losses B8 (135,769) 35,141
— Realised and unrealised — BEHERCER

fair value gains on RRERAR

wealth management BEKEZE

products (11,455) (14,361)
— Interest income — FBWA (1,660) (1,620)

Changes in operating HREBEHELE
assets and liabilities, NEEENEEE

net of effects from ENEEEE
business combinations:
— Inventories - FE (21,492) (28,150)
— Trade and other — YRR R H A
receivables J&E WK 152,658 122,989
— Contract assets — ENEE 23,372 (7,704)
— Contract liabilities — BHEaE 125,835 203,823
— Trade and other — ERERRREM
payables FET K 175,313 10,585
— Notes receivables — RWERE 5,196 7,786
— Prepayments — AR (123,780) 15,545
Cash generated from KEELENRS
operations 864,050 783,546
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE—F—FFr+—A=1—AIFE

(b) Non-cash operating activities (b) FEESLEETH

Endorsement and BHENEEER
assignment of notes LS
receivable 58,608 36,542
(c) Net debt reconciliation (c) B FEMNEHIR
This section sets out an analysis of net debt N BN A 2 $ﬁ%ﬁf’ﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁ%
and the movements in net debt for each of the FREANTRERFRE

periods presented.

Cash and cash equivalents ReASFEY 28 407,743 699,998
Borrowings — repayable B — ER—FR 33

within one year BE (1,308,508) (2,5612,222)
Borrowings — repayable after &5 — BR—F1& 33

one year B (1,055,498) (28,004)
Lease liabilities MEAE 19 (16,766) (22,213)
Net debt B EE (1,973,029)  (1,862,441)
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 407,743 699,998
Gross debt s (2,380,772)  (2,562,439)
Net debt BI5FE (1,973,029) (1,862,441)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE— T _TFF-A=F—HIFE

Net debt as at 1 January 2019 RZE-nE-B-RN

Eh3g 669518 (2,716,809 (11995 [2,059,285)
Cash flows Befig 37,499 146,983 6,716 191,198
Increase due to new leases RSB - = (16,544) (16,544)
Foreign exchange adjustments EHAE (7,019) 31,830 370 25,181
Interest paid RS - 9,689 - 9,689
Other non-cash movements EbFRERD - (11,920} (760) (12,680)
Net debt as at 31 December 2019 R=Z-hE+=A

St-ANEREE 699,998 (2,540,226) (22213 (1,862,441)
Net debt as at 1 January 2020 RZE-ZF-A-HH

B3 699098  (2,540,206) @219 (1.862.441)
Cash flows BenE (313,454) 193,469 11,196 (108,789)
Increase due to new leases FREEHAEN - - (5,282) (5,282)
Foreign exchange adjustments BHAE 21,199 (13,627) 603 8,175
Other non-cash movements LOEE ) - (3,622) (1,070) (4,692)
Net debt as at 31 December 2020 R=Z=F£+=f

Zt-ANEEEE 0148 (2364,006) (16766 (1973,029)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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38 COMMITMENTS 38 &I

(a) Capital commitments (a) BAREIE

Contracted but not provided — BiIXMBERERE — TEHE -

for — Property, plant and B
equipment 222,551 198,967
(b) Non-cancellable operating leases (b) FHEENLEEE
The investment properties are leased to tenants KEMERBKCEHERT
under operating leases with rentals payable MFE - HEBRAZN -
monthly.

Minimum lease payments BRENMERENFERKEE
receivable on leases of BESUNNE
investment properties
are as follows:

Within 1 year 15ER 830 761
Between 1 and 2 years 1524 685 761
Between 2 and 3 years 2FE3F 396 631
Between 3 and 4 years 3F4%F 396 371
Between 4 and 5 years AB55F 396 371
Later than 5 years 5%1& 3,623 3,768

6,326 6,663
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
E o e e 5] e e =

39

The Group leases various offices, warehouses,
retail stores equipment and vehicles under non-
cancellable operating leases expiring within 6
months to 50 years. The leases have varying terms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal,
the terms of the leases are renegotiated.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The ultimate parent of the Group’s largest
shareholder, TEDA HK, is TEDA which is a state-
owned enterprise under supervision of the Tianjin
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission. The ultimate parent of the Group’s
second largest shareholder, Great Wall Energy
HK, is Sinopec, a state-owned enterprise under
supervision of the State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission. TEDA and Sinopec
are ultimately controlled by the PRC government
and the Group operates in an economic environment
currently predominated by entities controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by the PRC
government (“government-related entities”).

Accordingly, the Group is government-related
entities in accordance with HKAS 24. In addition
to those mentioned elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the followings are significant
related party transactions entered between
the Group, its related parties and other PRC
government-related entities.

39

AR BRI M R RS
ERAAE - AB - TEERAE
Y BESNFAEAEET
5 REEEAEEDER - 25
R R B - BB ERENS

ARE R -
BB AR5

AEBRABRRFETENREY
NRIBZE  FERRARIXE
MEAEEEEEEZBEEEN
BAMRE AEEE - ABREEW
MRBENKRBE QR /T AL
TREA—MEXBEEEESESE
EZEEEENRALE - FER
PR B BBRAHE&ES - MW
REEE LR EBEIRE B Al
RREIBFES - KREFRREE
TENER((BREEER]E
& o

At REFB @ EAF24
%o AKERBTHEBER - Ka
PR MEMEBOPAEEI - A&
%) 2 KL BE B 07 I EL A A B R 4 A
TEETIINERBEBR IS -
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
e = ] [

(a) The Company is controlled by the following
entities:

(@) AT NIIERES :

TEDA HK The largest shareholder
REBH BARER
TEDA The ultimate parent of
TEDA HK

TRiE RER BRI RA]
Great Wall The second largest
Energy HK shareholder
R RE S FZRBRE
Sinopec The ultimate parent of
Great Wall Energy HK

A1t AR EBNRKELT AR

PRC  85.43%  60.19%
T

PRC 35.43% 60.19%
]

Hong Kong 29.99% =
o
PRC 29.99% =

HE

As Great Wall Energy HK became the second
largest shareholder of the Company in
September 2020 (Note 29(a)), Sinopec, the
ultimate parent of Great Wall Energy HK, and
its subsidiaries are considered as related
parties of the Group since then.

Binhai Investment Company Limited &&&KEEGR A7
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE—_F _FTFEL—A=+—HIFE

(b) Transactions with related parties (b) EHEBSETHRS

(i) Sales of piped natural gas () EEXARHEE

Entities controlled by SZRETTHINER

TEDA 236,680 365,810

Other related parties =i )i 24,091 19,305

Joint ventures B 16,325 39,512
Entities controlled by ZHAESINERE

Sinopec 586 —

277,682 424,627

(i) Construction and gas pipeline (i) TEEIRXAREE

installation services ZRIRH

Entities controlled by STRETTHINERE

TEDA 10,277 5,689
Other related parties H b REEE 75 432 2,638
TEDA TriE - 281

10,709 8,608

Annual Report 2020 —Z T FFH 337



= '_-_..,Notzes to the consolidated financial statements

AR KM

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE— T _TFEF-A=FHIFE

(iii) Gas passing through income (iii) XA R EBH WA

Joint ventures

i)
S
>
HE

658 668

(iv) Rental income (iv) HEKA

Joint ventures

i)
i
>
HE

748 733

(v) Purchases of gas (v) XAREFE

Entities controlled by SR AEGNEE

Sinopec 258,584 —
Other related parties H b REEE 30,995 19,573
Joint ventures B 1,083 1,184

290,662 20,757
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
L e e el = | o Y

(vi) HETHREM

(vi) Purchases of gasoline and others

Entities controlled by SR AT EE

Sinopec 198 —
Joint ventures SEME 36 =
234 —

(vii) XEHE

(vii) Sales of gas meters

Other related parties B )i 551 -

(viii) 78 2

(viii) Interest expenses

Entities controlled by SR AIESNE

Sinopec 4,997 —
Associate i /NE] 1,463 1,433
6,460 1,433
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e - H R

(ix) Other service expenses

(ix) EftR%EEH

Other related parties E {th BAESE 5 599 2,234
Entities controlled by 2R EE
TEDA B 506 —
Associate /N 106 —
1,211 2,234
The Group’s pricing on sales of piped AREBRBETHEES
natural gas with related parties are based BRARHEBIER

EHMBTRRAN2E
EBEME - HHXH1R
i B BA B 5 199 7 HO R AR
KB EEGERTET

on the reference price stipulated by the
local government. Other transactions were
entered into on terms as agreed with the
related parties in the ordinary course of
business.

AEBEZRERALNK
R TRRH TR
RZRREBTLZER
7% o

The Group was engaged to provide the
construction and gas pipeline installation
service to related parties located in Tianjin.
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A mENT

For the year ended 31 December 2020
L e e el = | o Y

(c) Balances with related parties (c) EEEREES MARR

(i) Trade and other receivables (i) FERERREMEK

Entities controlled by X ZREIE A

TEDA RERE 5,840 —
Other related parties H {th BB 4,801 59,356
Joint ventures BN 1,663 27
TEDA RE - 5,475
12,304 64,858
(ii) Prepayments (i) FEERE

Entities controlled by SR AEIES

Sinopec VB2 35,989 -
Other related parties H{h BB - 1,666
35,989 1,666
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
Br T _TFEL _A=1—HIFE

(iii) Trade and other payables (iii) FEATEER R A FE 11 5

Associate iR l/NE] 36,028 33,544
Joint ventures SEhE 4,506 4,640
Other related parties Hh BARE 751 873

Entities controlled by RyRsRES
TEDA WER 236 -
41,521 39,057
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
L e e el = | o Y

(iv) Contract liabilities (iv) EHEE

Entities controlled by XIRETE A

TEDA =4 30,761 46,386
Other related parties H {h B BS 956 487
Entities controlled by ZH A bS]
Sinopec VE 2 159 —
31,876 46,873
(v) Borrowings (v) B

Entities controlled by XAtz
Sinopec MEE 748,663 =
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
S e = - [

(d)

Transactions/balances with other state-
owned enterprises in the PRC

Both the largest and second largest
shareholders of the Company are state-
controlled enterprises and hence the Company
operates in an economic regime currently
dominated by entities directly or indirectly
controlled by the PRC government (collectively
referred to as “state-controlled entities”) through
its government authorities, agencies, affiliations
and other organizations.

Apart from transactions with related parties,
the Group has transactions with other state-
controlled entities which include, but are not
limited to, the following:

— sales and purchases of piped natural gas;

— construction and gas pipeline installation
service;

— lease of assets, purchase of pipe materials
and property, plant and equipment;

— placing deposits and obtaining finance;
and

— use of public utilities

These transactions are conducted in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business on
terms comparable to those with other entities
that are not state controlled. The Group has
established its procurement policies, pricing
strategy and approval process for purchases
and sales of products and services which do
not depend on whether the counterparties are
state-controlled entities or not.
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B E—

40

S FESTAE S HIEFER

(e) Compensation of key management
personnel

Short-term employee RHEERET
benefits
Retirement benefits RARAE T

(e) EEEEASHM

8,647 7,920
16 159
8,663 8,079

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

On 18 January 2021, the Company announced that
the grant of share options representing an aggregate
of 27,040,508 Ordinary Shares to 96 scheme
participants had been approved by the shareholders
at the SGM dated 13 January 2021. The grant
date is 13 January 2021 and the exercise price is
HK$1.32 per Ordinary Share.

Subject to the satisfaction of the conditions for
vesting as provided under the share option scheme,
the share options granted shall be vested in
proportions of 40%, 30% and 30% after the second
year anniversary, the third year anniversary and
the fourth year anniversary from the grant date,
respectively. And the vesting period ends up after 7
years commencing from the grant date.

40 HEHREE

RZZFEZ—F—HA+=H"'%X2
- REEREHAE= ==:—$
—A+=ZHHRRFINARE L3t
HEREBBERETEHRI R
27,040,503 R E BmR fh HY AR £ §
- EBYRAE_—HF—A+=
B MTEESAELTEAR1.32
/%TE"

FEIR AR AT 8 T 4 E B9 AR R
ERE  BRTREMEN 40% -
30% KR 30% KA AR EE T AR
W _BF - M= AE R EFE A
Mo THRASHERKERSERT
Hitesr7 F1% °
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_F_FTFEL—A=+—HIFE

41 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

41 KPRFNEEEEBXRER
HEE

ERANEERER

Balance sheet of the Company

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries ~ RFRFIHEE 1,685,792 1,683,036
Amounts due from FEUR TR R IE
subsidiaries 325,656 1,147,772
2,011,448 2,830,808
Current assets REBEE
Cash and cash equivalents H&RIREEEY 74,362 514
Total assets HWEE 2,085,810 2,831,322
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES #®XEREE
Share capital [N
— Ordinary shares — i@k 135,203 117,435
— Redeemable preferences — RIEEMEE &K
shares 352,000 372,000
Share premium A& 175 (B (a) 282,115 104,676
Other reserves H A {F#E (a) (98,127) (121,674)
(Accumulated losses)/ (RitEs18) 817
retained earnings e (a) (19,056) 23,079
Total equity 48 R 25 652,135 495,516
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SO B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EEE e e H I EE

LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other RS BRI

payables =y AN 12,028 11,636
Borrowings B 942,852 2,324,170

954,880 2,335,806

Non-current liabilities FIRBEMS
Borrowings (BN 478,795 —
Total liabilities HWEFE 1,433,675 2,335,806
Total equity and liabilities #EXRERE 2,085,810 2,831,322

The balance sheet of the Company was approved RARIWEEABROCHEST2RN
by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2021 and —E-—F=A+/\BHtE WA
was signed on its behalf:

UTEERRESTERE -

Wang Zhiyong Gao Liang
IEB a5
Director Director
BE=x EE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_F_FTFEL—A=+—HIFE

(a) Share premium, other reserves and (a) ADBHRMDEE - HM
(accumulated losses)/retained earnings ER(REHR) BEkE
movements of the Company 25

Year ended 31 BECE-NETZR

December 2019 St-ALEE
Mllnay201)  RoE-AE-E-R 50 (1288 12,55 A9 (1% 24064
Profi for the year ERTE - - - - - 4,668
Other comprehensive loss  Eft54 58 - (11,008) - - (11,006) -
Lapse of employess share 2 &HEEERE

options = = (4,475) = (4,475) 4475
Dividends provided for ~ EARTRHAIRE

and pai (2848 - - : _ _
At 31 December 2019 W=F-fE+ZR

=t-A 104,676 (133,849) 8,084 4,091 (121,674) 23,079

Year ended 31 BE-ECEETCR

December 2020 St-ALEE
At 1 January 2020 N-2-55-f-A 104,676 (133,849) 8,084 4,091 (121,674) 23,019
Loss for the year FRER - - - - = (0,219)
Other comprehensive  Efts Ak

income - 31,631 - - 31,631 -
Contrbuton from anew ~ AAR-HEREE

shareholder of the

Company 218,541 - - - - -
Lapse of employees share £ XNEEERE

options - - (8,084) - (8,084) 8,084
Dividends provided for and 2AETRERARE

ped 0,102 - - - - ;
At 31 December 2020  W-E-FF+R

=t-H 262,115 (102,218) - 4,001 (98,127) (19,056)
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42 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS
OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES)

(@) The Directors’ and senior management’s
emoluments are set out below:

42

ESEMNEER(FER
B R {5l (38 622 & ) 58 383
x> RA(WREESAE
B ROI(F622GF)
k&R EHRAUREFED
Ky #5258 )

(a) EEREHNEEENMESR
ST

2020 CECEE

Executives ynes

Mr. Wang Zniyong (i) EAE 7%/ 8 - 8
W w2V i) EEEEE) B8 - B
Mr. Zhang Bing Jun ~ SRER

i - 6 - - - - 6
Mr.Gaoliang () BRREN 200 64 2 3 197 1,406
Sub-total Nt 683 664 342 3 197 1,889
Non-executive  ¥37E%

Mr.WangGang  THZE 200 - - - - 20
Mr. Shen Hong Liang #3454/

7] \ Y] - 1
Mr. Yu Ke Xiang TRERE 200 200
Ms. Cao Hong Mei ~ EXTEZ L0

(vi 158 158
Ms. Peng Bo i) Fit i 158 158
Sub-total 1t 758 - - - - 758
Independent non- ~ FUFHGES

executive )

M. IP Sh\ng Hng  EREREATAL

JP. 264 - - 264
Mr.Lau SuKi Kein 8554 264 - - 24
Pofessor Japret~ EXEHR

Seastian Law 264 - - - - 264
Sub-total it 19 - - - - 792

2,233 664 342 3 197 3439
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
e e A [ R

2019 ZE-E

Executives yres
Mr. Znang Bing Jun ~ RRE R/

il a0 - - - - 0
Wr.GaoLing ) SRk 0 50 n 0 19 1,31
Sub-total it 600 650 m ) 102 1,761
Non-executive  FHEE
M. WangGang  THI%E 200 - - - - 20
W Yokedang  TEERE 0 - - - - 0
M., Shen Xiao Lin i) Vil %5y 148 - - - - 148
Mr. Znang Jun RERE 148 - - - - 148
Ms. Cao Hong Mei ~ EATIE% L)

i 5 . - - - 5
Ms. Peng Bo (i) Bt 5 - - - - 5
Subtotal it 02 - - - - 02
Independent non- ~ FUFHGES

executive
M PShingHng  ERELLAELL

JP. 264 - - - - 264
Mr, Lau Su Ki, Kevin 1854 264 - - - - 264
Professor Japhet ~ BXEHR

Sebastian Law 264 - - - - 264
M. TseTak Yin () #EE%Es % - - - - %
Sub-fotal it 887 - - - - 887

2,28 650 219 40 192 3,450
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(1)

(if)

(i)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Certain Executive Directors are entitled
to bonus which is determined based on
a formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Company’s
shareholders after certain adjustment.

Mr. Wang Zhiyong was appointed as the
Chairman of the Board and an executive
director of the Company on 17 October
2020.

Mr. Zuo Zhi Min was appointed as the
Vice Chairman of the Board and an
executive director of the Company on 16
October 2020.

Mr. Zhang Bing Jun resigned as the
Chairman of the Board and an executive
director of the Company on 16 October
2020.

Mr. Gao Liang is also the chief executive
of the Company and his emolument as
chief executive is included in above.

Mr. Shen Hong Liang was appointed as
non-executive director of the Company on
16 October 2020.

Ms. Cao Hong Mei resigned as non-
executive director of the Company on 16
October 2020.

Ms. Peng Bo resigned as non-executive
director of the Company on 16 October
2020.

Mr. Shen Xiao Lin resigned as non-
executive director of the Company on
27 September 2019. Mr. Tse Tak Yin
resigned as independent non-executive
director of the Company on 10 May 2019.

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii) &

(ix)
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_ Five-Year Financial Summary

AEHNBRE

The following table summarized the results, assets
and liabilities of the Group for the five

December 2020.

years ended 31

TRPEAEERE_T_TF+_A
=St—RALRAEFEZXE BEMA

&

Revenue

Profit attributable to owners of

the Company

BA

HESERARANAE

3,653,866 3,957,529 3,308,032 2,745,687 2,145,194

354,904 81,111 104,049 221,421 172,226

Total assets

Total liabilities

Equity attributable to owner of
the Company

Non-controlling interest

BRE

B8R

ENlEEE i 4

Rl

7,094,864 6,108,222 6,018,141 7,876,998 4,071,674
5,095,089 4,743,196 4,663,277 6,414,158 2,849,813
1,941,824 1,313,060 1,334,988 1,428,606 1,186,684

57,951 46,966 29,876 38,234 36,177
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